STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18™, 2014 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE _ BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
BILL SJOVANGEN VANESSA STEPHENS

COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for February 18, 2014
4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for January 21, 2014
5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for February 4, 2014

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

6. Tor possible action approval of Payroll Check date 01/31/14 for $372,584.94 and Accounts
Payable date for 2/07/14 for $634,465.94 and $9,281.86.

7. For possible action approval of Treasurer Report for January 2014

8. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading;

I




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

a. Aero Automatic Sprinkler Co. - Contractor/21605 N Central, Phoenix, AZ (fire protection

contractor)
END OF CONSENT AGENDA

DISCUSSION (No Action ~ No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

BOARD COMMENT {No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Allocation of Catalyst Funds between the
State of Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development and Storey County with respect to
a $630,000 grant to Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Inc.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Catalyst Fund Reimbursement Agreement
between Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Inc; the Economic Development Authority of Western
Nevada and Storey County.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Selection of David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD as Storey County
auditor for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014,

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 14-390 creating a special revenue
fund for the purpose of recording bond and loan funds and recording expenditures for the
construction of the new waste water treatment plant.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Selection of the United State Department of Agriculture
Rural Development Community Facilities program to purchase three (3} Type 1 Structure
Engines and three (3) Transport Ambulances in an amount not to exceed two million dollars
($2,000,000.).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Storey County Special Purpose Grant Program for the
2014-15 Fiscal Year. The goal of the Storey County Special Purpose Grant Program is to assist
organizations whose purpose is to help the residents of Storey County.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Nicole Barde request for accounting of the Nevada
Commission for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railway funds due Storey County.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resclution 14-391 to continue the Contract
with the Department of Taxation to administer the infrastructure tax.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

19.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

Stolle Machinery - Contractor/6949 S. Potomoc, Centennial, CO (Ardagh Supplier)
Clean Harbors Env Sves - Contractor/1200 Marietta Way, Sparks (Contractor)
Videojet Technologies, Inc - Contractor/ 1500 Mittle Blvd., Wood Dale, IL (Contractor)
WTR Electric, Inc. - Contractor/6005 Hockberry Road, Reno (Contractor)

Arrow Construction ~ Contractor/100 Ave of the Couleurs, Rainbow Bend

Mustang Ranch Emporium, LLC - General /5 N C Street (Restaurant & Retail) VC

e opn o

2




g. Mustang Ranch Mercantile - General /62 N C Street (Retail) VC
20. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
21. CORRESPONDENCE
22. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

* Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

* Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

¢ Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

e Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

e Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440,

In accordance with Federal law and US. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before February 12, 2014; Virginia
City Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands
Fire Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

Vanessa Stephens,‘CIerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 18, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for January 21, 2014

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted,

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptrolier
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

@%_/_ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[ ] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
(S —

Agenda Item No. 4




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSION MEETING

TUESDAY, JANUARY 21st, 2014 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
BILL SJOVANGEN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Marshall McBride, Vice-Chairman Lance Gilman, Commissioner Bill Sjovangen,
County Manager Pat Whitten, District Attorney Bill Maddox, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens,
Outside Counsel Bob Morris, Deputy District Attorney Anne Langer, Government Affairs Director
Greg “Bum” Hess, Public Works Director Mike Nevin, Senior Planner/ Administrative Officer Austin
Osborne, Justice of the Peace Eileen Herrington, Community Development Deane Haymore,
Communications Director Dave Ballard, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Recorder Jen Chapman, Tourism
Director Deny Dotson, Community Services Cherie Nevin and Fire Chief Gary Hames.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:02am

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for January 21, 2014

Dean Haymore requested that Port of Subs read as Isabel’s Kitchen, a DBA has been submitted to
his office.

Mark Joseph Phillips stated that items 1. and M under Business License Second Readings need to
be corrected. Mr. Haymore explained this item will be continued and corrected for the next
meeting.

Motion: Approve the agenda for January 21, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
Gilman Seconded by Commissioner Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

1




4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for November 19, 2013

Mr. Whitten addressed an email received from Janet Houts requesting additional comments be
included in the minutes. He explained that the minutes are an overview and are not verbatim.

Motion: Approve the minutes for November 19, 2013, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for December 3, 2013

Motion: Approve the minutes for December 3, 2013, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for January 7, 2014

Motion: Approve the minutes for January 7, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA
7. For possible action approval of Treasurers Report for December 2013

8. For possible action approval to cancel the Commission Meeting of March 4, 2014 to allow
Commissioners and staff to participate in the National Association of Counties annual Legislative
Conference is Washington DC.

9. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:

a. CORIMA INT'L MACHINERY - Contractor/Via Medini SNC - Vigarano Pieve Italy
(Ardagh Supplier)
BENJAMIN FRANKLIN PLUMBING - Contractor/5401 Longley Lane, Reno (Contractor)
WILD HORSE GALLERY & GIFT - General/145 South C Street (Retail) VC
SIERRA CONSTRUCTION & DEV - Contractor/1215 Kleppe #9, Sparks (Contractor)
SIEMENS METALS TECHNOLOGIES - Contractor/501 Technology Dr., Canonsburg, PA
(Ardagh Supplier)
WESTERN INDUSTRIAL CONTRACTORS, INC. - Contractor/14805 E Moncrieff PL,
Aurora, CO (Ardagh Supplier)
g. TRUCKEE MOUNTAIN HOME CENTER - Contractor/11403 Brockway, Truckee, CA

(Fireplace Installation)

© oo o

[

END OF CONSENT AGENDA




Motion: Approve the consent agenda, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

10. DISCUSSION (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:

We will be presenting actual vs. budgeted figures review for the six months ending December 31,
2013. We've had great meetings with the department heads and have found several things which
will make the process for this review in the upcoming months even better. There have been
corrections to some account numbers and discovery that some vendors have overcharged, which is
being addressed. This is proving to be a great auditing tool. He went on to present the status of the
General Revenue account which he stated is tracking well.

Mr. Whitten addressed the Commissioner account, which is at 46% of plan on the expenses
and General Administrative account at 33% to plan.

Ms. Stephens addressed the Clerk/Treasurer and District Court account. She covered the
Clerk/Treasurer budget first, stating that the expenses are at 42%. Under District Court the
Public Defender is over budget at 59%. This will level out as the fees are collected from the
Defendants.

Ms. Chapman addressed the Recorder account at 44%. She explained why some accounts
were over budget due to the purchase of security paper for marriage licenses, telephone,
training and travel. All the overages are expected to level out as those costs are now past.
Bill Sjovangen asked about storage space needs. Ms. Chapman explained that the answer is
very complicated as they deal with historical as well as digital preservation. Pat Whitten
mentioned that digital storage space is getting less expensive as time goes by. Ms.
Chapman explained that much is being put to “the cloud” as well as we move on.

Mr. Gallagher presented the Assessor and Technology Fund on behalf of Jana Seddon.
This account is at 42%, which is very good.

Mr. Nevin addressed the Building & Grounds expenses at 37%. The Swimming Pool
account is at 53% which is fine as it is seasonal and really only has June left in the fiscal in
the fiscal year. The Service account is running at 42%. Road account is at 34%. Water
account is at 28%. Sewer expenses are at 37%.

* Mr. Nevin shared a story concerning a street sweeper that caught on fire last week in TRI.
He is working with the insurance adjuster and looking into rental of a new piece of
equipment until a new one is purchased.

¢ He also mentioned that BLM has approved the request for land conveyance in and around
the sewer treatment plant.

e A sewer incident on K Street involving the system on Taylor street that was installed around
1873, involved removal of a 50 foot section of the line. He showed pictures of the blockage
and thanked Lyon County for their help with their equipment and time. Comptroller
Hugh Gallagher explained that when we get funds from a grant, its revenues goes to
the General fund and then whatever department does the work for that particular
project gets the expense item and that’s how things like this get handled.

Sheriff Antinoro addressed the Sheriff account at 40% and the Jail Fund at 60% (40% after
adjustments to overtime and unemployment). He discussed the overage in the overtime




line item. The majority of the overtime is accrued during the first part of the year during
the event season, He continued with the Unemployment line item and postage.

The annual jail inspection has been completed. We had a glowing review and
addressed some training areas we are already addressing,

Last week met with Tad Fletcher, chief of alternative sentencing in Carson City who
has requested use of Sheriff radio frequencies. We've discussed it with Pat Whitten,
Dave Ballard, and Gary Hames, and we are looking at entering into an agreement
with them, They are willing to help out when we need higher levels of supervision.
Pat Whitten explained some of the cost savings this agreement could provide.

Hugh Gallagher made some additional comments on the Sheriff's budgets and how the Jail Fund
works with it. He also talked about how unemployment is being addressed. He stressed that the
process for hiring full time positions needs to be improved because overtime kicks in to make up
when those positions are not filled. He will work with Mr. Osborne to minimize the time and
eliminate a lot of the costs. Hugh Gallagher feels the Jail fund needs to be separate from the Sheriff
fund. Gerald Antinoro explained that the problem is there is no pool to hire for the Jail and that itis a
long process to find someone.

e Mr. Haymore addressed the Community Development account running at 31%. He
explained that he is over budget in overtime due to projects in the TRI area. He is talked to
Mr. Gallagher regarding possible solutions. Mr. Haymore continues to work on business
licenses and building permits, he anticipates he will be 300-400% over in budgeted
revenues. Mr. Whitten added that this is one we will be looking at staffing models for the
next budget cycle. Vice-Chairman Gilman stated that if we were paying Dean Haymore
overtime the county would be broke. He works more than anyone and he appreciates his
work and efforts.

Mr. Haymore said that he, Mr. Whitten and Chairman McBride met with
Department of Taxation regarding the ongoing zip code issues. He has learned that
through the Post Office the County can by a zip code extension for the different
areas of the County. We have the application and will begin the procedure.

A temporary C of O was given to Gateway Commerce for 525K sq. ft. buildings and
Friday they told us that they are going to take another 425K of the building which is
good news. Also by tomorrow a 703k sq. ft. facility is being started at 3200 USA
Pkwy. A meeting has been made on the 28t of this month with the owner of Peri
Ranch to discuss a light industrial office facility on their property to help the
Lockwood community.

The Chair called for a recess at 11:45am; the meeting was called to order at 12:03pm

Mr. Gallagher commented that he has gone over the staffing needs with Mr. Haymore; he has
asked him if the industrial park started busting out at the seams would his office be able to
handle it. Mr. Haymore responded that he would not, additional staff would be needed. He
recommends we stay ahead of the ball and be ready.

¢ District Attorney Maddox addressed the account for his office which is at 38%.
* Justice of the Peace Eileen Herrington address the budget line items for her office which is
at 44%.

4




Mr. Ballard reviewed the budgeted items for the Communications Department at 42%.
Like the Sheriff his department is experiencing some overtime issues. Compared to last
year the expense has been decreased. Mr. Gallagher stated that when the budgets were
prepared last year overtime was a big part of it. Mr. Ballard has made a dramatic
improvement when compared to last year.
 Hugh Gallagher mentioned that overtime in a 24-7 operation, such as

Communications, constitutes a period of accruing and then using it.
Mr. Gallagher presented the IT budget, at 43% on behalf of Director James Deane who is
out with a new child. A lot of the expenses are due to them assuming the training building
which used to be paid by Emergency Mgt. and Fire and were not budgeted to this
department but will be augmented. The training overage represents useful software James
Deane purchased to test fixes before they are installed.
Mr. Gallagher covered his budget for the Comptroller’s Office 63%. He explained that
much of his overage is due to Geri's early retirement and bringing Jennifer McCain in
early. Pat Whitten complimented the departments on the coverage of this critical function
flawlessly, and while one department may show the burden of the adjustment, others will
show the benefit.
Fire Chief Gary Hames started with the 030 Fire Fund at 50%. Overtime is directly related
to the loss of five positions. Salaries are down and overtime up due to that, but they more
than cover each other. The ambulance billing was taken in house at the beginning of the
fiscal year. That part time position was utilized almost as almost full time for the first three
months, but has now been eliminated and absorbed so will even out in the second half of
the year. Travel will be adjusted because of the travel to Utah for a new water tender that
should have been billed to 045. Equipment and maintenance for hydro testing on
breathing apparatus and will level out by the end of the year. Auto Maintenance is due to
an aging fleet. It cannot be sugar-coated. We are over budget and the Lockwood engine is
at 80k miles which is very high. The ambulances are a big part of the problem with a
multitude of catastrophic errors. The 040 Wild Land Fund is at 60%. Fire season causes a
spike in the beginning of the fiscal year and it should level out. Insurance is also paid a
little in advance. Pat Whitten complimented Fire Chief, Gary Hames on the internalization
of Wild Land Fire from NDF which went extremely well and is much better situation now.
Mutual Aid Fund 045 is new to this fiscal year and was set up similarly to the emergency
fund and is doing very well. The print out does not reflect a $125,000 that was GL to the
fire fund, so the 143% is not accurate. We are far ahead of the game so far this year. We've
exceeded anticipated revenue by $50k.

e Mr. Hames took a moment to thank the board for this exercise as it gave department
heads an opportunity to review things and even to find mistakes and make
corrections they may not have otherwise.

Mr. Gallagher offered closing comments following the budget presentation by the individual
departments, He explained that the personal property will increase following the billings that
are done following the closing of the roll. Centrally Assessed will be received most likely in
May from the State which will be a sizeable amount. He mentioned that 040 and 045 are new
and necessary to distinguish line items that occur outside the county. The wild land fire
account also distinguishes those activities from structure incidents that are the county’s
responsibility. He thanked all of the department heads for their work and diligence.

5




Vice-Chairman Gilman and Commissioner Sjovangen thanked everyone too. It was very
informative.

Chairman McBride continued with the staff reports,

District Attorney Maddox:

* He stated that we are desperate for foster families within Storey County. He hopes Angela
Mann can note it in the paper, and that if anyone is interested they can contact the Department
of Child and Family Services, even to apply to do it on an emergency basis. He hates to see
children going through the trauma of being taken away from the family and then having to be
removed from the community as well because of the shortage of foster homes.

Senior Planner/Administrative Officer Austin Osborne;
* Dayton Valley Conservation District has no funding for weed abatement. He will seek other
funds and labor but it will be a challenge.
* [ will be working on a proposal for this board for Storey County to join in the Carson Water
Sub-conservancy District’s regional flood plain plan and the FEMA charter. It will also provide
us with CRS credits.

Planner Dessie Redmond:

» 5She provided an update on the master plan. The planning team had a visit from VSI who
partnered with Nevada Rural Housing Authority and had questions about housing data in the
County. We'll be able to use this data to help inform the housing chapter of the master plan.
She also is working with the Assessor to run queries to get more data for this.

* She announced that 125 people have taken the community survey, but they are looking for
more input and it is on the home page while they are working on the master plan, so please
spread the word for people to continue filling that out.

» Staff conducted a lot consolidation ordinance for the board’s review and the next they will be
working on is an animal ordinance.

Government Affairs Director Greg “Bum” Hess:

» Last Tuesday he attended the Washoe County commission meeting as we were on the agenda
for the boundary line adjustment. It was a 4-1 vote to start working with our staff to come up
with a boundary line adjustment at the north end on property owned by TRI that we want to
bring into Storey County. Bob Sader and he both testified on behalf of the county and it went
well. There were some comments on Sunny Hills that should be rectified before the final vote.

River District Merilee Miller:
* Had a fantastic holiday celebration in the area.

11. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
Commissioner Sjovangen will have updates next meeting from NACO.

Vice-Chairman Gilman is excited that TRI is doing very well.

Chairman McBride complemented Mr. Gallagher and the other department heads on today’s
exercise in budgeting.




12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: For possible action approval of Payroll Check date
01/03/14 for $463,365.87 Accounts Payable date 01/10/14 for $679,985.32 and $4,384.87
Chairman McBride abstained to a check being drafted to a company he represents.

Motion: Approve Payroll Check date 01/03/14 for $463,365.87 Accounts Payable date 01/10/14
for $679,985.32 and $4,384.87, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman Gilman Seconded by
Bill Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Authorize the District Attorney and County Manager to
purchase on behalf of the County property located at 62; 70; 74 and 82 South B Street in Virginia
City for an amount not to exceed $262,500.00 plus closing escrow and title costs. Once the
property is acquired, existing residential units will hopefully be relocated within the Comstock
Historic District and the target parcels will be developed for additional off-street parking.
Additional terms and conditions are detailed in the Agenda Action Report.

Chairman McBride stated these are the 4 house immediately to the south of Courthouse.

Mr. Whitten thanked Mr. and Mrs. Gallagher for their patience. The additional terms that staff is
recommending are as follows:
» Clear property title to be conveyed on both parcels
* Total Net Proceeds to Ron Gallagher in the amount of $210k
* $210k to be paid in two equal principle installments of $105k; one being due on close of escrow
and a second equal payment, together with interest accrued on January 12, 2015. A promissory
note secured by deed of trust shall be drawn at a fixed rate equal to what Wells Fargo Bank
locally quotes as their 15 year single family residential rate with no points and no prepayment
penalty. '
* Total Net Proceeds to Bill Clark in the amount of $52,500 payable in full at COE.
» Storey County will pay 100% of escrow and title insurance costs.
¢ Close of escrow shall occur on Bill Clark’s property upon notification his tenant(s) have vacated
all properties.
» Close of escrow shall occur on Ron Gallagher’s property upon notification that all tenants have
vacated.
» As the County is buying the property for future utilization as a parking facility, Storey County
will agree to allocate 100% of the purchase price to land.
¢ During removal of the structures and grading, Storey County will agree to donate any historic
artifacts discovered to a Storey County based museum and if none are interested, will donate
the proceeds of sale distributed equally between the Historic Fourth Ward School, the Saint
Mary’s Art Center, the Liberty Engine/Firemen’s Museum and the Cemetery Foundation.
e GShould an organized archeological exploration occur, Storey County will process discovered
artifacts in the same manner outlined above.
He went on to explain that the removal of the homes will not be simple. They will be dealing most
probably with asbestos and it has been requested that the homes remain on the Comstock.

Chairman McBride asked Mr. Hess to speak on this item given his history on the Commission.




Mr. Hess said that the process began around 2004 when the market was very high and we didn’t
have enough money as the value went up close to $500k. Since then, the market made the price
reasonable. With the parking so sorely needed, and the timing and location so favorable, this is
an outstanding deal for the County.

Dale Beach asked if there is a place in the county that those buildings can be placed until
purchased, or are they going to sit there until they are purchased.

Nicole Barde, Highlands resident, asked where the money is coming from to purchase the land.
Mr. Whitten explained that contingent on the Boards action it will come from the infrastructure
fund. The other option is for it to come from the Capital Projects Fund, utilizing an
augmentation from unanticipated ending fund balances from the prior fiscal year. Ms. Barde
asked how this item moved to the top of the list out of all the other things on the Infrastructure
Fund list. Mr. Whitten explained that he believed her question had been addressed in the history
that was brought forth by the number of years that it has been worked on. Marshall McBride
explained that how wasn’t necessarily “pushed to the top of the list”.

Janet Houts stated she was reading through the payments that were requested by the seller. Will
these payments be written off as expenses? Will there be interest charged? Chairman Gillman
reiterated the previous information provided that yes, interest will be paid at the Wells Fargo
rate. She asked if the final agreement will be made public and was assured that it would.

Mr. Phillips suggested that consideration of affordable housing in Virginia City is just as relative
as the need for parking.

Marlin Oshawa Tennant agreed with Mr. Phillips that the tenants of the property should be
considered.

Ron Gallagher stated that yes he is selling this property, yes it has been in negotiations for 10
years and yes there are have been multiple appraisals done. It was not a secret; however, it was
never firm. Once it becomes firm, it gives them two months to vacate even though the rental
agreement is only for one.

Janet Houts wondered if the tenants have been offered the opportunity to buy the property and
help in moving,.

Motion: Approve authorizing the District Attorney and County Manager to purchase on behalf of
the County property located at 62; 70; 74 and 82 South B Street in Virginia City for an amount not
to exceed $262,500.00 plus closing escrow and title costs, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-
Chairman Gilman Seconded by Commissioner Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

14, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: On whether to extend the Storey County Infrastructure Tax

and approval of the plan of projects to be funded by the tax.




Mr. Morris explained the necessary process that will need to be followed in ordered to get this
passed. The plan itself, which is being discussed today, was presented in December. It was
continued with a workshop scheduled and completed on January 7t and is now back on the
agenda to be voted on. NRS also stipulates that if you have completed the projects under the
tax, you need to determine whether to continue the tax or not. So, we are addressing two
separate motions today; one to extend the tax, and the other to approve the list of projects.

Mr. Whitten addressed the extension of the tax first. This is a Y4 cent sales tax override. The
Department of Taxation provides us with generic retail reports that tell us how our businesses
are doing by market sector. This tax is born predominately by new construction in TRI. He is an
advocate of internet sales tax and that will make a small difference, but the main contributors are
the huge commerce center projects he mentions involving millions of dollars. So this is not a tax,
in essence, on the citizens of or visitors or to Storey County although that does contribute. Staff
recommends that we approve the first motion to extend the infrastructure tax.

Nicole Bard, Virginia City Highlands Resident clarified that they are first voting on extending the
tax. Mr. Morris explained that once the plan is approved and that in the next meeting there
would be a second reading. Ms. Bard thought that the first reading had been continued. Mr.
Morris understood that it was the second reading that had been continued. That will be verified.
She asked if the new draft would include more than what was in the first two items on 169. The
commissioners said that yes, it would. She also asked if there was a sunset on the old tax and is
that why they have to vote to extend it. Mr. Morris explained that since they are writing a new
plan list, that it follows that they approve an extension of the tax. She then asked if the plan list
could be changed at will. Pat Whitten said that they have addressed this repeatedly in these
meetings. This is a dynamic list. Items on this list may be funded by other sources such as
grants. Staff expects that periodically, perhaps annually, perhaps as part of a budget exercise,
they will revisit the ordinance and the plan and update it for unanticipated changes. Ms. Bard
asked if it would come up for public comment, and Mr. Whitten assured her that absolutely it
would as it has to according to how NRS is structured because the ordinance and the plan must
be together.

Ms. Houts stated she has been trying to get what this has been spent on in the past. She
understands that according to the Department of Taxation, there should be 3 years planning for
any item on the plan. Mr. Whitten stated for the record that he knows of no 3 years planning
stipulation on the infrastructure NRS.

Mr. Beach provided his infrastructure plan document for Mark Twain. He explained his
background in erosion control and reiterated his complaint about the plan’s exclusion of the
erosion problem. The commissioners noted that it was, in fact, on the list.

Mr. Phillips stated that since the last meeting he did a little bit of a title search on the
DA/Sheriff’s Office and he discovered that the building has not been purchased yet. What he
found was an agreement for payments and for surface rights only. Mr. Whitten said that for the
record, it is a matter of semantics because when you agree to make payments on something, you
don’t own it free and clear until that payment contract has been completed. The county has
purchased it and we are paying over time for it as was requested by the seller.




Motion: Approve extension of the infrastructure tax, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
Gilman Seconded by Commissioner Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
Mr. Whitten reiterated that this is a dynamic document.

Mr. Gallagher stated that understanding that it would probably take about 42 years to complete
this list, he was given the task of determining what could be done in the shortest amount of time.
The Lakeview water line is a project that will take five or six years, so it could be funded over time
with our revenue stream. Other projects can be done as funds become available. We have a
higher than anticipated opening fund balance that we will be applying to the current budget
cycle. My proposal is to take $2.5 million from the ending fund balance and apply it to Capital
Projects for the 2015 fiscal year. Mr. Whitten stressed again that they are not suggesting
prioritizing these projects presently.

Ms. Houts on estimated costs, asked if this for future infrastructure projects or has it already been
spent. Mr. Whitten said no, but that there are encumbrances on the Fire Station, the Sheriff’s
building and the Gallagher property, where some money has been spent.

Motion: Approve the infrastructure plan of projects as outlined by Mr. Gallagher in the amount of
$7,655,000.00, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman

Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: To approve the first reading of ordinance 13-254 adding
section 16.24.068 Lot consolidation to the Storey County Code to create a lot consolidation
process and amending section 16.24.070 revision to acreage, and providing for other properly
related matters.

Planner Dessie Redmond:

For the last several years the county has been using a lot consolidation procedure to allow an
owner of continuous lots to merge into a single parcel of land. Staff has reviewed this process and
is recommending to the board to approve the first reading of this ordinance that solidifies this
procedure and puts it into the code.1

Motion: Approve first reading of ordinance 13-254, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
Gilman Seconded by Commissioner Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

16. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. AUSENCO PSI, LLC - Contractor/1320 willow Pass Road, Concord, CA (Engineer)
b. PROTECH COATINGS - Contractor/ 9911 South 500 west, Sandy, UT (Contractor)

10




c. NEVADA TRAVEL CONNECTION - Home Business/399 Wild Horse Canyon, Sparks

(Travel Agent)

FRONTIER CRANE - Contractor/3445 Golden Valley, Reno {Crane Rental Service)

DESERT AIR, LLC - Contractor/1995 Boise Drive, Sparks (HVAC Contractor)

R.F. MACDONALD CO - Contractor/8565 White Fir St., Reno (Boiler Sales & Service)

CROWN BEVERAGES, INC. - General/600 Spice Island Dr., Sparks (Beverage Distributor)

TAHOE RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LLC - Developer/420 USA Pkwy, TRI

SOUDRONIC, LIMITED - Contractor/465 North State Rd, Manor, NY (Can Manufacturer

Machinery)

ARROW CONSTRUCTION - Contractor/100 Ave of the Couleurs, Rainbow Bend

PORT OF SUBS (WALMART) dba ISABELLA’S KITCHEN - General/2155 USA Parkway,

TRI

MUSTANG RANCH EMPORIUM, LLC - General/5 N C Street (Restaurant & Retail) VC

m. MUSTANG RANCH MERCANTILE, LLC - General/ 62 N C Street (Retail) VC

EUCLID CHEMICAL COMPANY - Contractor/3735 Green Rd., Beachwood, OH (Concrete

Supplier)

COMSTOCK VISIONS, INC. - Nonprofit/150 North Summit (Event Promotion) VC

HEATTEK, INC. - Contractor/ PO Box 347, Ixonia, WI (Can Equipment Installation)

TRINITY ALARMS, INC. - Contractor/660 Buckskin Drive, Fernley (Alarm Installer)

MOUNTAIN FOAM & COATING - Contractor/305 Highway 395, Washoe Valley

(Contractor)

. MINDEN HEATING & AIR - Contractor/ 2701 Gordon Avenue, Minden (HVAC Contractor)

t. STERLING PRODUCTS, INC. - Contractor/1100 East Woodfield, Schaumburg, IL
(Equipment Installation)

u. AEC, INC - Contractor/1100 East Woodfield, Schaumburg, IL (Equipment Installation)

v. RAPID CONSTRUCTION - Contractor/3072 Research Way, Carson City (Contractor)

w. AFFORDABLE FILTRATION - Contractor/999 Ridgeview Drive, Reno (Water Filtration)

~ e o

—

o

R

Senior Planner/ Administrative Officer Austin Osborne:

Community Development recommends all items are approved with an amendment to item K
which should read “dba Isabella’s Kitchen and Walmart” same address. Mr. Whitten had
updated information texted to him to continue items J, L, and M.

Motion: Approve items A-I, K and O-W, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman Gilman
Seconded by Commissioner Sjovangen

Motion: Continue items J, L and M, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman Gilman
Seconded by Commissioner Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
17. CORRESPONDENCE: None

18. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
Ms. Barde asked that next time there is going to be a budget review it be indicated on the
Agenda. She asked what the status is of the Virginia City Highlands park fund monies.
Commissioner Sjovangen stated at the next meeting there will be an item regarding a small grant

i1




program for each of the communities which would supplant the park fund. Her question is
where the money that has been paid into those funds is. Mr. Sjovangen did not know the
answer. She felt that was not acceptable. NRS 278.4983 item 5 says that if those funds are
collected that a separate fund needs to be established and the money has to be spent on a park in
the community from which it was collected. She feels there is money missing. She thinks they
may have gone into the Swimming Pool Fund. Highlands residents want the money. Mr.
McBride said there was not always a park fund, there were funds utilized in creating the park
that’s out there now, and he doesn’t think there is accurate reporting from the time she is
referring to that will provide an answer. Mr. Sjovangen feels it is a “dead horse” as it has been an
itern of contention for years and the numbers simply don’t match. Ms. Bard asked if they were
still charging the $250 per building permit and where it is going. Mr. Whitten explained that yes,
they are still charging it, though it rarely happens now with the decline in building, and that the
funds are going into the park fund with the four areas as line items. The problem was that back
in Maggie’s day it was not accounted for in that way. Ms. Bard is concerned that money that has
been paid is now gone. Mr. Sjovangen explained if the commission votes favorably next month it
will be supplanted as he has requested $40k to be divided equally between the four communities
as an initial amount. She still feels the answer is unacceptable.

Mr. Beach stated that in November 1991 he got a building permit that had $500 to the school fund
and $500 to the park fund. I heard that after the park they spent it on the basketball court. He
presented information on a frost free hydrant with three costs of under $80 that should be simple
to install. It does not turn itself off though and the spring latch to do that is expensive. He's
upset that money is going to the Fire Department because fires rarely happen and it’s not good
use of his money. Mr. Whitten stated for the record that Ms. Millsap’s comment in the last
meeting was about a drinking fountain, not a yard hydrant and was appropriate.

Mr. Phillips asked that the record reflect the absence of Deny Dotson during the budget review
and we received no information on Community Service or the VCTC. Mr. Whitten stated for the
record, that they have gone through great lengths with the Department of Taxation regarding the
operation VCTC and their budget is a subject for their meetings not ours.

Frank Ensign, Painted Rock resident. His contention is that property taxes in the rural areas are
too high and inconsistent with other taxes in the State. We rate 50th in the United States. Out of
17 counties in the state, we are fourth. Storey only has one tax district. He feels some properties
are rural and should be distinguished. The surrounding counties rural districts average out to
2.75 as opposed to 3.46 which we pay. The Fire and General funds differ greatly between Storey
and Clark County. Chairman McBride explained that all of Storey County is rural including
Virginia City that houses the county seat. Unincorporated Washoe County’s rate is 3.9528.
Yerington is at 3.5957. During his campaign, he did a lot of research on this. No matter where
we live in the county, we all have an equal stake in supporting the services. Mr. Sjovangen noted
that he was only looking at property tax when there are a wide variety of sources of income for
any government that need to be considered in the discussion. You cannot do an ‘apples to
apples’ comparison between counties based only on property taxes because it doesn’t give you
the whole picture. Mr. Toby Whitten said that fundamentally we cannot charge different rates,
but we may if we offer different services. The county has no control over the tax rates. He
explained it in a little more detail and that it is very complex.

12




Ms. Houts regarding the financial report, she cannot comment on it. On November 19, Mr.
Gilman said she should get paid for her work with the community center and thanked him and
feels she should get paid as their “friends” are. She complained about Deny Dotson’s pay, Bum
Hess’s pay, Mr. Gilman’s consultant fees and she doesn’t know what they have done. The
commissioners also get a retirement benefit. Storey County has a lot of money they pay to their
friends, but not to her. Mr. Whitten feels this needs a response, but there is too much to address
in what she brought up.

19. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the call of the Chair at 2:57pm

Respectfully submitted,

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk-{'reasurer

13




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 18, 2014 Estimate of time required: 2 min,

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ |

—

2.

. Title: Approval of Minutes for February 4, 2014

Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.
. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969
. Staff summary: Minutes from the February 4, 2014 Board of County Commissioners Meeting
. Supporting materials: Attached
. Fiscal impacet: N/A
Funds Available: Fund: _ Comptroller
. Legal review required: N/A
____ District Attorney
. Reviewgd by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
____ County Manager Other agency review:

. Beard action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

ey
——

Agenda Item No. &5




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 4T, 2014 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE : BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
BILL SJOVANGEN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Commissioner Sjovangen, District Attorney Maddox, Clerk &
Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Deputy District Attorney Anne Langer, Special Counsel Robert Morris,
Fire Chief Gary Hames, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Public Works
Director Mike Nevin, Senior Planner Dessie Redmond, Community Services Cherie Nevin and Senior
Planner/ Administrative Officer Austin Osborne,

Absent: Vice-Chairman Gilman

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:04 A.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chairman. The Chairman stated Vice-Chairman Gilman
is absent today. He recently had back surgery and is unable to sit for prolonged periods of time.
He is in continual contact with Staff via phone.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chairman led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for February 4, 2014

Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City resident, stated that on item 19 T and ] - there is no mention
of a liquor license.

Motion: Approve the agenda for February 4, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)




DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: (Originally listed as item 10.)Appoint Broker of Record to
provide brokerage services for the County’s Health and Benefits Insurance programs. Sealed
Requests for Proposal from five brokers were opened on January 24, 2014. Qualified respondents are
being interviewed and staff will provide a summary recommendation prior to the February 4th
Commission Meeting.

Austin Osborne provided an overview of the request and interview process. We posted a
Request for Proposal between December 26 and January 24 in the RGJ, Nevada Appeal,
Comstock Chronicle, on the website and a few others for insurance brokerage services. We
received five submittals including A&H Insurance, Inc., (our existing broker), ACS Business
Insurance Services, Inc., Ingalls and Associates, LLC, Dillon Insurance Services, and L/P
Insurance Services. L./P Insurance was found to be the best fit as broker of record for Storey
County. This is not a reflection on our current broker’s service which has been good. It is just
that LP came out ahead of A&H. Their public sector experience, education and qualifications,
organizational diversity, and depth of succession were found to be beyond those of the other
applicants. In-House resources include specialized legal counsel, a team approach, and personal
service accessibility. They will assess trends and patterns throughout the year instead of just
during open enrollment. They also have resources to enable competitive bidding.

Kevin Monahan from L/P Insurance Services assured the board that they would hit the ground
running as soon as today to be sure that the taxpayer money being directed to these costs are
managed aggressively. Pat Whitten added that many things were considered in this decision
and thanked A&H for wonderful service the past seven years.

Motion: Appoint L/P Insurance Services, Inc. as Broker of Record to provide brokerage services
for the County’s Health and Benefits Insurance programs, Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote (summary: Yes=2)

4. For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 01/17/14 for $383,748.27 and Accounts
Payable date for 1/21/14 for $123.83, date 1/24/17 for $114,582.44 and $3,321.17. (Originally
listed as item 4 of the Consent Agenda)

Mr. Phillips thanked Mr. Whitten for his response to his agenda request concerning Liquid Blue.
Mr. Whitten clarified that these are routine bills that the comptroller handles for the VCTC and
that they are working with Mr. Morris on an amended contract to correct errors.

Nicole Barde, Virginia City Highlands Resident asked if these bills were being paid from Storey
county monies. It was explained that no, they are paid from the VCTC.

Motion: Approve claims as submitted, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

CONSENT AGENDA

5. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:
a. Stolle Machinery - Contractor/6949 S. Potomac, Centennial, CO (Ardagh Supplier)

2




b. Clean Harbors Env Svcs - Contractor/ 1200 Marietta Way, Sparks (Contractor)
c. Videojet Technologies, Inc, - Contractor/1500 Mittle Blvd., Wood Dale, IL (Contractor)
d. WTR Electric, Inc. - Contractor/6005 Hockberry Road, Reno (Contractor)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve the consent agenda for February 4, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote (summary: Yes=2)

6. DISCUSSION (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Francis Melhop, Saint Mary’s Art Center:

* Trying to open up to the public more than in the past. In the past the focus has been on
restoration of the building and now they are able to work more on the arts side of things. They
have opened up the program for artists from all over the world to come for a month and live
and work on their art. A second bedroom and studio space has been opened so they can rotate
two artists. They have international and local shows of art in the six galleries. She thanked
Storey County for their support. Commissioner Sjovangen asked if they have a price for the
elevator yet, and she said it was $150k which they are looking at a grant from Otis for.
Becoming ADA compliant would be very important in order to be eligible for other
government grants. County Manager Pat Whitten complimented Francis on her leadership
and progress.

 Francis left invitations for the Exhibitions Opening Reception on February 15t from 1-4pm

Adam Robello, Chairman of the Mark Twain Community Center:

* Recently had a complaint filed against them for the open meeting law by the Attorney General
and with the help of Bill Maddox we got word back that they found in our favor and that we
were not in violation.

* Weare filling up our calendar and making good use of the facility.

» Addressing rumors that the board was considering revoking use of the facility to one or more
groups and that is untrue.

» The library is coming in and we have made some changes to the location of our office in order
to accommodate it.

* We are beginning committees to plan future events.

¢ Board of directors have discussed being liaison to the Storey County Board, but have decided
that we have our hands full with running the center and do not want to do that at this time.

¢ March 15 planning a health fair.

» We have 10 computers and need desks to put them on,

Pam Abercrombie, Community Chest:

* Interviewing this Thursday for the library director.

» Trying to identify services that the Lockwood community wants.

* Making progress on the second phase of the community center on Carson Road. They have
two gifts secured and are looking at two more to get that finished.

¢ She will be meeting with Community Services Director, Deny Dotson and Grants and
Emergency Management Coordinator, Cherie Nevin on Wednesday to help out with the

3




rummage sale and free dump day. She wants to bring in the Global Voice youth to help clean
up yards for the elderly and disabled.

Grants and Emergency Management Coordinator, Cherie Nevin:

Extended thanks to Laura and Adam in Mark Twain and will be working with them on the
Health Fair tentatively scheduled for March 15%.

Last Wednesday, January 29, we held a flu shot clinic at the Lockwood Community/Senior
Center. The Fire Department was also on hand to provide blood pressure checks. It was also
the day of their food pantry so we probably had about 50 people come through and vaccinated
13.

We received the literature for the NACO dental program which is in the commissioner’s office,
Attended the Lockwood CC board meeting on January 28t. They are doing well.

Concerning recent swarm of earthquakes - things have been quiet since Friday. Working with
the UNR seismology lab to bring them in to do some education at the schools and with some
community groups.

We will be meeting tomorrow for the “Keep Storey County Clean” event to be held the first
weekend of May.

Commission on Cultural Affairs grant hearings will be held March 6% in Reno. On February
27d T'll be meeting with Barbara Mackey and Francis from the Arts Center to refine
presentations for grant applications.

Continuing to do outreach with local community groups.

Planner Dessie Redmond:

Staff investigated a nuisance complaint on Prospector Road in Mark Twain. They may be
buying and selling goods without a business license and we are in full force on this one. If this
is the case, they are also in violation of the zoning code. She thanked Dale Beach, Storey
County Resident for bringing it to their attention.

A violation on Howard Street for short-term rental has been addressed.

Master plan: Staff has toured the cemetery and received a copy of their master plan and they
are checking to be sure both plans are cohesive in applicable areas.

Dean and she attended the Trans-Sierra Coalition workshop to find commonalities in the
participating counties in Nevada and California as far as transportation plans. They are
drafting the Trans-Sierra Transportation Plan which includes interstate 80 past TRI so USA
Pkwy comes into play.

Dessie will be attending a pictometry conference later this week with other staff members and
will report back on that at the next meeting.

Public Works Director Mike Nevin:

I have been working with the insurance adjustor on the street sweeper that we lost. The
appraisal came back at $128,175. As of yesterday ASC is researching another alternative and
reconsideration of actual replacement cost. A new unit came in at $243,723 based on special
pricing for municipalities. We will continue to try to resolve this large difference in price. A
rental price came back at $9000 per month which is not workable for the county, so we are
looking into a good used one to have as a backup and have located a couple of them. We've
inspected one unit and have agreed to purchase it at $38,500 if it is brought up and running to
our specifications. Hopefully we may have it delivered sometime next week.

4




Last Wednesday, I met with a contractor out of the Fernley area who does services with sewer
and water and has the capability to flush and clean culverts. The flood event back in June
along Portofino and Milan in the industrial park clogged some culverts with debris. We
agreed to dig them out to about four feet. We will do two out of the seven to see how it goes
and have agreed on a price and will be working on getting them flushed and cleaned.

I'll be attending the Future View Conference in Texas with other county staff from Saturday
through Wednesday.

Commissioner Sjovangen asked if the water faucet in Mark Twain had been repaired yet.
Mike said that the yard hydrant down there has not worked for years and was to non-potable
water. They don’t use it so they removed it.

Senior Planner/ Administrative Officer Austin Osborne;

Open enrollment for health benefits will go until May 1st.

Reminder that on February 20t at 6pm there will be a town hall meeting here with the
Planning Commission. The potential applicant for the Crown Point Mill is proposing to
reopen that as a vat leaching cyanide processing plant related to mining. At this point staff is
not going to take a position publically. We are going to allow the applicant to come to this
town hall meeting to express his plans and make his presentation and then receive comments
and concerns from the public. Staff will be taking notes and doing research to come up with a
recommendation if he chooses to apply for a special use permit for that facility.

Donna has been working on a well log for the county with a full database for every well in the
county. In the future, we hope to be able to give this data to the GIS team that can map it all
out.

Fire Chief, Gary Hames:

Fuels crew started yesterday. They are chipping in the Highlands until the weather clears and
then will be taking on the dead and dying trees along Geiger Grade hopefully next week.

The first draft of our wild land fire grant of the Community Wildfire Preparedness Plan was
issued last week. I will hopefully have that to you for review within the next couple of weeks.
We do see that the fuels reduction program has been effective.

We are working with the District Attorney’s office to get a first draft of the 2012 International
Fire Code and International Wild Land Urban Interface Codes with all the amendments to you
for review to you in the next couple of weeks.

The initial application for the grant for fuel reduction in the Highlands had only one bid in it.
It has gone out to bid again. The grant had about $66k in it to complete that one area of project
work. Interestingly, one of the vendors is a Highlands resident with a Highlands based fuels
reduction company and came in with a bid of only $12k. We are pleased to be able to keep the
funds local and the work should start in the next two weeks. Working on next year’s fuel
grant and we are looking at equipment to enable our own crews to do this work.

Last week we interviewed 9 candidates for the position of Fire Prevention Officer, We have
offered the position and they will be starting next Monday. This person is a Highlands
resident and has a wealth of knowledge. He comes from the US Forest Service with law
enforcement background, worked for hot shot crews, did some partnership ventures with Cal
Fire and US Forest Service on plan reviews so is very familiar with those. He is also a
contractor and brings all that building knowledge to this position. His name is David Silva.

5




* We are working with the comptroller’s office on the USDA loan for the ambulance chassis and
engines and that’s moving along well. _

* Iwill also be with other county staff from the 8% through the 12t in Texas for the pictometry
training.

» Gary also offered the assistance of the department with the Community Chest efforts in yard
cleanup.

¢ The Nevada Fire Chiefs Association met in December to review the Statewide Fire Master
Mutual Aid Plan which was written in 1983 and updated in 1994 and is therefore a little
antiquated. Our goal is to update it this year which is no easy task because it involves 17
counties, and multiple fire districts and departments.

¢ The volunteer recruitment grant is going very well.

Commissioner Sjovangen asked about additional grading near Cottonwood. Gary said he would try
to coordinate with Mike Nevin on it and see what they could do.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:

» Went over the timeline for the 2015 budget process. We will probably be fairly conservative
with County revenue projections that as we have some good tools available to us to do them
but have no way of knowing future projects, especially in TRI. There will be a staff report with
recommended approval of changes to business license fees throughout the County which have
not been addressed in the last twelve years. The department heads will be given a spreadsheet
to work with to submit their budgets by line item by the March 1st deadline. 24-7 departments
will be staffing to full-time equivalents in order to avoid overtime.

February 15, 2014: County Revenue Projections Due

Saturday March 1, 2014:  Department Heads 2015 Budget Due

Saturday March 29, 2014: Review with Pat

Tuesday April 1, 2014: Commission Approval of 2015 Tentative Budget
Tuesday April 15, 2014:  Tentative Budget Due Department of Taxation
Tuesday May 20, 2014: ~ Commission Approval of 2015 Final Budget
Saturday May 31, 2014:  Final Budget Due Department of Taxation

* As Chief Hames mentioned, we are going to ask for about $2 million in funding for emergency
fire equipment through the USDA. I anticipate this will be completed in approximately 3
months.

Anne Langer, Assistant District Attorney
* We were asked through the Sheriff's department and “We Care” to assist with putting
together pro-bono programs to help seniors put together simple wills and powers of attorney
to deal with medical and financial issues. In November we went to Lockwood and everyone
was very interested in the presentation and asked if we would do it again. We are going to
hold the program again on March 19% and hope to do it in Mark Twain in April or May. We
will also add some discussion of the DNR forms with the fire department.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
e Regarding the new DNR, this is the “Do Not Resuscitate” order and the law has changed and
if you have executed one, you need to update to the new form,

6




» Clarified that Dave Silva, the new hire in the fire department, is not related to anyone on staff.
He was head and shoulders the best pick and we were excited to meet him and to have him on
staff. Looking forward to having him work especially with some of the big companies that
will be coming in.

* Stressed that the Future View Pictometry Conference has no additional costs as the flights,
hotels, and registration is included in the annual fee that we pay to Pictometry. This is the
company that flies over the County and gives us updates.

¢ Mentioned that Karen Ingalls of Ingalls, LLC is doing a great job as our broker on the claim for
the street sweeper to get us a good valuation on it.

« Lance Gilman is still working on the economic development and on the County side and he is
working hard even during his recovery and will be back soon,

7. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

Commissioner Sjovangen stated he is busy as usual with lots of meetings all over the State. He is
taking another shot at the zip code issue in the Highlands, there has been a letter sent off to the
Postmaster General is Las Vegas. He reviewed the requirements of the postal code and the issues
that have identified over the years. It is the responsibility of the State Postmaster General to
assign zip codes and they need to align with political boundaries. As we know there are a
number of issues with sales tax, auto registration, smog checks, homeowners insurance, etc.
Chairman McBride added this is an important issue that needs to be corrected.

The Chairman called for a recess at 11:23am; the meeting was called to order at 11:37am

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: (Originally listed as item 11.) Approval of Storey County
Match Contract with the Division of Health Care Financing and Policy

Leah Lamborn, Chief Fiscal Officer, DHCFP presented some history on the Medicaid program
that pays 63% of indigent expenditures and the County pays the difference of 37%. This is about
the repayment of overages. $53k was projected and we are running a little over 50%. She clarified
that this is the Medicaid group that has nothing to do with Affordable Care Act. Pat Whitten
recommended approval of the contract and mentioned that we may need to revisit the indigent
tax if costs continue to escalate.

Motion: Approve Storey County Match Contract with the Division of Health Care Financing and
Policy, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

8. DISCUSSION (NO ACTIONY): Update from JoAnne Skelly, University of Nevada Cooperative
Extension on Cooperative Extension Programs. Cooperative Extension is a college at the
University of Nevada, Reno. Their goal is to provide unbiased research based knowledge to the
County through education and research and to bring the university to communities. They are a
County, State, and Federal partnership. County funding is allocated in accordance with NRS
549-020. Current funding is at $15k. Ms. Skelly made a Power Point Presentation on the three 4H
programs that are being funded, Cook Lovers, Hot Shots, and Comstock Explorers. She also
presented a number of publications related to the programs. She made suggestions for new
programs that could be available with further funding and also talked about radon testing and

7




“Living with Fire” that are not charged to any county funding. Additional CE programs that are
available:
¢ Child Abuse and Neglect Awareness Training
¢ Justin Time Parenting
¢ Nevada Youth Range Camp
e Discover your Future
Pesticide Safety Education
Grow Your Own Nevada
Green Industry Training
Master Gardeners
Pest Identification and Management

As they are at only $15k funding, they have been operating in a deficit of about $34k and would
like the commissioners to consider them when working on the current budget. Storey County is
the only county in the state that does not meet its full mill of funding, which would be $49k. She
believes Storey County is also the only county that takes it out of the General Fund instead of
making it a line item of 1-5 mil as a tax paid to Continuing Education.

. DISCUSSION (NO ACTION): Update from Ron Radil, Executive Director, Western Nevada
Development District regarding WNDD projects and activities and answer any questions from
the Commissioners. Mr. Radil went over a handout that explained comprehensive Economic
Development Strategies (CEDS) that are required for designation as an Economic Development
District (EDD). The CEDS contain nine Goals.

The basis for the WNDD is the 2012 Stronger Economies Together (SET) project with over 200
people participating. They defined these goals, and developed workgroups and received grant
funds that Mr. Radil also reviewed and are included on the handout. Agribusiness - WNDD
received a grant and will work with Washoe County Food Bank to develop a regulatory food
map for the region that will be used by small producers to know requirements for selling locally
grown foods and food products in the region. Communications and Networking - WNDD
received a grant to implement a Buy Local Northern Nevada web site: buylocalruralnv.com
which offers a free listing to locally owned regional businesses. Access to Capital - WNDD
received a grant to establish the WNDD Revolving Loan Fund. Energy - WNDD was awarded
$5k from Nevada Governor’s Office of Energy to produce on-site videos of practical application
of alternative energy videos to be placed on Facebook and Youtube. They plan to involve local
school district media programs in this effort.

They are working on an application to the Economic Development Administration (EDA) to
designate WNDD region as a “manufacturing communities” with un-manned autonomous
systems (UAS) as a basis for the application. This will give preferential treatment when applying
for various federal programs.

Pat Whitten complimented Mr. Radil on his work with WNDD and how important it is to
approach Washington with one voice for our region with shared concerns and that it is well
worth the 54000 it costs the county to participate. Ron is at every economic function he attends.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: (Originally listed as item 15.) Approval of United States
8




10.

11.

12,

Department of Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development Grant Agreement and Loan Resolution
for the Financing for the Virginia Divide Sewer System-Construction of a new Wastewater
Treatment Plan with a loan payment of $3,002,000 and a grant of $2,312,794.

Grants and Emergency Management Coordinator, Cherie Nevin with Cheryl Couch from the
USDA: In early 2013 the Storey County Commission approved and signed the USDA Letter of
Intent to meet conditions outlined in the attached letter of conditions (packet attached). The LOC
outlines all of the conditions that must be met prior to USDA Rural Development authorizing the
County to go out to bid and proceed with construction. Rural Development has worked closely
with County Staff over the last year to make sure that all of the conditions have been met. One of
the conditions is the RUS Bulletin 1780-27 “Loan Resolution” required by USDA Rural
Development. In addition a grant agreement RUS 1780-12 is required to be approved by the
County Commission to authorize grant funds to Storey County.

For this project, the loan resolution for the financing is in the amount of $3,200,000 million and
the grant of $2,312,794.00. Pat Whitten mentioned that though they are grateful for the grand
tunds, and the low terms of the loan, sewer bills will most probably be going up in order to help
fund this project.

Cheryl Couch said that they are good going ahead without the deed from BLM yet as this needs
to be in place in order to move forward. This is a standard request that is made of every
applicant.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident was hoping there would be a limit to how high
people’s sewer rates might go. He asked if there was an estimate. Without going out to bid, Pat
Whitten said they are not able to answer that yet.

Motion: Approve United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development Grant
Agreement and Loan Resolution for the Financing for the Virginia Divide Sewer System-
Construction of a new Wastewater Treatment Plan with a loan payment of $3,002,000 and a grant
of $2,312,794, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman
McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: (Heard following item 4.) Appoint Broker of Record to
provide brokerage services for the County’s Health and Benefits Insurance programs. Sealed
Requests for Proposal from five brokers were opened on January 24, 2014. Qualified respondents
are being interviewed and staff will provide a summary recommendation prior to the February
4th Commission Meeting.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: (Heard following item 7.) Approval of Storey County
Match Contract with the Division of Health Care Financing and Policy

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of interlocal agreement between the Aging and
Disability Division and the County of Storey for provision of children’s developmental services.




Pat Whitten stated that this was Austin Osborne’s subject and that they had requested a
representative from the Department of Health and FHuman Services to explain terms and
details. Absent that presence, he suggested continuance of this item.

Motion: Continue interlocal agreement between the Aging and Disability and the County of
Storey for provision of children’s developmental services, Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote (summary: Yes=2)

13, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appointment of Laura Kekule to fill the unexpired of term
of Nick Fain on the Board of Equalization, the term will expire December 31, 2015.

Pat Whitten explained that this position became vacant suddenly when Nick Fain had to answer
scheduling conflicts and demands at work. He explained that this is a complex position and one
of our most intricate volunteer boards that we use. It is a combination of one government official
and then we try to fill the rest of the board with lay people. This is where we look at the
methodologies utilized by the assessors to assess both residential and commercial properties.

Dale Beach, Storey County Resident - agreed that it is a key position, but is concerned that the
County always goes to the same few people when there are others that would volunteer including
himself. He pointed out that she is on two boards already. Chairman McBride explained that they
need to move forward with this appointment because there is not enough time between now and
the next meeting and that there may be an opening next year.

Motion: Appointment of Laura Kekule to fill the unexpired term of Nick Fain on the Board of
Equalization, the term will expire December 31, 2015, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of Ordinance 13-251, an ordinance
amending Storey County Code Chapter 3.12 to identify sales tax components, moving the
Tourism Promotion tax from chapter 3.56 to chapter 3.12, to add a provision to update the
purpose for the proceeds of the infrastructure, and providing for other properly related matters.

Robert Morris - went over the history and procedure that was followed to this point. He
explained the code updates, plan of projects inclusion, and NRS amendments that have been
made to bring it up to date. The tourism promotion tax did not have numbering and has been
corrected so that it shows up in the correct area concerning sales taxes.

Nicole Barde - Complained that the projects are not clarified as infrastructure vs. capital projects
within the ordinance. She also worries that a new project is appearing on the list. Pat Whitten
explained that it has been made clear that the list is not binding and is all encompassing and that
it has been reiterated that these monies may come from different areas depending on how they
are allocated. They may or may not be assigned to infrastructure. She called it a “blank check”
to which the board immediately responded that it is not that at all. This is only to continue
collecting the tax. When she stated she thought the list was meaningless, again, the
commissioners explained that the capital projects are listed because they may be included if the

10




capital fund isn’t enough and allows them to utilize the infrastructure tax if needed.
Commissioner Sjovangen feels that at this point at the second reading it is unnecessary to be
arguing these points. Lance Gilman explained that the board is taking the advice of legal counsel
over the arguments that have been presented. Pat Whitten added that approval will be made as
each project comes forward and priorities will identify themselves based on urgency and
opportunity.

Dave Thomas - Asked the timeframe for the list of $7.7 million projects. Pat Whitten said that it
may take 47 years. Deputy District Attorney, Robert Morris explained that there is no sunset on
the list and agreed with an approximately 50 years if they funded everything on the list. Pat
explained again that it is a dynamic process that will be addressed probably yearly. Mr. Thomas
asked how much goes into the fund yearly. Pat Whitten said approximately $200k, but it
depends on the projects that get completed. Mr. Thomas complained that 40% of the fund is
going towards a water project that only benefits 21% of the population, and that the folks in the
Highlands and Mark Twain are responsible for their own water. He also complained that no
funds have been allocated to the Highlands specifically. Commissioner Sjovangen asked why
this is the first time a Highlands resident has come forward. Mr. Thomas asked that the wording
be changed from “to” to “which may” to reflect the changeable nature of the list. Pat Whitten
agreed and explained how the list has grown when communities come forward with items they
want included. The argument on water is much more complex because it does benefit the
communities he mentioned with wild land fire drop zones, etc. He said that Mr. Thomas’
observation is understood that the water project takes up the lions share, but if that were the
argument, then the lions share should be going to TRI where these funds are generated. Lance
Gilman also noted that they cannot arbitrarily put things on the list such as a community center
for the Highlands if not one person has come forward requesting it. Robert Morris agreed that
the wording change is appropriate.

Commissioner Sjovangen mentioned that if something is not on the list and a grant becomes
available, they are out of luck, so it is important that the list be as complete as possible. Pat
Whitten addressed the V&T purchase and restoration that Mr. Thomas mentioned. Firstly, this is
about historic building preservation which is a criterion under the infrastructure ordinance.
Secondly, we hope to turn these into viable venues for events which will generate sales tax to
feed these funds. Thirdly, we may not need to go to this fund for those projects at all.

Dale Beach - Understands that with the sewer and water projects the people that use it should
have to pay for it. Lance Gilman said taxes he pays are not going into the sewer system. Pat
Whitten asked Robert Morris if he knows of any stipulation that says that the ¥4 cent tax has to be
spent where it is collected. Mr. Morris said that he attached the NRS 377 B160 that very clearly
states that water and wastewater facilities would be covered and feels that it is entirely proper.

Mr. Phillips - Stated that it is not legal for the board to get legal advice from anyone other than
the County District Attorney or the Deputy District Attorney. He also mentioned that Comstock
Mining is using the most water to no benefit of the water company. District Attorney, Bill
Maddox said that there is a specific statute that allows the commission to hire whomever they
want to get legal advice and often do that in order to get certain expertise on an issue. Pat
Whitten explained that Comstock Mining is not here to defend themselves from a “cheap shot.”
He considers the contract that the commission has negotiated in public very profitable to the

11




water system and beneficial to the County. Bill Maddox added that that use and sale of the water
to CMI is money we wouldn’t have otherwise and we would be underusing without them.

Motion: Approve second reading of Ordinance 13-251 with language change, from “to include” to
“which may include” under section 3.12.012, an ordinance amending Storey County Code
Chapter 3.12 to identify sales tax components, moving the Tourism Promotion tax from chapter
3.56 to chapter 3.12, to add a provision to update the purpose for the proceeds of the
infrastructure, and providing for other properly related matters, Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote (summary: Yes=2)

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of United States Department of Agriculture
(USDA) Rural Development Grant Agreement and Loan Resolution for the Financing for the
Virginia Divide Sewer System-Construction of a new Wastewater Treatment Plan with a loan
payment of $3,002,000 and a grant of $2,312,794. (Heard following item 9.)

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution No. 14-389 requesting the assistance of the
State of Nevada Attorney General in the prosecution of a criminal matter.

Bill Maddox explained that they have a criminal case where a family member works in their office
presenting a conflict of interest. They would like the Attorney General as an impartial judge. This
is normal protocol.

Motion: Approve resolution No. 14-389 requesting the assistance of the State of Nevada Attorney
General in the prosecution of a criminal matter, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of ordinance 13-254 adding section
16.24.068 Lot consolidation to the Storey County Code to create a lot consolidation process and
amending section 16.24.070 revision to acreage, and providing for other properly related matters.

Planner Dessie Redmond stated that the first reading of this ordinance was on January 21, 2014.
There have been no changes since then.

Mark Phillips - Questioned the economic impact of consolidation of lots. Pat Whitten said that it
would make a marginal impact and not material. Senior Planner/ Administrative Officer Austin
Osborne said that the parcels will still exist, but agreed that the impact on taxes is marginal. The
major impact is simplifying the well process.

Motion: Approve second reading of ordinance 13-254 adding section 16.24.068 Lot consolidation
to the Storey County Code to create a lot consolidation process and amending section 16.24.070
revision to acreage, and providing for other properly related matters, Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote (summary: Yes=2)

12




18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of a special use permit to construct and maintain
a single-family residence on a 75 acre parcel located in a Forestry zone, APN 004-291-22, 205
Eagle View Trail, Mark Twain, Nevada.

Planner Dessie Redmond explained that Storey County Code, Section 17.32.20 states that one
single-family detached dwelling of permanent character and location is permitted in a forestry
zone subject to securing a special use permit. In compliance with the zoning code and the master
plan there are no evident.

Pat Whitten welcomed Mr. Kraft to Storey County.
Ms. Redmond read the findings of fact as follows:

5.1.1. The special use permit complies with the purpose and intent under SCC 17.32 F Forestry
Zone in that the use will “protect areas having important environmental qualities in Storey
County from unnecessary degradation and to provide areas of very low density residential use.

5.1.2. The special use permit complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards
for the County master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map or ordinance adopted, or
under consideration pursuant to official notice by the County.

5.1.3. The special use permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the
abutting properties or the surrounding area.

9.14. The conditions of the special use permit adequately address potential fire hazards and
require compliance with the applicable fire codes, including necessary water capacity to suppress
potential fires.

51.5. The special use permit addresses Goal 1 and Objective 1.1 in Chapter 9 of the Master Plan
because granting this permit is compatible with the zoning map, master plan and previous
planning decisions.

Motion: Approve special use permit to construct and maintain a single-family residence on a 75
acre parcel located in a Forestry zone, APN 004-291-22, 205 Eagle View Trail, Mark Twain,
Nevada, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

19. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. CORIMA INT'L. MACHINERY - Contractor/Via Medini SNC - Vigarano Pieve Italy
(Ardagh Supplier)
BENJAMIN FRANKLIN PLUMBING - Contractor/5401 Longley Lane, Reno (Contractor)
WILD HORSE GALLERY & GIFT - General/145 South C Street (Retail) VC
SIERRA CONSTRUCTION & DEV - Contractor/1215 Kleppe #9, Sparks (Contractor)
SIEMENS METALS TECHNOLOGIES - Contractor/501 Technology Dr., Canonsburg, PA
(Ardagh Supplier)
WESTERN INDUSTRIAL CONTRACTORS, INC. - Contractor/14805 E Moncrieff Pl,
Aurora, CO (Ardagh Supplier)

oo o

)

13




20.

g. TRUCKEE MOUNTAIN HOME CENTER - Contractor/11403 Brockway, Truckee, CA
(Fireplace Installation)

h. ARROW CONSTRUCTION - Contractor/100 Ave of the Couleurs, Rainbow Bend

i. MUSTANG RANCH EMPORIUM, LLC - General/5 N C Street (Restaurant & Retail) VC

j- MUSTANG RANCH MERCANTILE - General/62 N C Street (Retail) VC

Chris Thompson, TRI employee brought up a point of clarification on item “I”. The current DBA
is Mustang Ranch Steak House; the operating entity is Mustang Ranch Retailers, LLC.

Motion: Continue items h-j, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by
Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

Motion: Approve items a-g, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by
Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Mr. Dave Thomas, Highlands - Concerning the Park Fund. May 11, 2010 he says he gave Pata
total on the Park fund. He explained that he does forensic accounting professionally. He
claimed that it is easy to find out definitively what should be in the fund. The County has only
spent money on the park three times. In 2002, the County purchased the initial playground
equipment and some picnic tables. In 2006, Aqua Drilling drilled a well. In 2011, there were
additional improvements done. In total, since 1992, the County has spent $58k on improvements
to the park. Since 1992 there have been conservatively 338 building permits issued in the
Highlands based on information Mr. Thomas gathered from the Assessor’s office and the
Building Department. At $250 each, that is $84,500. With $58 spent, there should be a minimum
of $26k in the fund. The Park Fund is collected pursuant to NRS 278.4983. That statute requires
the County to segregate the Park Fund for each neighborhood, putting the money into a separate
interest bearing account. The County never did that. Instead they took the monies and put them
into the General Fund. The County was not even aware of it until I informed Pat Whitten in
2010. Bill Maddox may correct me if I'm wrong, but if the County was supposed to put it in an
interest bearing account and did not do so, they would be obligated to pay a statutory or legal
interest. Fortunately, that is simple interest and does not compound, but if computed back to
1992, it comes to roughly $54k. The County should be able to figure out these amounts using
park ledgers for all the County Park Funds.

Chairman McBride asked when the legislation was enacted. Mr. Thomas said he believed it was
1992, but that in terms of Storey County; the fees have been collected since 1985. Pat Whitten
said that Dave is correct on much of what he is saying, but when fees were collected and interest
is a bit more complex than going back just to 1992. When he brought it to us in 2010, we
dedicated the Park Fund and had four line items so we are compliant except for perhaps the
interest, which we need to look into. Detailed records from Maggie Lowther just did not transfer
to the comptroller when that transition happened. Commissioner Sjovangen asked for more
detailed and hard evidence and only sees about $6k left and has not seen the hard evidence to
support these numbers. Mr. Thomas asked if they could see the records from the Building
Department. District Attorney, Bill Maddox suggested they make a public records request for it.

14




Nicole Barde, Virginia City Highlands Resident - has submitted some of the information and
will assist in gathering the records from the Building Department. She addressed Commissioner
Sjovangen’s statement that they are only trying to embarrass the County and she feels that it is an
embarrassment that the County cannot supply simple accounting information and records. Ms.
Barde attended the V&T Rail Commission meeting last Monday and asked if they were going to
pay back the money they owe us and they said it would be dealt with in the April meeting. She
got a copy of their Audit report. They had in their 2013 budget a payment to Storey County of
$435k that was either never requested or never paid. I would like a formal request to the Rail
Commission for the money they owe us and to know why the budget item was not requested.
She would also like to know if Pat Whitten's position would be posted if he were to retire. (That
was answered immediately that yes, it is protocol)

Dale Beach, Storey County Resident- In October of 1991 he went to Dean Haymore to request a
building permit and had to go pay $500 for the park fund and $500 to the school first. Lance
Gilman asked if he could get copies of the checks to verify the amounts. Mr. Beach wants to
know if the ordinance of only one unlicensed and unregistered car per property applies to the
whole county or just Virginia City. He wants someone to come take care of the junk cars all over
Mark Twain. Lance Gilman told him to contact Planner Dessie Redmond as the nuisance officer.

Donna Giboney, Mark Twain Estates resident - wants the board to know that Dale Beach does
not speak for the residents of Mark Twain. Many of us moved there so we could have our things
on our property.

Pat Whitten wanted to express that he is not embarrassed whatsoever regarding the Park Fund. We
cannot recreate records that were lost by some official that doesn’t even work for the County any
longer. He appreciates Mr. Thomas’ diligence. We will continue to take different approaches to back
into this forensically and accurately, but in the mean time we can’t recreate what we don’t have,

With regard to Dale’s comment regarding nuisances, Marshall McBride hit it right on the nose. There
is a process in place as to how you file a complaint. We are not the Gestapo and don't just tell people
to clean up their yards because we think they're dirty. Our nuisance officer is doing a great job in
following up on problems.

In answer to Nicole Barde’s question on the V&T as to why we did not demand money in the last
fiscal year it is because we did not consider any of our rail related projects far enough along. The
only thing we could have drawn on were our bond indebtedness payments, which we could have
done, but we were saving those for tunnel 6, the V&T depot and some of the other depots for which
we are still planning on making that draw.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher addressed the Park Fund first. He complimented Dave Thomas” work
on this. In 1981 there was a resolution that did collect $500 for a residential tax. However it was a
pass through to future school building construction and enlargement so it was collected and remitted
to the school district. That is the only tax he knows of. In 1992, there was ordinance No. 133 (copy in
records) adding a $250 residential construction tax. In 1998, there was ordinance No. 156 (copy in
records) increased the mobile home tax from $100 to $250. Mr. Gallagher wants to go back and
inspect all of it more closely and see if there is more evidence to present to the board. He thought it
was resolved in 2010 and 2011, but as it is coming up again, he will lock info it.

15




In regard to the V&T Rail Commission, their statements are the same as in 2012. Because of the
interlocal agreement, we need a clearer and more concise interpretation of their ordinary operating
expenses vs. future building and construction.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident - in regards to the $25,000 claim to Liquid Blue
the check was cut prior to the contract being approved. Chairman McBride asked Mr. Phillips to
bring it up with the Tourism Commission.

21, CORRESPONDENCE
a. Agenda item request from Mark Phillips regarding the order of expenditure and payment of
County moneys by the Director of Tourism and Community Services; by the approval of a
contract for services and labor, LBE, LLC and County.

22. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the Chairman at 1:58pm

Respectfully submitted,

o V(2

0LA L b
Vanessa Stephens, Clerk! Treasurer

16




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 18, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 01/31/14 for $372,584.94 and
Accounts Payable date for 2/07/14 for $634,465.94 and $9,281.86.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Departmen\f: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA _ NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

M Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_—

Agenda Item No. (5




KAUYNTWITIEG

2

8

afeq

L

g

S

T

AHINSTHAYL

rsdnozp TT0IARd

FITTOYLANCD

HANQTSSTWWOD HINOISSTHNGOD NYWATYHD

PSISUCTSSTWWOD JO pxeod Ajuno) AI1018 ay3 Ag psaocaddy
¥6'¥85'TLE rpSsINgSTd 1301
S¥'9845'9¢ PIOQDNPIT 03 IIJSURITL ISBN TEIOL
00'98€'¢€ tarrd dag X1g GO POIIBISURIL SUOTIANpLd ssAoTdwum Tel0L
¥S FEL'STE rargodag avsatqg sslotdwm Ter0l
ST ITI0'T reyooyy ssdordwm Telol
60 86L°08 18O ICAOMPEC TeIOL
19°810'5¥% ‘8dLdd 107 I8JBURIL I8N TEI0L

Junowy saked ¥ paa # aa

$T/9T/T0 1931BJ pUI-DPOTISd

aagsThey oeud
HWHALESAS TIOHAYd ALNNOD AZEQLIS

¥T/1E/T0

/4% dug  /apauD
faqeq Yoaud arnbay :sdA1 TToadeqd

POITITIOT PT/6E/T0 ‘funy
¥0TS0¥d :adey




T

00rgLD

6D TT¥'E

00’02

00°'5¢

00°ET
T9'6LT

BT TYE’E

0B ¥EZ
98 0¥e

PT°8LT

0z 192

TELOL
ptazce fe)

abeg

el v 4
00" €LY

P6°LT
L€
Te° 9
00" 5%
05°LST
T6° 682
0029
96 LT
go"o9
ERR : 1)
BV 6EE
0E'SPT'T
6L'8
$8°91
00°09
ELTFLE
oo te

00°o0e

05'LY
OGS LT

00 €T
€9°6LY

9% ZTEB
6T 1SE
TV ELE
6T TSE
38 EEL
0g'85

883°001
8870071
00" b€

0% FEZ
98 0¥%e

SE'LT
70T 0¥
69°¢¢
SETLY
6L"gg
LL8
LLe
BE'ET

0z 19g

LHNOWY

68089
6T089

EG0BY
£6089
£6089
€6089
£6089
6089
52189
52189
-TAN)
SZTEBY
£6089
£6089
£6089
£6089
£6089
£6083
£6089

6EELD

a€089
0€089

SEELY
S¥089

26089
26088
t6083
£6089
£6089
26089
85089
26089
85089

0ETEBO
81089

LT089
L1089
L1089
L1089
L1089
T6089
6089
16089

v6089

#ENTIL

¥L/LO0/T
¥r/Lo/e

v1/L0/2
YI/L0/2
¥I/L0/2
¥E/L0/2
¥1/L0/2
PI/LO/2
FI/LO/T
YI/L0/2

¥T/L0/E

PT/L0/E
YI/L0/2
¥1/L0/2
YI/L0/T
¥T/L0/2
yi/Lo/e
¥I/Lo/2
»T/Le/e

FI/L0/E

¥I/L0/¢C
vi/L0/2

¥T/L0/2
YI/L0/2

pt/Lo/z
vt/Lo/z
vI/L0/2
vT/Lo/e
¥T/L0/2
PT/L0/2
vI/Lo/e
¥r/L0/e
YI/LDST

wt/io/z
¥I/L0/C

PL/L0/Z
YI/L0/T
PT/LO/T
YT/LO/E
FT/L0/2
vi/Lo/z
PI/LO/E
PI/L0/2

¥T/L0/E

qIYG

HONVITIWOD I4YW ETOZ

SAVNI INTA0Y

861804

HOVLE50d

Epv1s0d
NOLL¥DIAVEE aEEM
VLS04

X2 a3d

a0 SWYS

aood 0 LENong

an opot

S4ITD 17136 01OV
IQVY ¥0d SUEDYVHD AdFLLYE
avd ¥ETIIa

EDVLS0d

TIND

SI¥Vd DSIW

SOVL ALITIEVINNOIDY

JEED LAID NOSYHS Tud

AFTING - LIITAY0d Md
AETING ~LALTAN0A M

SHOIAGHS HONEWEANODETHL
YILIVEH J00¥ CEWSS S§°IS

T¥2ISAHA HOSITIIL
"T¥2IBAHd HLIWS
TNJI5AHd AFTAVH
T¥OISAHE SUHARHD
TYOISAHd S1advd
HOILYNIDOWA dOODS0
atcice-

NOIZYNIDOIVA NESWOHL
2A0a

PL/9T/T IWT ANI

AAMNOYT HD

AMANOYT EOHS

, A¥ANOYT JOHS
AVANOYT HO

RYANOYT JOHS

ZAANONT VL LS

AYANNYT TL IS

AYaNOvT T4 L8

LEEL JILWLSOWAAH

NOTILAIHDSHACG HITOANT

¥1/L0/2 ¥ELSIONY MDEHD

LINACD AHOLS

ONTIANILNOD JO a¥voH

DIAH TYIDHAWAQD ¥IAvNdEe

vOLEH WOTYENY J0 ANvHE

NS ADNYN "BRAvH

ONI'OINASETE ADO¥L ¥ oLV
TANES HONFSHINODETEL IFIY

ONT BNLINSINLSIO WISY

SSEANTIEM NV HITYEH ¥V
d¥00 SNI H4IT SYILIHANY

a7 HENYIOdd SVOTYAWY

QNI 0DSTY
IA¥ES WHANITAD ¥ HYIJ J€Y
HOONHA

SLBLL

vLBLL

ELBLL

TLBLL

TLeLL
OLBLL

GIBLY

898LL
L9BLL

998LL

S9BLL
PeBLL

HIGHON
ADEHD

¥1/80/20 ¢ e3vg uny
STETEL oN xodey



4

SE' 558797

PLLS 00 g€
¥T'E%

82 0TL 0000t
205
680§
EE'65
o' S6¢€
T0° 0%
Z0°0e
00

EG'T99'%

SZTETT ST ETT
00°529 00°S29
55701 S5°07
69'ES 69°€9

66'ES BE'S5¥
ES'TY
BE'ET
9E° %
8L°33
6C'3¢E
0z 0t
6E'EZZ
BL'6T
28 €4
ED*E£9
96°5S
TT'T
-6¢' TV

05" 9% [R5 4
05°LT 0S°LT
61°'082 6T 0S8z

00 L6T 00" %2
00 gL

86 L6 BE'BEE
0068

82 €971 99° L6
29°59

o0 0¥

I9LOL INNOWY

AJEHD

obeg

98" pEL’T
6¥"BIE’T
9¥'800°¢

2kl

88089
88089

£C0BO
IEELY
Fo08s
58089
£E089
S0TB9
££0689
58089

TEDBS
TENRS
TE08S

9€089
2v¥1a89
B¥0BY
ZEDBY

ozoBY
0208y
0z089
0z089
0z089
0Z089
0z089
0z0B9
ozogse
0Z089
0TOBY
02089
GT089
02089

95089
82089
62089

000BY
00086y

11089
11089

¥8089
¥8089

#ENTUL

¥I/L0/2

vi/Lo/e
PT/L0/2

¥1/L0/2
¥I/L0/2
¥1/L0/2
¥T/L0/Z
YI/L0/2
vi/Lo/e
¥T/L0/2
YT/LG/E

vr/L0/e
¥1I/L0/2
vI/L0/2

¥1/L0/2
vT/Lo/e
vr/Lo/e
vI/L0/T

¥1/L0/2
PI/L0/2
¥1/L0/e
¥L/L0/2
¥L/L0/E
¥L/L0/T
¥I/L0/2
YT/L0/2
¥I/L0/2
vT/L0/E
v1/L0/2
¥1/L0/2
¥1/L0/2
¥I/L0/2

YI/L0/2
vI/L0/2
YT/LG/T

Ft/e0/2
vi/L0/g

¥i/L0/2
YT/L0/2

YI/L0/2
»T/L0/2

2LV

XVl SETVS AINNOD IUL

ATPZQL0UDET NISIANA
ETPZ000BOET NESLONI

: ANOHd SEAYIY
QUYDEIY TO000-$6002STL6
TENTEN

gIVG Aval

NOH&/a¥dI TO000-Z90E98ELL
TIED QYdl 1430 LI

.. 4FEWEDEG LNV

9 NYL -/, DT QU¥D IJIM

TEISUIT ~AUId HOA"

N0 - MG
THSAIA 3 IND-M

SHITAANS HIO0F

SAVd S

mH\ﬁ\cH IO ANI QHIVE oud
. EINE-097L 508

SYELTII-E95E9XT FUII
2109 ETHE-9¢6 T9Md
LTI A-LITTHE0L
ONILLIS-Z2S52% HYId
SURLTIL-~SLN HYIA
X80 JIV-LESPiMd
SHSOH LATTHEOL M&
HALTIIL TLO-AIOLS
YELIIL THOI -ADOLS
1Id000¥-037LS0S
HILTII SNVAL-SL0 EXIT
TIOUYED 09%L508
LAASYD-£0685Md
626988 OF LIQHEUED

YIMIS/02H
HD W04 SAEM

L¥Es TIVg-£LT1H FHIL

$T0Z ‘62-91 NUD

' INEWATEOV ISEL ENI

YIZILINYS
‘ ¥IZTIIAORA/JANVATY

NOILITEDSIA IOIOANI

¥1/40/2 HMELSIDEY ASEHD

ALNACD AFHOLS

ETUNSYEEL NOSHYD J0 ALID

THOAYTHOS L YTHIOLSTUHD

dTHSYANIYYE ODFIdD

DNI C2 TIO AHTIVA NOSHUVO
40 ¥BEWVHD ASTIYA NOSHYD
H0dd TTINTADL ALID NOBYHYD

0D NOIIVLINVE TY¥LIdVD

ONI qQUod TYIIgYD

SLuv¥d OLOV ALID TYLIAYD
NIRTACHIHI TYHINZED NOANYD
FI¥YE ® SSYID 'MDOT M % D

JNI d¥Id S NOLINE

SIMET LIODS ‘TIE¥dndg

ONT WAVTIY O1TEgvpdng

ONI ANWVAWOD ¥INIVE HOE
JOUNEA

vi/80/20 ¢

068LL

68BLL

BRELL

LagLs
9BBLL
SE8LL
vaeLL

€B8LL

Z88LL
T88LL
oggLL

6LBLL

g48LL

LLaLy

alsLL

YTEHON
ADIHD

2leg uny

STETEE :oN 1xoday



£

LE 958

€9°0CE’'Y

00°'595°g¢

0§°9E€9°'5T

YO'BLT'T
65°0T
00591
[ 4 4
00°0s

00 00Z'T
00° 522

00'9g

05" 209
L9*9Tv'S
SE'G958'9T
TYLOL
ADFHD

abeg

00" 8¢
00°00T
00°'S€

LE" 95T

58°'208
[Ara-1 4]
5T'98E°T
0V L5E’T

00's95'8¢

EE'BGY
BT ¥BOT
SE Y
SLYE0E
00°8%L'T
VL 9%T
S0°L¥L
ED" %Sy
EE' 194
TE'TSL
2% £58
6E°Z00°T
SEY6E
00°8EY
LO'LOE’T
66"TBE'T
SP905°T
DB ¥S0'T
eT'TEY
SL'8LT
60°06

POBLT'T
65°0T
00°'59T
z2g'ed
00°0§5
00"00T'T
00"sze

0o o8
o0'e

05209

L9°91%’s

LHOOWY

%0839
%089
6¥089

£8089

LEQRY
LEOBI
LE089
Ly0g9

86089

CLOTS
S6089
65089
66089
ZL089
66089
56089
6608%
56089
56089
56089
56089
gZT89
66089
56089
S6089
S6089
S6089
S6089
18089
00189

S£089
TLOBD
PEGES
LZ089
29089
S¥T89
Erad: L)

10089
10089

90189

LETHY

#ENTIL

¥1/L0/2
PI/LO/Z
¥T/L0/2

YT/LG/T

PT/L0/2
¥I/L0/T
¥T/LO/T
PI/L0/E

¥1/L0/2

¥I/L0/2C
YI/L0/E
¥T/L0/2
pr/L0/2
PI/LD/T
YL/L0/E
¥T/L0/2
vi/L0/e
¥I/Lo0/z
¥T/L0/2
vL/L0/Z
PI/LO/Z
¥I/L0/T
¥T/Lo/e
¥T/L0/2
y1/L0/2
vI/L0/T
¥1/L0/2
¥1/L0/2
¥T/LO/E
pT/L0/2

¥T/Lb/T
V¥I/L0/2
¥1/L0/T
vT/L0/2
¥L/L0/2
YI/L0/2
PI/L0/2

y1/L0/2
vI/L0/E

¥r/Lo/2

PT/LD/Z

HI¥d

TYIND ISHd TTOL 00T
THLND Ldd HO
TYENQD &8Ed ATUID LOL SE¢

HETVES /UHIITHLS BOOTL

THSEXd 2 DEY FY1d M1T
TISIIa ¥ DI FUII M7
{OI3SEIA ¥ SFY H¥IL M
" OPMST ¥ OCMOT -M&

HHIIIMs AHHIY 66

' TI¥L
o EENOHIAN0D

' TL I8
. TN

N TIVD
FONIAISAY ZL LIS

YIND ¥S MT

ZLT IS

T TIOL 001

ad TIOL 001

LAY ETINN

ESAOHI¥NO0D

SNAWITOWNYS Q0S-NIVML Muvl
i LS

ASNOHLANOCD

INYId HELTM

ad TI0L 00T

ESAOHIANOD

YIND U5 M1

¥aIS/058 IS8 D 8 S0Z/102
207d DNINIVHEL O HIMON T¥T

EIMES L8 ¥

EUINTEX

5/M ~tsgeEMd

0F aMIDT ¥T0T NYL HEII00
AYINMOTD

NOILOATTION d¥H AXUQLS

¥T0Z ‘62-9TF NWL
TIELENI GAS ANOHd IEdd LI

LH0ddNE FEILIAILDY HEIAOX

NOILAINDSAG HOIOANT

P1/L0/2 ¥ELSIONY ADEHD

AINNOD AEYOLS

SEd ¥ HLIWNYE) NISYE IWIud

ANVAROD INEW2INDT TIE0TD

OTT ADNIANE SYFATS

o AR LEATS

4T SYSTIAYYAd

ONI SESINSHILNT NOSADYIL
JYOD BSHYSXE TYNRAEI

ONI S5YID LsWd

0D Sou¥Y WAWEYJ

ANOL ‘HIBOU

K ENYIO ‘HS0Y

FLLANNY ‘STEINYG

¥ OTAYLOO 'WiLSEHD
SHOLLVDINOWWOD AWMNOD
ONI IS3HD ALINAWWOD
YOAREA

¥1/50/20

S06LL

YO6LL

£08LL

C06LL

TO6LL
ooeLs
G68LL
g68LL
LEBLL
E8LL
S68LL

¥eoLL

€68LL
268LL
T68LL

HEENAN
AoEHD

8980 Ny

STETEd ‘ON axodey




4

98°TES

00'06T
80 ELT
oo.oom.ﬁ
Q0°S81°2
SE'EVT
00’ €€

05" EZEE'8

Y0 %66 ¥
0% LST'E
0p'§9¢
BETOPY
£9° %L

Q¢ 9%

00°4

PSTTIGSL'T

51°'0BE

00°Q%e

TYEOL
ADFHD

abeg

FTLE
v6'TTT
LG 89
9y 2T
61°L9
8% 1IZ
ZL T8
82 EET

00" 06T
80" €LT
00° 008t
00°§81T'Z
SE'8¥T
00 EEE
00'000°2
00°000°'g
00°000‘2
00°000'Z
0S'EEE
¥0 066 'Y
0B LET'E
00'g9¢g
8E 0%
£9° %L
8%'s
L9"ET
88'g
L&' L
00" L
0086
£5°85%2
00566
T0°00%
86°¢T

96 Z¥

Ze €ze

00 sE
00 sE

LNONOWY

08089
z5089
0t189
L66LY
Lv089
T66LY
T6ELD
LTTBD

rZ089
06089
SET89
21089
POTES
8089
80189
80189
80189
g0189
80183
EETR?
YETES
60189
095089
v¥o89
£E¥0BY
£E¥089
EFQBS
£r0Be
Z0083
o¥T89
0vTe9
ow¥1gs
ovTEes
TO0TE9
TOTBS
T0TBS

v089
10389

#SNYEL

¥1/L0/2
YE/LO/EZ
¥r/L0/e
¥T/L0/E
YI/LO/E
yr/Lo/e
YT/L0/2
¥T/L0/T

PT/L0/2
¥T/LO/2
YI/L0/2
¥1/L0/2
YI/L0/2
PE/LO/E
¥T/L0/¢
¥t/Lo/e
vT/L0/2
pT/LO/E
yr/Lo/e
¥L/L0/e
wi/L0/2
¥I/L0/T
vL/L0/e
vI/L0/2
vT/L0/T
PI/L0/E
¥1/L0/2
¥T/L0/2
¥r/L0/2
¥T/L0/2
¥T/LO/T
¥T/L0/E
Yr/Lo/e
¥L/L0/T
PI/L0/T
¥1/L0/2

¥1/L0/2
¥L/L0/T

JLYa

# 0/d

, ROUHIN/YEdvd
SEIIIANG FDIAI0
HEd¥d Xd00

QTYO 3 HSNOW -NYSNS

dNOD ET-LE2~6 "ILNUYYD

H84 1SIAIOT

5II'1ddNS SWE
SHAOTH-A0HS

, Hdd NOSIJMVH
344 OHNOT

Bad HIANTYM

add FEIONITI

ALVD LNVIAXH
LIINENILTd S¥04Fd

IM  SISSVHD MEN OL queE
ONINIVYL NASWOHL
s1ATING

£ONT ¥ ISOH -¥EQVHO Md
JO0Y NOILVISANE MT
400¥ NOIIVLS ans M1
NEHDLIN SI¥VG IO&1d TLLS
IFO0H WAIYM -XYvd MT
Id30 LIro NOSYAS-Tdd
NOYHS WOD WTIIZ-SHOWWI
2B8L-60SETT WILI-SAOVWI
ENIVK OHANWYDS TTUONNY
FALID/ULED WITd-SEOVHI
SEITIANS SWI

4174408 SWE

SEI14d0NS SWE

TLLND LSEE 18 O L1OW WI
THIND I88d ENYId JHIYN

HOILJTHOSEA FDIOANI

YT/LG/T HELSIDIY ADFHD

ALNOCOD AHIOLS

NOIIDNYISNOD SETIM

NI SNOILONOS 301440 OWLANW
NHOD ' Zyaan

WYITIIN ‘XOaawn

LEUVOIYH "WEHIMOT

OTT SINEAT ANTE QINDIT
ONI LSIBEV-HJIT

ONI IDINOSETT

SNOS ¥ SILNND N 1T
NYITIIN HLIAA

DT adr

TOULINOD NOILDEINI

I 2dW S10000dd TYIHISNANI

A¥ES TYIHLENANI DITNYATAH

FOIAYES LICEND LOGEI TWOH

OHOS QY¥M HIMNOJ DIYOLSIH

ONIDYWIOUWDIN IHASET HOIH

NIFHDE XdNHH

HOaNTA

¥T/S0/2%0

ETELL

ZTeLL
TEZ6LL
0zZ6Ly
6IGLL
8E6LL
LT6LL

IT6LL

STeLL
PI6LL
£T6LL
2I6LL
TI6LL

DT6LL

606LL
BOSLL

LOGLL

906LL

HIFTWNN
ADTHD

J3wg unyg

STETHES ‘oN xoday



S

TL STt T
¥ ECT
00" 00z
00 S€g

0O 99¢€

20708
88°'g

05°0€9°2

LA 477

69°VES

00°'vg
58§92
66°6E
00°000'S
00 00T
TL°1TES

08" ¥58

3T°'9¢
00°096°T
T0'655'¢E

TYLOL
ADIHD

sbeg

iLsIT'ze
98 €2T1
a0 00T
00 st
00" %8
Q0°T%T
00 LG
00°'v8
00708
88'Sg
0052
00°T16'T
00°SIT
0S"6TE
00°5¢g
0D’ 5L

00 Q8

¥ BvL
9s°¢g

36" VT¥
2ETST
=101

Py TIPS
PP I¥S
00" %S
58°89¢
66°6EF
00'000's
00° 00T
TL' 128
86 0PT
§6°'Z8¥
L8 0Ee
21" %6

00 DSE'T
20°'695'¢

LHNOWY

SeQoge
£¥T89
21189
2089
15089
15089
15089
15089
0¥089
LEOBY
65089
62089
6£089
6E0BY
§EDRY
6ECHS
6E089
29189
9%089
9%089
ovoB9
27089
9%089
9%089
$9089
[REag: ]
£T789
61189
6TTBY
TTORS
TTT89
11789
TTTES
z2tes
Z8089
02189

#ENVIL

¥1/L0/2
¥T/L0/2
¥I/L0/E
¥T/L0/E
v1/L0/2
PT/L0/E
¥E/LO/2
¥T/L0/2
¥U/Le/e
¥1/L0/2
¥r/L0/2
PI/L0/2
YI/LO/T
v1/L0/¢
vt/L0/2
v1/L0/8
¥r/L0/T
¥r/Lo/z
YI/LO/T
yI/L0/2
PT/L0/2T
vI/L0/2
¥L/L0/2
¥T/L0/e
?I/L0/E
¥r/Lo/z
vT/L0/2
vI/L0/e
YT/LO/E
vT/L0/%
¢w\ﬁo\m
PT/L0/2
YT/Lo/e
¥1/L0/2
PI/L0/2
PT/L0/2

2L¥d

INYHD DHID £TCZ WIAWEDEQ
; AELOATION SEa4
SINA TINNNY

PTOC/TE/TO WOH

TINd T TIAHT'LESIQ
TN T "TIATT'LSIa

LIC 2 7EATT IVENL

' TINd ¥ THAET'LVHEY]

QUAE LEZTT6 NOILYLID
HOLYW XINNOD

YT0Z/TE/TO WOI
FTOZ/TE/TO WO
PTOZ/TE/TO WO
YI0Z/TE/TG WOZ
YI02/1€/T0 WOR
PTOZ/TE/T0 WoI
YI02/T£/T0 Wod

GNERSSESEY IHN0D IDIVLSTd

dYDENH LESYTMA
AYHELLYE SL0 FUIA

ZTTH 09%L505

! AMAIIVE S068508
SE9 D DM -TLY HYISL
TLY FUI4 NENLEY

dIHSHAEWAN TW
5A0¥d AMIF¥II
HIAQD LVAS ¥L-0

' 104405 1OY owung aiy

gad
d4a
ddd

EDILON 484 ¥ayoud

AVESdn LI

NOILATEDSEG TOTOANI

¥T/L0/2 ¥ELISIOEE ADIHD

AINNOD AE¥OLS

ORE VINNOJAINYD 40 TELXKAN
dASY ALNOCD TVNOE YAYAEN
ONI H3TIAYES TYOET WAYASN
NSSY SJTIHD FYIE YAVARN

HTUNSYHEL AAN

HITYEH J0 AIQ AHN
FATTAIIN IIRA AN

SEHOUNOSTY NVWAH IJ3Q AEN

YITIOLANOD AN

HITIOLIWOD AIN

SIEYE QLAY ON

J058Y &) J4IYFHS TYNOILYN
YEIHDTE FUId TYNOILYN
BLUYA MDUL ¥ OLOY VAYN
ODYN

HOWN

4900 NOHAM

L2} ES ADNEOWIWH TYdIDINOW
ONIHSITHENG ASOA INAOW

& LHEE0Y ' STHEOW

YOANEA

¥1/50/20 ¢

Eb6LL
TheLL
Tv6LL
oOveLL

6E6LL

HE6LL
LESLL

9E6LL

9EBLL
TEGLL

ECELL
CEGLL
TE6LL
0E6LL
6Z6LL
BZ6LL

LE6LL

9TELL

ST6LL

yeeLL

TIENON
ADEHD

83 uny

STETHd (ON 3Jaodey



09°26 £66LY YT/L0/T . ‘ IINO IS O N S%T

0% " FL £66L%  FT/L0/EZ S3¥ Q¥ IHDIMMINYD Z192
9% LOE E66LY  ¥T/L0/T © b I8 AYM NOANWD TtV
68 €8 £66L9  ¥L/LO/ZT d5HINNT IHOTYMINYD 0192
88 €S €66L9  ®T/L0/T SLHDIT LEZYLS SSIHOD 2§
, 0D WAMOE DIZTIVA VHINIS ¥96LL
0% 2TL 0¥ eIt 0Logs  ¥T/Lo0/E . 0D 'NODYY
ONI DUV IVIAW SYD YHUAIS E96LL
00" 0TI 00°0TT EETBS  PI/L0/2
TT NOLLDHLO¥Ed H¥Id VHNEIS Z96LL
¥L' 789 62228 65089  ®L/LO/C ’ HOVETE
S¥Z9T 65089  ¥1/L0/T ' LISOSIA INOD IINTHOTHD
ANYAWOD TVOIWIHD VHHEIS T96LL
00'g 00°¢ 50089  ¥T/LO/E ¥I0Z ‘62-91 NUL
NETIY NYI4E ’JYOHS 0g6LL
Lb TBOY LY T80T 69088  ¥T/L0/Z OTVESTOO#INO ' HIVATY NXA
ONI ¥Sh SNSNAS 656LL
98 EEV 'O 20 0%T ¥1089  ¥1/L0/T : LO&AT TIIH aOI09
SE'6S LTT89 ¥r/Lo/2 dOr 2960-L%8
9968079 L1189 PT/L0/e SNOTLYOINOWHOD -ZTP9-2SE
€6 FHT L1189 ®T/L0/T NINAY B960-L%8
ONI SEQIA¥ES fIYE0Io OHS 8S6LL
SY'G6EZL'E 5% 62£'6 TZIBI  ¥1/L0/T TIYILAY
‘ YEH QE¥Egddud SANYW INIVS LSBLL
00007’ 00°00%’T 96089  PI/L0/Z . ONINIVAL ¥E£Z-S
' L HAESOL ‘ITIVHNINY 956LL
0S5°2¢€ 05'2E vo089 ¥1/L0/% Y102 ‘62-9T VD
. W TEONYE ' qyodawy SS6LL
00°80g 00°802 £9089  ®T/L0/Z : LS0d ¥I¥oTaxE
HLENNIA ‘Y910l YEGLL
00°006'T 00°006°T 12089  wr/L0/2 PIO0Z/0E/T0 TITATY
WEKOd EBYHOENL £S6LL
S6°'06 S6°06 SS089  BT/L0/Z LNIWNDITY-8FBTS0S
O2 WALENY % FUIL TIZouAd Z56LL
00'g6T 00°' 02T LBOBS . ¥I/LD/Z TYIL SL LS ’
00 5L L8089  ®¥T/i0/E DANA SL LS
QNI SHOIAHA NOILDELONA IS6LL
L0 80T L0'80% 99089  ®L/L0/Z QISUNHSIT INIAWHSINIVYD
. I 0D EONYNIJ TYNOISSTIONE 0S6LL
0¥ 80T 0% 80t ¥5089  FI/LO/E SYTHSYM ¥ SLTOE-SAVOd
NYTIHIMOd 6¥6LL
0g-1E 00°TZ ¥I18%  ¥1/L0/2 T SOVL ALITIEVINNOIONY
AYIONT 3 dWYILE YSOHIANOE 8VGLL
00" 2% 00 T¥ E0089  BT/LO/Z PI02 ‘6Z-9T1 RNWD
a oTEONY ‘ININLEA LPELL
00025 00°02% 6£189  ¥T/L0/2 ' DNILLOTY dWK
5 NHOL ‘HSTIMNVE IYELL
PTTT9 0009 £5089  ¥T/L0O/T SEENDILS ONIDIEA TIVISNI
T 198 TETBY  PT/LO/E
IS ¥ SOIHdYHED TUIS FHL NO SHELL
T%'EL ' 0% BETBY  #T/L0/2 SHINddNS IITII0
6622 8ETRS  PT/LD/Z Sq¥VD XIANI
. ONI LO4H3d 301440 YreLL
98 6LT T LT'6LE 81189  ®1/L0/% NOISSIWNCD ONINNWIA
65°'2LE 81189 wr/Lo0/2 . SYIANOISSIWR0D
01821 8TT8®  ¥T/L0/C ININGOTIARD HWNOD
TELOL LNAOWY #SNWAL TLYQ # o/fa ‘' NOILAINOSHG EOIOANI HOONIA GEENAN
MDHHD ADEHD
Pr/ib/2  GEISIOEA ADEHD $I/50/20 : ®s3eg uny
9  ebeg AINNOD ATHOLS STETES :ON 3xodoy




L

28’216

1Z'998'91
00°S6%"T
00" 08%

8% 0¢
00'9

568
00°0%

FE BLOTT

TYLOL
ADFHO

abed

00 GLE
¥8'€05°80%

78216

T2 998’91
0o S6p 'Y
00°08%

8% 0%
009

g6'8
oo'og

SS°T8
99584
BD'SHT
&0 8T
0182
0T ZLS
68°5LS
69°19
SETLOT'T
PETPOT
6E'6ET
5L°52T
B9 LL
LT'OLT'T
SOETQ’T
25'00%
99°¥s5%
SE°TT
CE'0TL
¥4
LT %0T
LE'TYT
0L’ EE
2851
8t vE
15°9%2T
[4 2 41
18702
6T E£PT
687°0L9
gL'STT
T15°%0T
T0 64
6€'STE
96796
0181
6Z°¥9¢C

LNNOWY

£Z089
Tvigg

19089
89085
rZ189
£T089
6L08Y9
20088
STT89
L5089

CEELY
EE6LY
£66L9
E66L9
£66L9
£66LY9
£66L9
£66L9
£66L9
£66L9
£66L9
E6GLD
£66LY
€66L9
£66LY
T66L9
£66L9
£66L9
£66L9
€66LY9
E66LYD
£66L9

- £66L9

tE6LY
€66LY
£66L9
£66LY
LEELY
€EBLY
EE6LY
£66LY
E66LY
E66LY
£66L9
E66LD
E66L9
£66L9

#SNVIL

¥T/40/T
PT/L0/T

¥1/L0/2
PI/L0/2
¥T/L0/E
vT/L0/2
¥1/L0/2
¥i/Lo/z
vI/L0/2
¥I/L0/E

vt/L0/2
¥I/L0/2
PT/LO/2
vr/Lo/e
vT/L0/2
vr/Lo/e
PT/LO/E
PT/LO/E
yI/Lo/e
YI/L0/E
¥t/L0/2
v1/L0/2
PI/L0/2
¥1/L0/E
vT/L0/2
PT/L0O/2
PL/LO/E
¥T/L0/E
YI/L0/T
¥I/L0/2
v1/L0/2
P1/L0/%
¥1/L0/2
¥L/L0/zZ
yr/io/e
¥T/LO/E
YI/L0/2
¥T/L0/T
¥I/L0/T
¥I/L0/2
PT/L0/2
PL/L0/2
PT/LQ/2
¥T/L0/2
PL/L0/E
¥T/L0/E
PT/L0/T

JLva

. NIIMOTIVH
QIATHIEY XWI AIYIIOHEY

MUVHOIN ‘NMoud

FT0ZT HAISXIATIS SIYWIOL

M&D& ESYHDEN ENOHg TIHD
‘ JHED EJID NOSYES-3dg
d¥d H3TIIL

L53d JOOMNDOT

SELIT LEFYLS HD 0 NMOL
SHLIT ¥I5 ALID YINIDYUIA
HSHIENIA LHOIYMIEVYD 0192
P T/1 g ¥ TIOL QFT
d¥¥d HOA (M IUIAWT TPIE
¥ LINO M NOANYD 0Z%

# LINN XYM NOANYD 0Z%
BLS O N §8T

¥d OQ¥Ed SOLT

) a¥ HONWY JI¥Ed 00E

' SILHOIT 4§ D § TES
SIHDIT 48 D § Zve
SIHDIT I8 25 N SLT
ROANYD 3IIW XI5 02ZZ
ISN0HIMAGD IS € § 92

, (DNINIVHL) 15 2 N 19T
SHEAIL I8 O N

AHVATIVE 15 NOSUwWD

DA LIND I8 D §

LHOIT ¥4 /H00aln0 18 o §
DA LING IS D 8

HOVEYD IS H 5 #OT

1S NOLLOS

AUYd DA IS T N S0Z

whAn T8 ANIAVY TIVINYIS 00S
SWISYD 1S 0 § 12

INTd 9LM LS HINOS M 00T
AYYd  SNEWATD WYS 06%
HIDD SNEWHTD WYS 005
TIYL IPE AMH S0 116

08 18 D 5§ soz

05 18 D 5 €02

¥a I§8 2 8 10E

Z/1 dOHS Q4 TIOL 007
/T 90779 9 TIQL 01T
Z/T DNINNYIE Q¥ T10L 0ST
dOLELSEE 18 D N T8¢

NOTIATYISET TII0ANI

PT/L0/2 GEISIONY NOEHD

ALNAOD AFUOLS

LOINLSId TOQHDS 02 1§ ELELL

EZDNVINEWNY 0D IS TLELL

07T FTDAD VHONOS TL6LL

HOD SONIZEEW LEMMVW TTYHS OLBLL

¥Ed DTT SEIYLSOGNT MDINs 696LL

LNEYL "YLLEWAS B96LL

¥Ed TUNOIIYN ZLVLS YIATIS LIGLL
RINZJUVHS ¥ YIVdAY WHudIs 996LL

ONI TONINOD 1§Hd YHu=Is S96LL

HOaNEA HIENON

ADFHD
$1/50/20 ! =3eg unyg
STETEd :oN Jxodayg




8

00°oLe
LSRR 4R
00° 03
oo0osz'1

00'0¢E%

op° 9T
00°009
I0'TL9'E
8L LS9'T
00" 0%E
co'0T
05°'s¥%e

0579TL

SL'96T’'T

€€ EEROT
P BLAB0Y
TYLOL
MOEHD

abeg

00°5%T
00’ o0g
00°S¥%T

go‘oLe
¥5'5E5'T
000§
00-osg’t

00" %¥E
00 e
00'¥

0009

00°9T
oo-op9
T0°TLe e
BL'LSYT
00" 0%2
007 0T

05 9%z

05°'TE
00" 59
00089

oL 0S
5B'BE
G0 L
LY ET6
€T LET
00" L
00" L
S8°8e2
68'62
6862
[ A
B0 95
L¥'Tg
Ly L6
69766
8861
L¥'Z6
LY Z6

EE'EER'OT

LHOOWY

rL089
¥.089
vL089

€zoB9
5T089
05089
91189

CTe89
01089
01089
0T089

60089
9LOEBS
20189
£L089
STOB9
80089
L4089

L0089
L008s
L0089

BEELY
L9083
L5089
L9089
L9083
[3-1)-E}
L9089
Lopes
L90gY
L9OBS
L3089
L3089
£9089:
L9089
L9089
L9089
BEELY
La0ge

SETE9

$SNYUT,

¥I/L0/2
T/L0/E
¥I/L0/T

pT/L0/2
¥I/L0/E
¥1/L0/e
vi/eo/e

vT/L0/%
¥T/L0/2
pr/L0/2Z
PL/L0/2

¥T/e0/¢e
v1/L0/2
¥1/L0/2
¥T/L0/2
YT/L0/T
¥L/L0/2
¥I/L0/2

vT/LO/T
vi/Lo/e
PLILOSE

vi/Lo/e
?1/L0/8
yI/L0/2
vi/Lo/e
PI/LD/2
¥T/L0/E
»r/Lo/e
¥I/L0/T
¥I/L0/2
¥I/L0/2
¥1/L0/2
¥1/L0/2
¥L/L0/T
vT/L0/C
vr/Lo/e
¥T/L0/E
¥T/L0/e
PT/L0/2

¥I/L0/T

dLva

NOENYD DYO'ITOD 'JATv
WHOJITI0D

NOBREYD 9¥O'ITOD ‘AW
: CHAWOY HINIE NILY
05 UOOMMDOT €107 HIAWIDHG
95g~-¢T

L¥0dans ALD HLY

PTOC '62-9T NVD

v CIMED LATH NOSYES-Hud
STIIE XTHLNOW
66FZP8-LO0V USVAT YIIJ0D

SRITdANS NYATD

LEED LAID NOSYAS-Fud

HYIL ¥IZE905

¥T0T ‘62-9T NWD

LI0ddns

NOIIGIWOSEd HOTOANI

¥1/L0/2 WALSIOEY MDEHD

ALNAOD AFAOLS

991 TYINSWNNOUIANT NYFLSEM

YIYAEN ‘XENNOD HOHSYM
A¥ES YOINEE XINNOD HOESYM
HOTAJ0 S4JIUFHS 0D HOHEWM

adn SCNVTIHDIH YINT&HIA

ONI SHUAOL ALID YINIDWIA
0D A EEAOOUL ¥ VINIDUIA
(DA)  BOTJAJOLS04 sn

UNIS LNEWAINDE 4¥OONYE Sn
ONI HQIMITHON HDHAOSTNN
D MDIA ‘HNITIASSOLT,
SACHMOD ENOLSHWOL HHL

YOJHOD SYWOHL-LIYNIEY FHL

SISIUAYIING A¥YE NAS

WELSAS ¥AIWM 0D L&
{DA) ¥RLNED MOINES 0D IS
|OaNEA

¥T/S0/20
STETHG

H

GBELL
B86LL
LBGLL
9BELL

S86LL

vEELL
EBELL
TBELL
T86LL
086LL
GLELL
BLBLL

LL6LL

SLELL

SLeLL
FLELL

FALSHNR

ADFHD
2380 uny
oN jaodey




[

Y6 S9%‘veED
o-ges‘e
0976871

00" 0TE
TYLOL
MDEHD

abeg

TYLOL SAJTHD
Do ons’e

09 68T

LNOOWY

IP189 FT/L0/2 IIVEOLSHYE d¥H HD TVYIJIIL0
§L089 ¢w\bc\m SDNITAN0D
HENTAL qIva # o/a » NOII4I¥DSHT EDIOANI

BT/4L0/¢ WALSTOEY NDTHD
ALNOOD . XHFOLS

HHYYE "¥OXNZ T66LL

0J A144AF VAYAIN NUHLEIM 0664L

JOANIA HEEWAN
AIEHD

FT/S0/20 ' 93w uny

STETES !ON Ja0day



NHZOH merEOU

Y e sl i I s SO

Y6990 ' ¥ED TYLOL SHJFHD

ZOH.Hm.NHMO.,m.HUdm Q»E. MATASY. IO LNIWIDATTHONNOY




T

98°18T'6

98°18Z'6

TYLOL
qQIes

abeg

05 %91
00°00T
8% €8
0052
00081
6 ¥Y
-00"'S6% ‘T
00’52
SE°LEE
%0995
0Z'€€
0D 068°T
S8 6%
00 ZVE
0094
SE"TOL
£9°zz
S¥'zE
0005
S6°'LS
007001
05 582
00°'52
66886
6686
00°85%
0¥ g9¢
00" 59
0D £S89
00°95¢L
00'ze0‘e
0% 65T
00°ST
£E'68S
§9°v18
98°8

LNNOWY

AR (4}

NOILYZIHOHLOV ONY MEIATY J0 INAWEOTTTMONIOY

€L
80%T
TL
L
1L
1L
69
69
69
69
69
69
6%
639
69
69
69
69
&9
L
oL
L
L9
TL
il
L9
BOFT
80%T
8091
BOPT
80F%1
80%1T
SL
oL
80%T
¥L

#SNVHL

PL/LO/2
¥L/LO/T
vI/L8/T
F1/L0/2
¥1/L0/2
pt/Lo/e
PI/LO/T
FL/L0/Z
¥t/Lo/z
¥T/L0/T
YI/L0/E
PT/LO/2
¥1/L0/2
p1/L0/2
¥i/Lo/z
¥I/LO/2
¥T/L0/E
PL/L0/T
¥T/L0/Z
FP1/L0/2
¥1/L0/2
»L/L0/z
¥T/LO/2
FT/LO/T
vt/Lo/z
¥I/L0/E
FT/LO/E
P1/L0/T
y1/L0/2
¥I/L0/2
vI/L0/E
F1/L0/E
¥T/LO/E
PL/LO/2
¥T/L0/E
PT/L0/¢e

HIva

¥aa ¥ads TWO-9IW dnd
YWIID SHUEMOTL TIa# JED
YOWMAIW SI¥YICd

dIYL YIATAMS ¥O4 TINI
dI4L dASHAMS ¥0d 1ENd
IEYE INIVH -aQund YaNOH
DIY ANNIFY INI WIWYID
SAYMEIY 80

WOD " SONN LNAODSIA
ODVXEL

OVl OWlL

O ONILEEW LUMIVW TIVHS
IAYWITM

LNQINVLSIY F0YTYd
accTd 40 Lg¥ond

VYD -¥-INFY ZINAH

800 VIISYD Y7

FFA40D ASILEOCD
HANAOD MOLSHOD
SEIT34NS dIIdd0

SYTIC NYIDINHDAL LIWNEd
SNOORLXIL

¥SSANYA ‘SNIHIELS

AMS LY MOCT QL HNIDAOT
IMS 1Y H0OT OL ONIDTOT
YSSANYA ‘' SNIHAILS
SEAQTS

LNIHNHOITY

SUNAWIHY 29 0L 50 ODWN
SANEWIAY A€ OIL 2 OIY¥N
099 dATHEIWNW Md G- THWH
ZAVS XUINZS

dOHSYUOM YH¥FIS SNYVEL
add ¥Wod FAVI FEVOTIHNVE
SAITHINS FONIAIAT
FOVISCd

NQILII¥DS3a

YALSIOEY qudd EFSYHOUNA

ALNOOD AH¥OLS

ZNOD NYWHOT #T-L-2
TYHOTS DA NALIIHM
TEYHOIN 0€/T-¥LILINAS
DINEAVH 8Z/T-YILTYAS
TINE WA 82/T-YILLEUYS
YEHIIKW BT/T YILANAS
¥1/62/T o4
¥T/62/T Dd
vr/eT/T 24
¥I/L2/T 94
PI/92/1 94
»T/¥Z/1T ba
PI/VE/T D4
PI/ZEZ/T D4
¥I/T2/t B4
BT/0Z/T o4
¥T/BT/T 94
YI/LT/T 94
¥T/9T/1 od
104Ed ST AUYDd
OND HAOD IONN TIY¥dAYd
TETOE000006L4 QHO
TYMENEY Y04£D SO05 AN
L908% LZ/T-NIATNK
930C% LE/T-NIASNW
BNINIVEL NYWEOT
HANTIN

FTUHLOD

LHOIMA WI ISHEAD NIVA
IHDITE 29 LSEND NIVL
20 OD¥N SLHOITS NIVA
YSSITEN/NISOT

FFA 9¥¥d ANCWAFEY'd
SEINISAANI NOLTHYD
Y

T¥0TS0¥# TYAOHAdY
INRWAYA

NI JIW¥ID

# HOIOANI J43d-aN0d

*TBI0L PICs

CHEYD TRIDUAWWOD ENOQ STIEM
HOaNEA

¥1/50/20
LE08¥4Ed

TT

HIEWON
od

Igeg unyg

ON 3aodsy




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 18, 2014 Estimate of time required: 0-5min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required | |

1. Title; For possible approval Treasurer Report for January 2014

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of consent agenda.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Monthly report as required by NRS.

5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager Other agency review;
5. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied ] Continued

Agenda [tem No. 7




00"

0o’
00"

-6%° 90Z'0€9
-S8 09L'T9E'T
8Z €28 '6ET

-BL'09Z 96T
“0T 6T5°6€9°T
-2Z ZE6L'S

0o°
“BLOLL'FE
-697980 2T
-99°1¥%6 ‘62
00"
-65°TTG'90T
BB ZIL LS
-597225°'S9
-91°6€8'SEE
-0p"E9L’8
~SZ°59€ 'F9T
00"

-00°099

-00° 000000 T
~Z5°660'95T°T
-88°89Z°L70'2
-0€"65L ‘T2T
~¥9°6LTTIT
-65°06€'G6
-9E"0LG"SFT
-8E° 568 'L8Y
-06°9¢E '¥0T
¥E°P0Z'8LE
00"
-H9TEY 95T T
-00°¥T

-Gy T/ 915
-06°935'615°8
007002
07000 T
00°00T'T

Q£ 6EY

0L %68 "8LT'E
0S°E0Z 65T L
0T 8E6'0ZT'%
80"

90"

8% €55 °9LE
98" 0TI'9

90"
-D6"%Z6°Y

HONY'IYH DNIANI

1 abeg

0o oe’ 06" [+ 1o Q0° 00"

oo’ co-" 0o oo- oo’ 00’ [H

oo 00" 00" oo’ 20 [elely 00-

o0’ 00" 00" 05 6EE'SE ES ST LY -59°8TL'8E -LBTZ9L'F99
oe” a0 00 [t ac” 06" “S809L°T9Z'T
oe” oo -00 00578 ST 0T6 6L 6P LIS ¥ -Z9°L50°€S 967956 'LTT
[E+hy o0 00" 00"’ TZ ETL 0T 147009 8% -8¥TCLE (BRY
elely 00" ~00°D0D'EFT [ Lelely -Z¥"TE -89°98%F"LEPT
[+1e 00" 00- oo ae-’ 00" ~ZTZ TEL'S

oo o0 oo co- elehy 00” 00"

oo’ 0o 0o co- ac” -00°93835 -ZLTP0ZTEE
oo co- 00" 00" SE£°8Z6°6 -LSTTIEL'S -LPT8T ST
oo co- oo° co- [ile =007 ETL -99°TEZ ‘62
oo- co- 00" [H a0 Qa° 00"

oo’ [thy 0o co-’ T8 PLS PST -6E£°98F ‘90T L6665 'F9T
el co- 00 e’ 087 9£T1°GE EARE-TA R -€9°ZLL 96
oo” [H 00° oo PL ZTBSY -DETTIO 99 6% EEE'SE
0o [++he (111 ee’ PE' TS LET ~¥5 CT6%'THE -96° 800 ‘TEZ
oo’ oo oc” e’ 00 =99 0% D0 ETL'S

00" [+110g co- [ASE-TA SEAN ST ELY L -8947 058 0% -98°600"'¥9T
oo [H oc- go- Q0" 00" 00"

0o’ oe- oo [ Llely -00°099 00"

00" oe-’ 00 oe-’ og” 00 =00°000°000'T
00 [H+he 00" 8BS TE8 79T Z9'LEOLE -8L"PST6E -¥6 €98 '0LT'T
oo’ oG- Qo- oe” oG -9E°"S58'91 -Z5 E€TF'000°Z
[Hv [Hthy 00" oG- ac’ 00 -0EBSLETT
oo’ ce” 06 22¥ ST 06° il -yEEEZS'ZE -06°8L0"PST
oo’ oc- o0 oo [l 00° -ES°06E ‘S8
oo’ oc [1]+he [Ht 927081 Q0- -Z0TEL'SPT
oo" [Hthy 0G 08T TR oe- 89 €£68°T -9%°ZL9'6Y -05°99Z'zZ9%
1] oe-’ 00"’ oc” Lele Q0" ~06"9€€ "¥0Z
00" oc” €L°0LE'BT T6'LEE TOE 48" LST'9E -6% LED 98T Z8 18T 'LOZ
oo oe- [t{thy oo’ o0 Q0" 00"

00" (vl -GS TZ6 69 T0 BLSSE LT 8%T L 08 EvE 6y -89°18Z'08T'T
[+11 g [+ (Mo 00" og’ -00° 9T oo”

00" [ oo’ [elviy 9€°56L D ~18 TL%'% -00"8EF ‘9TS
00- e3¢ LT 6LY'99T 0% 92E7959 9 P06 ‘TST ~“9% " BET'TBT'T ~-EL 8L0'PZE'S]
0Q- oo" [He 00" (1]l Qo 00" 002

00" [s3e 8 elely oo” 0o’ a0’ 00°000°2

00" s]o 3 oo’ [0 oo 0o 00°00T'T

Q- oo’ e3v oo’ [1]1he o0 0E"6ED

QQ- oo’ og” oo’ 0o- 00" 0L P68 'RLT'9
00" 00" og” 60" on- 0o 0S°Z0T'6ST'L
20" 00" B0 0BG 000 T oo- 00- £ LBI95T'Z L9 0GL P96 ¥
w0’ [H oo oo-" oo- 00" rIviy

Q0- 00" oe- 00" [Hh oo’ Q0"

00° 00" 00000 000 E -66 699 BT T -09°TS0'Z6L SZ°9Z8 BST 9T TIPS 158
00" oo oo oo [Hrh 00" 9870119

00° 00" 0o oo’ oo~ ao- Q0"

00" 00" oo” 00" 60" 00" 06" 926 ‘1
L0 SYIASNWYUIL NI SHIISHNWALL SYIHONOA NUNQC  STICHRYL SINIAWISANGSTAd SLATIIFA IYHACA  "Ivd

$T0Z/T0 dcd
LITHS ONIINYTIY ATHLNOW
ONIINNCIOOY So¥IANSTEALL
YIUNSYIUL ALNOCD ATHOLS

SaNNI TTY TYLOL

SNIQTICH SIXNL dIINDIS Q06
DNIQTCH SARVL JEANOISNN 008
NOISSIWWOD WSTHNOL JA 0FZ
IDEM0Wd TIVY D4 0EZ

aNna a8 TTIVD §.JJTUEHS 012
SLINTHD) TYRHCHEd 308

HOVEANd IdL 00Z

aNnd ¥EYq 06T

LEN IEL 681

aNOA LEN0D EOLLSNC LB
ANEAIDIOY INIOHIANI S8T

LEO0D IOTULEIA 08T

OUY0E NOIIWANDI™M 3 ¥IWd SLT
ALYLS QLT

anna ADOTONHOZL S91

1d3d 100HDS 09T

TOOHQS 0ST

LAN0d 9NEQ 0PT

YAMAS FATAIO WINIDYIA OET
ALID WINISHWIA A0 NMOL 0Z1
TIIH IFI09 J0Q HMOL OTT
NOTIWEIIIEWLS 00T

WELSAS daIYM 060

aNAd JANLONALSYIINT 0BO
SLOAr0Yd THLIIYD 0L0
NCILISINGOW INIWATNGE 090
FDIA¥ES 050

AI¥ TYNLAOW SPO

LOTHLSTIA 53Id QF0

AONEDWIAWE =ALd SEO

HII4 00

NOILNIILSEY ¥T0

SaO¥Od DE0

XYL~ FDNWISISSY INIOTANT STO
TE2I0EW LNEDIANI 010
THIENED 100

YOSSASSY  HSWD ALL¥d 406
AdTYIHS HSYD ALLEd P06
HSWD ALLId £06

SNICD TFI0 To6

LHOCOOY dIDT FINLIS 96T
LIAAYH AFNOW OD¥Yd STIEM T6T
INQODOY 02 OD¥Wd STIEM 661
SaTYS ALYESCEE ¥ 40 9 86T
SQUYOD MNWE SSANISNH L&6T
ANYG NI HSYD G671

DONICTIOH IHN02 FIIVLEIT %61
502 'TYNCIIWN ALID E61
HONYUOENT HITWEHE ZT&T

NCGIIAINOSAC LoV

ST:ET 60 PT/TT/E0 uny
00TZHL *CN 3I0d9y



LT BEY YI/PZ/T LNIdd dAISSHYDOUd 6EFEOT 00  S6T 6EB8LL D

09°02S ¥L/%2/1 ONI SHEMOY XAANLIA PEFTIOT 00 S6T 9EGLL D
00°0S PT/9%C/1T d CTABNY "INIHLEd SE8E0¥ 00 S&T1 SE8LL D
g0 szt ¥I/ve/1 SABNYIOLIVY IDIHLSIA YAYASEN 602TOT 00 S6T TE8LL D
00 00s'Y ¥1/92/1 DT SINIAT HATE arndicl Z0TH0F 00 S&T SLYLL MO
CO"06E‘6T ¥PL/ve/1 DT SINIAE HOTY QrndItT ZOTPOF 00 S6T LTBLL D
0Z 8% ¥I/¥2/1 NI SHDIA¥ES ENIT HZDVNONYI 95EROl 00 G6T ST8LL MD
TE FET PLI/%2/1 LSEMAIN TIVEHWIN GHEFPECT 00 S6T €T8LL HD
9€°02¢ PI/¥2/1 2 ¥EHTIVYIL ¥ AONdL SNYador 000TOT 00 S6T TI8LL  MD
S 6T FI/PE/T HLTYHH NMOLHKWOH 92¢CP0T 00 S6T £08LL  MD
TLTTTL FI/P2/1 NTHHDS A¥NHH 0%0E0Y 00 S67T 008LL D
9T " FPE PL/¥2/1 DT ¥EMGIL TYE0TD LIECEOT 00 €61 66LLL WD
00°91T PL/%2/1 ¥ OIAYIZC ‘YILSHYD BZ6EQT 00 S61 ZELLL D
SLTETT PL/vE/T {oA) ETIDINOUHD MICOLSKWOD 26966 00 S6T T6LLL MO
00°G59 PT/PE/1 SNOTIYDINAWWOD MILUYHD I6966 00 S6T 8RLLL D
00865 PT/9E/1 ONI d00dINO SED LEGEOT 00 S61 LBLLL D
00" L¥E v1/%2/1 SIMET IILODS ‘TII3yand TLOEOF 00 S67T T8LLL D
00°095 ¥L/0T/T DNI S¥NO0L ALID YINIDAIA £E68E0F 0C S6T LOLLL D
Sz 8z FPT/0T/T W YHONVS ‘q¥0davdd ZOGE0F 00 SBT OFLLL  AD
69°8YC'1C FPI/0T/T OILVSNEAWOD ADNEDY DITINd 686Z0T 00 S6T 8CLLL D
00°%S PT/0T/T d OTEONY ‘TINIdLHd S68E0% 00 S6T FELLL MD
00°Le9T PL/OT/T SIMAT LIODS ‘TIdXEng TL9EQF 00 S6T 8L9LL D
00005’ % FT/0T/T NOOIY¥S 00TE A0 IAMDNE SSETO¥ 00 S61 SL9LL D
00°2% €ET/LZ/2T ONI S¥MNOL ALID YINIDAIA £68E07 00 S6T TSSLL  MD
05°¢8 e1/Le/eT LT INFHdOTHAHO SAY S8Z00T 00 S6T 8GGLL D
08 6T €ET/ET/ET W YHONYS ‘Od04dvH Z06E0¥ 00 S6T QZSLL WD
€5 L cI/ET/ET SMUOMEHHLYET 8YEVFOY 00 S8T €6FLL  AD
8% 1€ ET/ET/21 ONI TYOLOW SHAAOTAWH LYEVOT 00 S6T €9%LL WD
00 0€ ET/TO/TT HY¥OHAd ‘¥¥aNsd 6S6€0% 00 G6T QLOLL MO
0T 2t €T/8T/0T NATHH AYVW ‘d485HTED ZOE¥OF 00 S&T €L69L  HD
67282 €T/%0/01 dADHA AEN Y6ZV0T 00 S6T 0L89L D
6T SL £ET/50/0T MEYID TRYVN 96Z¥%0% 00 S6T 0989L ¥D
00 0SE £T/0g/6 do¥EId  ITAMOA 887%0% 00 S6T 9ELYL MO
06" LT £1/0e/6 qAYS ® SSYID ‘ND20T M ® D SE00T 00 S6T S¥994L MO
0% 85¢ £1/3950/6 ADTUILYA ANTONT ' AETIIWS 6LEZPOY 00 S67T T099L M2
0064 £1/60/8 ONT QNY€d¥0dd 1048 LOH £5LE0T 00 S6T Z6Z9L MO
IS5 £0T €E1/92/L NONNYD ‘NQAIoDH 0EZFOF 00 S6T 6CT9L  M¥D
00 0ST €L/82/9 ¥04aD 0L900T 00 S6T TTBGL  MD
00" 08T ET/%T/9 HYJ0ddad ‘JIANAd 656E01 00 G6T €59G.L D
00" €€ £E1/52/1 ¥ OIAV.LOO ‘YISHND 8EHECY 00 G6T STSHL  ¥MD
2T LET €1/E0/T {2D) ENYdOdd AIVLIS Id 86866 00 S6T ZBZHL MO
S8° € ET/0E/TT SI¥0U MENAVH LO90%0P 00 SBT ¥20%L D
666 zZr/otT/8 dT ENYAOHUd SYOIHENY 6¥HE0T 00 GS6T 8662L D
00 Z¢ IT/%0/1T DNI HDIA¥AS I¥DHET YAYAHLN G9ZTO0T 00 S6T £960L MD
0002 TT/12/% A00¥Y LESHLIYOAT TB9EQ¥ 00 S61 LZ¥ES  AD
£6°CBT 0T/2T/¢ d1d ‘awdd AANNES C¥EdINE SY6TO0V 00 S6T ¥TIZ98 D
9t g% 60/02/1T71 AAYISEAA ‘OHTMANT 6TVE0F 00 G6T gEEE9 MO
¥6 ST 60/91/1 MUY ONITHAN 8LVIO® 00 S6T SE9TI  AD
£¢° L 80/1T0/L UNILSINY ‘LINg S90E0¥ 00 S6T S6809 MO
869 80/T0/L HOI¥E "HILTYMIDNA £50E0% 00 S6T TE€809 AD
00" s2 80/61/9 AHIVA I NIATA S66Z0F 00 S6T EEVDS  MD
Q0 LVE 80/81/¢€ SNYOT HWOH AdIMAIINAOD S6TTIOF 00 S6T 02865 MO
S8 LT LO/BT/ZT DTT SYHENLYYd 5499 GE6ZOF Q0 S6T 6€T6S MO
00°00Z°'T FI/%2/T AIEYW ¥YNYID ‘9¥IddH S9CROY 00 S6T PELLL DD
JUNOWY s1eg YOoLaUD sweN a2dioy7dwd/ropusas  # uosied beg sueg # yosup dr

¥T/1€/T - 00/00/0 woad

666666 ybnoaylr T #yo5yD woag

g¥oay) Burtpueasino

ONIILNNOIDOY S ¥HANSYHAYL PETET:60 : 2WIL uny HT/TT/Z0 © 2380 unx

T abegq ALNNCD AHUOLS 0S54TH¥g :ON 3xodsy




L& SLO'66T 11el0]

L6 SLD 66T 1 Te30T Mueg
0T 0% 60/P1/CT ATLIL NYDTUEWY LSHTA £8€00T 00 S6T TITSSS  dA
SZTI0'T PT/TE/T 0 OEND ‘SSHH ZTT 00 S6T Z90%E ud
00004 PT/TE/T LEEVH DOSSY YEIHOIA HE¥IJ T0S006 00 €61 I90%€ ¥d
90 ¢€S¥ PL/TIE/T SENT NOIND/IWDSIY Z0¥006 00 S6T 090%¢ ¥4
$L°09G PL/TE/T XYL ¥4LAY SNI HSYM/CHEAdWI LOEO0G 00 S6T 650%€ ¥d
00" SL PL/TE/T 0D SNI H4IT JIAIDYd £0E006 0C S6T 850%¢ ¥Ug
6% 8€T PT/TE/T XYL dELAY OVIAY/aAd dWd Z0E006 0C S6T LS0%E ¥4
6L LG0T PL/TE/T NY¥Id SZT JWIJdY/ddd dW=E TOEDDS 0C S6T 950%€ ¥4
05" T6T'2 PL/TE/T dNo¥D “§NI QEOALYYH HHIL 00E006 0C S6T S50%C ¥d
€L 08 PL/TE/T SZT "SNI HAIT TYINOTOD T0Z006 00 S6T ¥S0%E ¥
G9° 0L YL1/Te/1T LNIAIDOV TYINOTOD 002006 00 S6T £50%€ dd
€T 00% 'S4 PLI/IE/T GLLS9SESTY/UTILEY IS AAN 050006 00 S6T Z50%E ¥4
£6 8% PT/LT/T G6LLSOSESTY/ITLAY IS AEN 0SC006 00 S6T 150%E dd
00°00L FI/LT/T LTTFH# DOSSY WHIEDIA BATA T05006 00 S6T 6%0FE  ¥d
95 696 'S4 PL/LT/T 6LLS9S6STH/UIEHT IS AHN 050006 00 S6T SEQOFE Mg
TL 8S0'€EL ¥T/E0/T 6LLSOSESTH/UILAY LIS AEN 050006 00 S6T LTOFE ¥4
1162 £1/90/2T dNANE IONVANSNI TYLNAd 80TQ06 00 S6T G96€E ¥4
99" FLY’9 €1/90/2T HONVIASNI TYINId T0TQO06 00 S6T T96tL dd
96" 692 €L1/eo/8 Fraod ' ATEAYID 6T6T 00 S6T 608€E ¥d
00" %ST PL/%2/T ONI S¥00L ALID YINIDAIA €68E07 00 S61 T98LL MD
2T 9%t ¥1/%2/T DLOA £86E07% 00 S6T 098LL  AD
0C€ YI/¥2/T NETTY NVIdd ‘4VOHS LBT¥0% 00 S6T 0G8LL D
52 L% PL/¥2/T W YHANVYS ‘' aQ40Iavyd Z06C07F 00 G661 £F8LL  AD
0C-006°T v1/v2/1T HEMOd ASYHINNG 90€c0T 00 S6T Z¥8LL  AD
JUNCWY 29®ea oIy sweN soloTdwug/IopusaA  # uUosSied bog ueg # oeup di
PT/1e/1 - 00/00/0 woxd
666666 UBNOIYL T #3¥o8UD woxg
syosyp) burpueasging
DONILNAODOY SuYHANSYHAL PEIET:60 : 9WIL uny F¥I/IT/20 : 23ed unyg

4 2beg ALNNOD AZIOLS 05.THE :oN jaoday




SLLZOSIST 3| 2408801 § | ZEENT 6| SEOvoZe § | ELeibs &1 Iv it § i £8306'96E § [OFDII'EE G| Ep9GGL G | Obzidby | (STELO § | IBILvY § | EOEBLOL | VECLGLZ §]OETI00D 5 | vaZeveve 5] 17 850°GLE & | BT L69THY 5 [ vLOL GNYHD
- $] - 51 - 5] - $1 - [] - ] 1510 XN
] RN
- HN S - HE s - s - H - [ 1510 Xd
- HIEN 1 - 5] - $1 - $ 1513 Xd
JEIN
RESOWES [ ZE0EROT $ | OT0  § | SB'OVIZE § | DTG FER] $7rzs8'e9 §|9E'ELLOT § 02058 S 1OBL06'ST  $ 1868912 § | SE'OVY'L § | BOSBSPZ 3 | BUGIZL S | OLLL60Z 4 | SL'SOVEOT § | 96 ZLTGI & | EUEOE 0L $ 1 DISNN TYiOL
SEOS8'EYS 6| 9.9/80T §| 010  § |0Z0e9ee S | ISEL 3 1572E829 S| €60LL0T (29058 S ) PRI06SE S| ZCBILL G |Stavvl § | [942GVC S| GLLICL & | OWOIGUL  © | ¥UGENS0T S | SEZITEL ¢ | ORIST0E7 S [ vlot/Enoe
iTgoT 5| B5'E - § | 501 T sary $ {196 HIER FHE) ) 51TED S o= 5|08 s | og 5| 15SE R HERT % | 90ndd IWi0L
[ [ ] FERT] $ 1600 5 vED 5 1900 $ 100 600 51100 H £E10 s]tro $ [ 150 B 671 ETO7/TI0Z
00'06Z 05’ 80T $ | ov'sE 5 8Lr § LTt § | LET 120 13Y 5|00 080 HER 5699 § | PEBE 5] - 5] bEsE je30mng
¥zt o 9910 TT'T 9T 120 100 TE'0 HIEE €00 5 | 6¥0 5Tivo $|sez [ (T3 TLOC/110Z
£0°9TT [ H fi%] ETVE 30y BT Y60 z1'0 serz 5 | TvD 20 B 51T6% s|IE0z $ IHEY TTOT/0T0C
6LTL SIvTT H [ 51 6L 27 221 80D S| 081 5 | sz 050 $I6LE slote s|seer § irig S| 010r/600T
JOS5I5Y
TEVIO AT § 1 - sjezer §| - S{LyOTEE G| vosr G| SLVSSEET S O0LTBEL § | GOGbET § | O9DOLEE  § | 65¢95h § | SUSI0E § | SEZELTE  § | OLEGLST § | PODROGH § | GELZOEL § | DL SEVOIE € SE'BHE'TIZ $ | S19L0L Lyod3y
- [ PaIn3es punjsy
EEPZ0TLO0T | - Tt §| - $14oree § b0z 5| SLYSSEET § | OOLESZZ 3 |BIGPET G| O9VOLEE G | 65095¥ § | OFSEOE § | SEiBL7S 3| OLCOLGT § | VOVBUSE § | 66LZ0°0EC § | STSEWOIE § | SR ORETIT $ | @34nD3s oL
OTSLA'E0T §] - SlETEIT_§| - § | ve'SeHT  § OB'6ER'ZET EUTZL2Z 6 | 99'LEET £6'EBS'EE 6 | E0ZESD 60°E00’E $ | Z0°DT6'TS & | €0'RIEST TUSER'Er 29°982'2€67 § | 79'689°60F $ | OT'SEE60T $1/ET TW10L
TR § LTTE 9E'S §[¢Eo 5 | 6L 5| 80T 220 sieezt HIEEE 0l L6E5 H vTTZT S5R5SY |Epads
80'£29°E90T § TeELE vE'SRBY § £9'808'CET LLSTL'ZE S| PGLEET S| SOOLSEE S | S69es b LEZO0E S| PBEOGLS & TrvERTr SIZELTE 5 | CFEBO'RAE S | 96TLTBOL ¥T0Z/ETOZ
ETEPT'L §1 - s - - S|ETTEN'T S e9lT S| SBPTL £8'STT €8  §[e9'08t § Togsz 5l iszz [FR{H $ § {Z6'8EZ Lrovz T § oSl S | SLE66'T YOIHd TWLOL
16'LITT 51 - s - - S{bSTSE 51 - 5 | 68'02C s | ZTLE [EX3 5| b5 S 51 LET sT'98 S{VrEL BL08E - 5 | E6098 ET0£/Z10Z 201
B 6T vE'E oz'o [ siigo 2] 29 BEE VIEE ET'9/ § | ssasiy EpedE
[ERED 06007 3 | 8L'EE (X 511808 ST 76'S ¢ [ €08t 515699 5 | pSorE 0BF8Y, AT
- 5] - s - 51 - $ | 65°6S0T 94T § | ov'pEr SL8L BL'S § | sever L 0z'91 5| £0'86T $ | dv'sat $ | 65098 v9'56L § | T8Ter'T H jQ1eigng
PSEREE ] ETLLL EVLZE HIE (a3 5 | 68'C8 $0ETT [ 80REL R 5 ] 90'59¢8 ¥9'S6L S| ITesy 5 TT0T/TI0C
TTT6L (TR 97T 5 1 80E8 S| pps [T s | 96'ST $[S€T $ | 5T HIEED s |63 FEER 3 SL1ST Si TI0Z/0T0T
95'v88 3 L8TE 5 S6°EOT R sle01 $Totoz s | &8¢ S | 604 5 | 6Z'0F S | PE'PE $ | 16T B 58'L6E ST BOOZRONT
WIAMNSYIHL
TWLOL %I Ufy LAUAD %g Uiy SATYNZ [ WEGARd 1L | HIW3/3H1d vt 67 H1MOA AYISIHO4 20W NI a3 anl FITT 80 HOS d0 HS a19 15NANI TWHINID
591 SOS9E-T00 | POTHE-TOD 100 [ [ [15] 100 [ <8T b16 [13 091 [ 005-100 T00

PTOZ AYVNNYE 40 HINCIA 3HA HOd WA QY




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/10/14 Estimate of time required: 0- 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended metion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I'move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Commmumity Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

S. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

<
District Attorney

Department Name: Community Development

%ﬁﬁfﬁ\/{anager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[T

Agenda Item No, 8




Storey County Community Bevelopment

7

Buginess Licenging

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 + (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office February 10, 2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the February 18, 2014, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

A. AERO AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER CO — Contractor / 21605 N Central ~ Phoenix, AZ
(fire protection contractor)

Inspection Required

ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept, Sheriff’s Office
Auwstin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office




Catalyst Fund Information

Hem Fii< 12




AGREEMENT FOR ALLOCATION OF CATALYST FUNDS

A Contract Between the State of Nevada
Acting By and Through the

NEVADA GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
808 W. Nye Lane
Carson City, NV 89703
Phone: 888-336-1600

And

COUNTY OF STOREY
Addressl
Address2

Phone: - -

This Agreement, made on [EXECUTION DATE] by and between the Nevada Governor’s Office of
Economic Development (“GOED”), and the Storey County (“Sponsoring Municipality™) approved by the
Board or the Executive Director of GOED as authorized by the board, as required pursuant to NRS 231.1571-
NRS 231.1577, as meeting the criteria necessary to receive a distribution from the Nevada Catalyst Fund in the
form of a grant or a loan (individually or collectively referred to herein as “Catalyst Fund Proceeds™) outlined
in NRS 231.1571 and NRS 231.1573.

I. Approved Catalyst Fund Proceeds

1. At the Board meeting conducted July 11, 2013, the Board approved the following Catalyst Fund grant
for the above stated Sponsoring Municipality:

$630,000 for Ardagh Metal Packaging USA, Inc.

2. The proposed use of the Catalyst Fund proceeds, including expected plans, projects, or programs to be
supported by the grant, and any anticipated short-term or long-term impacts from the use of grant
funds, include as follows:

Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Inc. manufacturers metal cans and ends for the food, pet food,
and heat can industries from plants in New York, Pennsylvania, West Virginia, and California,
with a significant majority of revenue diversified across such national/international brand names
including Bumblebee Foods, Del Monte, Chicken of the Sea, and Seneca. The grant would be
use towards the purchase of additional water rights and water purification system for a
327,000sf manufacturing facility in _the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, Storey

County.

NEVADA GOED (0513) Page 1 0f 6 CATALYST FUNLD: Ardagh Metal Packaging USA, Inc.




II. Covenants, Warranties, and Representations of Regional Development Agency

1. The Sponsoring Municipality covenants, warrants, and represents that it has entered into or will enter
into within ninety (90) days a separate written agreement with cach business to which the Sponsoring
Municipality will provide Catalyst Fund Proceeds granted pursuant to this request and this Agreement;

2. The Sponsoring Municipality covenants, warrants, and represents the agreement entered into between
the Sponsoring Municipality and the business receiving Catalyst Fund Proceeds shall require each
business entity receiving funds from the Sponsoring Municipality to return Catalyst Fund Proceeds to
GOED if it is determined that the Catalyst Fund Proceeds are not then currently being, or have not
been, used in accordance with either this Agreement between the Sponsoring Municipality and GOED,
or the agrecment between the Sponsoring Municipality and the business receiving Catalyst Fund
Proceeds;

3. The Sponsoring Municipality covenants, warrants, and represents that pursuant to the agreement
between the Sponsoring Municipality and each business that will receive Catalyst Fund Proceeds, each
business receiving any Catalyst Fund Proceeds agrees to and consents to the public disclosure of: (i)
the company name of any entity receiving Catalyst Fund Proceeds; (ii) the applicable ownership
interests for the entity receiving Catalyst Fund Proceeds, including but not limited to; equity interests,
partnership interests, membership interests, shareholder interests, and any other ownership interests
and by whom held; (iii) the award amount requested, and (iv) agreed-upon performance requirements,
including, but not limited to: {a) number of primary jobs created, (b) anticipated wage levels to be
paid, (¢} capital investment, and (d) other project specific performance requirements to be determined
under paragraph (5) of this Section;

4. The Sponsoring Municipality covenants, warrants, and represents that pursuant to the agreement
between the Sponsoring Municipality and each business that will receive Catalyst Fund Proceeds, each
business receiving Catalyst Fund Proceeds agrees to disclose all details, not subject to privilege or
confidentiality restrictions, regarding: (i) proposed plans; (ii) projects and programs for which the
Catalyst Fund grant or loan will be used; and (iii) any other information relevant to the proposed
project for which Catalyst Fund Proceeds;

5. The Executive Director of GOED may, from time to time and based on the specific request of each
individual Catalyst Fund Proceeds applicant, request additiona! information that he or she deems
necessary for approval or denial of the request, in his or her sole discretion.

IIi. Sponsoring Municipality Reporting Requirements

1. The overall grant period for this award is defined as: [EFFECTIVE DATE START], 2013 through
[EFFECTIVE DATE END], 2018, with Award Periods as defined below.
a. The award disbursement schedule is agreed upon as follows:

NEVADA GOED (0513) Page 2 of 6 CATALYST FUND: Ardagh Metal Packaging USA, Inc.




Period 1

The sooner of
either:

(1) the quarter in
which the initial
80 primary jobs
are created, or
(2) 15 months
following the
effective date of
this agreement.

Up to $360,000

34,500 per primary job up to $360,000 disbursed
following the sooner of either (1) the quarter in
which the initial 80 primary jobs are created, or (2)
15 months following the effective date of this
agreement. Total average wage for jobs created
must meet or exceed the lesser average wage of
either the state or the county/municipality wherein
operations are established. No funding will be
disbursed if less than 40 primary jobs are created
during the initial 12-month period of this agreement

Period 2

30 months
following the

| effective date of

this agreement.

Up to $90,000

$900 per primary job up to $90,000 disbursed after
the end of 30 months following the effective date of
this agreement. Total average wage for jobs created
must meet or exceed the lesser average wage of
either the state or the county/municipality wherein
operations are established. No funding will be
disbursed if less than 50 cumulative primary jobs
are created by the end of the 30-month period.

Period 3

45 months
following the
effective date of
this agreement.

Up to $90,000

$750 per primary job up to $90,000 disbursed after
the end of 45 months following the effective date of
this agreement. Total average wage for jobs created
must meet or exceed the lesser average wage of
either the state or the county/municipality wherein
operations are established. No funding will be
disbursed if less than 60 cumulative primary jobs
are created by the end of the 45-month period.

Period 4

60 months
following the
effective date of
this agreement.

Up to $90,000

$643 per primary job up to $90,000 disbursed after
the end of 60 months following the effective date of
this agreement. Total average wage for jobs created
must meet or exceed the lesser average wage of
either the state or the county/municipality wherein
operations are established. No funding will be
disbursed if less than 70 cumulative primary jobs
are created by the end of the 60-month period.

2. After the grant of Catalyst Fund Proceeds to a Sponsoring Municipality, the Sponsoring Municipality,
within thirty (30) days after the close of the Award Period during which Catalyst Fund Proceeds were
approved for disbursement, shall provide to the Executive Director of GOED, an initial report on the
project that includes ALL of the following information:

a. A description of each activity undertaken with the Catalyst Fund Proceeds and the amount of
Catalyst Fund Proceeds used for each activity;

b. The return-on-investment on the Catalyst Fund Proceeds provided through the grant or loan
expressed through performance measures including, but not limited to; (i) number of primary
jobs created, (if) anticipated wage levels to be paid, (iii) capital investment, and (d) other
project specific performance requirements to be determined under paragraph (d) of this

Section.;

c. A statement of the benefit to the public from the distribution of Catalyst Fund Proceeds,
including documentation that supports the benefit; and

d. Any additional documentation that the Executive Director of GOED deems appropriate to

support the grant or loan application request.

NEVADA GOED (0513)

Page 3 of 6

CATALYST FUND: Ardagh Metal Packaging USA, Inc.




3. The Sponsoring Municipality hereby agrees to a continued reporting requirement based on
disbursement of Catalyst Fund Proceeds. The Sponsoring Municipality shall make annual reports to
GOED within thirty (30) days after the close of the State of Nevada’s fiscal year (June 30) after the
filing of the initial report described in Section ITI(1)(a) above is delivered. Within these subsequent
reports, the Sponsoring Municipality shall provide a report to GOED that includes the following
information:

a. The number of primary jobs created as a result of each specific grant or loan made pursuant
to the specific application for which this Agreement was entered into and Catalyst Fund
Proceeds were disbursed;

i. “Primary Job” as used herein shall have the definition set forth in NAC 360.474(3),
defining “primary job” to mean “a position of employment offered by an applicant
for a partial abatement, the compensation for which is obtained from revenue that is
generated outside the economic region in which the business is located”;

b. The wage levels of the primary jobs created as a result of each specific grant or loan made
pursuant to the specific application for which this Agreement was entered into and Catalyst
Fund Proceeds were disbursed; and

¢. Confirmation that the minimum primary job target agreed to by and between the Sponsoring
Municipality and the ultimate recipient of Catalyst Fund Proceeds has been reached in a
given period.

4. The disbursement of Catalyst Fund Proceeds by GOED to the Sponsoring Municipality shall be made
in defined installments only after an affirmative demonstration by the Sponsoring Municipality that:

a. The agreement between the Sponsoring Municipality and the Catalyst Fund Proceeds
recipient is not in default, breach, or otherwise non-complaint by either party;

b. The Sponsoring Municipality has provided certification of such compliance of the underlying
agreement between the Sponsoring Municipality and the Catalyst Fund Proceeds recipient
through filing of a report in compliance with the requirements of Section III(2) hereof; and

¢. The Sponsoring Municipality confirms that it has no knowledge of then existing facts that
would indicate the Catalyst Fund Proceeds recipient is in danger of being unable to satisfy the
requirements contained in the agreement between the Sponsoring Municipality and the
Catalyst Fund Proceeds recipient.

d. Disbursements of an installment of Catalyst Fund Proceeds by GOED not made because of
the Sponsoring Municipality’s inability to satisfy the Requirements of III(3) of this
Agreement revert back to the Catalyst Fund and GOED, and the Sponsoring Municipality
shall have no right to funds properly withheld by GOED based on the Sponsoring
Municipality’s failure to satisfy the requirements of Section ITK(3) hereof.

IV. Reimbursement for Failure to Comply with Terms of Agreements

1. If GOED finds after a reasonable investigation that the Sponsoring Municipality has failed to use or
misused the Catalyst Fund money in accordance with the terms of the Agreement between the
Sponsoring Municipality and GOED, the Executive Director of GOED may immediately cease
providing the Sponsoring Municipality with funds allocated from the Catalyst Fund, and the
Executive Director of GOED may, in his or her sole discretion, determine that the Agreement is void.

NEVADA GOED (0513) Page 4 of 6 CATALYST FUND: Ardagh Metal Packaging USA, Inc.




In such a case, the Sponsoring Municipality hereby agrees to repay to the Catalyst Fund the amount of
the grant or loan provided in connection with the voided Agreement, plus interest at the statutory rate.

a. Interest accrual shall begin on disbursed Catalyst Fund Proceeds on an Agreement between
GOED and the Sponsoring Municipality once this Agreement is declared void and the
Sponsoring Municipality has been provided an opportunity to cure after:

i. GOED has provided notice of the intention to void the Agreement;
ii. The Sponsoring Municipality has been given thirty (30) days to cure the non-
compliance; and
iii. The Sponsoring Municipality has not actually cured the non-compliance within thirty
(30) days;

b. After this Agreement has become void, interest shall accrue as of the date of expiration of the
thirty (30) days provided to the Sponsoring Municipality to cure,

2. Through this Agreement, the Sponsoring Municipality agrees, acknowledges, and consents to the
requirements herein, and agrees, acknowledges, and consents to the authority of GOED to seek
reimbursement or “claw back™ funds distributed to the Sponsoring Municipality for the ultimate
disbursement of Catalyst Fund Proceeds that are not used in accordance with the statutory
requirements for Catalyst Fund Proceeds disbursement, or where the recipient fails to conform to the
agreement between the Catalyst Fund Proceeds recipient and the Sponsoring Municipality, including
failure to conform to the specific listed conditions set forth in Section ITI(1) above.

3. 1If the Sponsoring Municipality or GOED, after reasonable investigation, find that a business that
received a grant or loan from the Sponsoring Municipality has failed to use or misused the Catalyst
Fund money in accordance with the terms of the agreement between the Sponsoring Municipality and
the business, the business shall repay to the Sponsoring Municipality the amount of the grant or loan
that was received. The business shall, in addition to the amount of the grant or loan required to be
repaid pursuant to this subsection, pay interest on the amount due at the rate most recently established
pursuant to NRS 99.040 for each month, or portion thereof, from the last day of the month following
the period of the grant or loan until the full repayment of the Catalyst Fund Proceeds provided by
grant or loan. The Sponsoring Municipality must repay the Catalyst Fund within 30 days of receipt of
repayment from the business. The Sponsoring Municipality will use its best efforts to secure
repayment and interest from the business, and ensure reimbursement of those funds to the Catalyst
Fund of the State of Nevada.

4. For purposes of this Section IV of the Agreement, “misused” shall mean any failure to specifically
comply with the express terms of this Agreement, the agreement between the Sponsoring
Municipality and the Catalyst Fund Proceeds recipient, or any specific provision of NRS 231.1571 to
231.1579.

V. Termination for Failure to Comply with Terms of Agreements

1. If GOED finds after a reasonable investigation that the Sponsoring Municipality has failed to use or
misused the Catalyst Fund money in accordance with the terms of the Agreement between the
Sponsoring Municipality and GOED, the Executive Director of GOED may immediately redirect the
applicable and approved funds allocated from the Catalyst Fund, and the Executive Director of GOED
may, in his or her sole discretion, determine that the Agreement is void, including but not limited to,
the following circumstances:

a. The Catalyst Fund recipient fails to relocate and/or open operations in Nevada within six (6)
months following execution of its contract with the sponsoring Municipality; or

NEVADA GOED (0513) Page 5 of 6 CATALYST FUND: Ardagh Metal Packaging USA, Inc.




b. The Catalyst Fund recipient fails to create primary jobs within six (6) months following
execution of its contract with the sponsoring Municipality; or

¢. The Catalyst Fund recipient fails to meet the minimum standard (50% of target) for creation of
primary jobs during each of the first two periods, as defined in this Agreement, following
execution of its contract with the sponsoring Municipality; or

d. The Catalyst Fund recipient fails to remain in good legal standing, as determined by the
Executive Director or the Board of GOED; or

¢. The Catalyst Fund recipient either admits to or is otherwise found guilty of any crime or
wrong-doing or criminal malfeasance as determined by a court of law; or

f. Any behavior associated with the Catalyst Fund recipient, including its owners,
associates, and/or employees, is deemed a departure from the broader interests of the
State of Nevada, as determined at the discretion of the Board of GOED.

Representative of the Sponsoring Municipality Titte Executive Director, GOED

From application

Address

From application

City, State, Zip Phone o Mepada Governor's Office of
From application From application | g HOMIC DEVELORMENT
Signature Date 808 W. Nye Lane
Carson City, NV 89703
888.336.1600
NEVADA GOED (0513} Page 6 of 6 CATALYST FUND: Ardagh Metal Packaging USA, Inc.




CATALYST FUND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT
ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC.

THIS REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), is entered into as of
this [EXECUTION DATE], 2014, (“Effective Date’) by and between ARDAGH METAL
PACKAGING USA, INC. (“Company”), STOREY COUNTY, a political subdivision of the
State of Nevada (“County”), and the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF
WESTERN NEVADA (“EDAWN”). Company, County and EDAWN are hereinafier referred
to as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

A. WHEREAS, Company has been was approved by the County for award of
Catalyst Fund Proceeds from the Nevada Governor’s Office of Economic Development
(G‘GOEDS’); and

B. WHEREAS, Company submitted a Catalyst Fund Application to GOED attached
as Exhibit A to this Agreement (“Application™); and

C. WHEREAS, the Application was approved by the GOED Board on July 11, 1013
for the distribution of Catalyst Fund Proceeds to COUNTY for distribution to Company; and

D. WHEREAS, County has entered into that certain Agreement for Allocation of
Catalyst Funds by and between the County and GOED dated [EXECUTION DATE], 2014 (the
“Allocation Agreement”) approved by the Board of GOED as required pursuant to NRS
231.1571 to NRS 231.1577, inclusive, as meeting the criteria necessary to receive a distribution
from the Nevada Catalyst Fund in the form of a grant or a loan (individually or collectively
referred to herein as “Catalyst Fund Proceeds™) outlined in NRS 231.1571 and NRS 231.1573;
and

E. WHEREAS, EDAWN is an organization for economic development under
contract with the County; and

F. WHEREAS, the Parties desire to set forth in this Agreement the terms and
conditions of the payment of the Catalyst Fund Proceeds by the County to Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants set
forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Recitals. EDAWN, the County and Company acknowledge and agree that the
Recitals set forth above are true, accurate and correct, and are incorporated herein by this
reference.

2. Term. This Agreement shall remain in effect from the Effective Date set forth

Agreement.

3. Disbursement of Catalyst Fund Proceeds: reporting requirements.

(2) In accordance with the Application, the Parties agree to the following
reimbursement schedule:

Page 1 of 7




Period 1 | The sooner of either: Upto $4,500 per primary job up to $360,000 disbursed following
(1) the quarter in which $360,000 the sooner of either (1) the quarter in which the initial 80

the initial 80 primary primary jobs are created, or (2) 15 months following the
jobs are created, or (2) 15 effective date of this agreement. Total average wage for
months following the jobs created must meet or exceed the lesser average wage of
effective date of this either the state or the county wherein operations are
agreement. established. No funding will be disbursed if less than 40

primary jobs are created during the initial 12-month period
of this agreement

Period 2 | 30 months following the | Upto $900 per primary job up to $90,000 disbursed after the end
effective date of this $90,000 of 30 months following the effective date of this agreement.
agreement. Total average wage for jobs created must meet or exceed the

lesser average wage of either the state or the county wherein
operations are established. No funding will be disbursed if
less than 50 cumulative primary jobs are created by the end
of the 30-month period.

Period3 | 45 months following the | Upto $750 per primary job up to $90,000 disbursed after the end
effective date of this $90,000 of 45 months following the effective date of this agreement.
agreement, Total average wage for jobs created must meet or exceed the

lesser average wage of cither the state or the county wherein
operations are established. No funding will be disbursed if
less than 60 cumulative primary jobs are created by the end
of the 45-month period.

Period4 | 60 months following the | Upto $643 per primary job up to $90,000 disbursed after the end
effective date of this $90,000 of 60 months following the effective date of this agreement.
agreement. Total average wage for jobs created must meet or exceed the

lesser average wage of either the state or the county wherein
operations are established. No funding will be disbursed if
less than 70 cumulative primary jobs are created by the end
of the 60-month period.

(b)  The disbursement of Catalyst Fund Proceeds to the Company in accordance with
the schedule set forth in subsection (a) shalfl be made only after:

(i) The Company demeonstrates that this Agreement is not in default, breach,
or otherwise non-complaint by Company;

(ii) The Company affirms in writing that it has no knowledge of existing facts
that would indicate the Company is in danger of being unable to satisfy the requirements
contained in the Agreement.

(iii) EDAWN verifies and affirms in writing to the County that Company has
met the Disbursement Criteria for the applicable Award Period set forth in subsection (a).

(c) Within twenty one (21) days after the close of an Award Period, Company shall
provide EDAWN and the County an initial report on the project that includes ALL of the
following information:

Page 2 of 7




1) A description of each activity undertaken with the Catalyst Fund Proceeds,
and the amount of Catalyst Fund Proceeds used for each activity;

(i1) The return-on-investment on the Catalyst Fund Proceeds expressed
through performance measures including, but not limited to; (i) number of primary jobs created,
(i1) anticipated wage levels to be paid, (iii) capital investment, and (d) any other project specific
performance requirements requested by the County or GOED;

(1i1) A statement of the benefit to the public from the distribution of Catalyst
Fund Proceeds, including documentation that supports the benefit; and

@iv) Any additional documentation that the County or the Executive Director
of GOED deems appropriate.

(d) As used herein, “primary job” shall have the definition set forth in NAC
360.474(3); specifically, “a position of employment offered by an applicant for a partial
abatement, the compensation for which is obtained from revenue that is generated outside the
economic region in which the business is located.”

(e) The Company hercby agrees to a continued reporting requirement based on
disbursement of Catalyst Fund Proceeds. The Company shall make annual reports to EDAWN,
the County and/or GOED within twenty one (21) days after the close of the State of Nevada’s
fiscal year (June 30) after the filing of the initial report described in Section 3(c) above is
delivered. Within these subsequent reports, the Company shall provide a report to EDAWN and
the County that includes the following information:

(i) The number of primary jobs created as a result of this Agreement;
(ii) The wage levels of the primary jobs created as a result of this Agreement;
and
(ii1) Confirmation that the minimum primary job target agreed to by and

between the County and the Company has been reached in a given Award Period.

4, Covenants, warranties, and representations of Company.

(a) The Company covenants, warrants, and represents to refund and return Catalyst
Fund Proceeds to County and/or GOED if it is determined that the Catalyst Fund Proceeds are
not being, or have not been, used in accordance with this Agreement, the Allocation Agreement,
or the specific provision of NRS 231.1571 to 231.1579.

(b)  Company agrees to and consents to the public disclosure of: (i) the company
name of any entity receiving Catalyst Fund Proceeds; (ii) the applicable ownership interests for
the entity receiving Catalyst Fund Proceeds, including but not limited to; equity interests,
partnership dnterests, membership interests, shareholder interests, and any other ownership
interests and by whom held; (iii) the award amount requested, and (iv) agreed-upon performance
requirements, including, but not limited to: (a) number of primary jobs created, (b) anticipated
wage levels to be paid, (c) capital investment, and (d) other project specific performance
requirements to be determined under Section 3(c)(ii).

(c) Company agrees to disclose all details, not subject to privilege or confidentiality
restrictions, regarding: (i) proposed plans; (ii) projects and programs for which the Catalyst Fund

Page 3 of 7




Proceeds will be used; and (iii) any other information relevant to the proposed project for which
Catalyst Fund Proceeds.

5. Reimbursement for failure to comply with terms of Agreement.

(a) If EDAWN, the County or GOED, after reasonable investigation, find that
Company has failed to use or misused Catalyst Fund Proceeds in violation of the terms of this
Agreement, the Executive Director of GOED may, in his or her sole discretion, determine that
the Agreement is void, and the Company shall within thirty (30} days repay to the County the
amount of the funds received by Company under this Agreement (“Event of Default™). The
Company shall, in addition to the amount of the funds required to be repaid pursuant to this
subsection, pay interest on the amount due at the rate most recently established pursuant to NRS
99.040 for each month, or portion thereof, from the last day of the month following the period of
the disbursement until the full repayment of the Catalyst Fund Proceeds.

(b) For purposes of this Section, “misused” shall mean any failure of Company to
specifically comply with the express terms of this Agreement, the Allocation Agreement, or any
specific provision of NRS 231.1571 to 231.1579. The term “misuse” shall also include, without
limitation, the following:

(1) The Company fails to relocate and/or open operations in Nevada within
six (6) months following the Effective Date of this Agreement; or

(i) The Company fails to create primary jobs within six (6) months following
the Effective Date of this Agreement; or

(1ii) The Company fails to meet the minimum standard (50% of target) for
creation of primary jobs during each of the first two Award Periods, as defined in this
Agreement; or

{(1v) The Company fails to remain in good legal standing, as determined by the
County or the Executive Director or the Board of GOED; or

v) The Company either admits to or is otherwise found guilty of any crime or
wrong-doing or criminal malfeasance as determined by a court of law; or

(vi) Any behavior associated with the Company, including its owners,
associates, and/or employees, is deemed a departure from the broader interests of the State of
Nevada, as determined at the discretion of the Board of GOED.

6. Continuation and reservation of rights. In the event of any Event of Default,
County expressly reserves its rights to pursue all remedies and actions, whether at law, in equity
or otherwise for any and all defaults or events of default now or hereafter existing under the
Agreement.

7. Miscellaneous,

(a) Limited Liability. Damages for any County breach of this Agreement shall never
exceed the amount of funds appropriated and legally authorized for payment under this
Agreement, but not yet paid, for the fiscal year budget in existence at the time of the breach.
Contract liability of County for a breach of this Agreement shall not be subject to punitive
damages. Moreover, it is acknowledged by Company that this Agreement does not create a lien

Page 4 of 7




or pledge of any revenue of County, the State or any of its political subdivisions, and does not
constitute any indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation
or restriction. Neither the members of Board of County Commission nor any persons executing
this Agreement are liable personally hereunder.

(b) Survival. The provisions of Sections 4 and 5, as well as any other provision of
this Agreement that contemplates performance or observance subsequent to termination or
expiration of this Agreement will survive expiration or termination of this Agreement and
continue in full force and effect for the period set forth therein, or if no period is set forth therein,
indefinitely.

() Amendment. There are no oral agreements, understandings, warranties or
representations between the Parties hereto with respect to the subject matter covered by this
Agreement. This Agreement is not intended to have any legal effect, or to be a legally binding
agreement, or any evidence thereof, until it has been signed by each of the Parties hereto. This
Agreement shall not be amended or modified in any way except by an instrument in writing
executed by each of the Parties hereto.

(d)  Successors and assigns. This Agreement is entered into for the exclusive benefit
of the Parties hereto and GOED, and no other party shall derive any rights or benefits herefrom.
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of EDAWN, County, GOED and
Company and their permitted successors, legal representatives and assigns.

(e) Governing law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of Nevada.

H Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument and any of the Parties
hereto may execute this Agreement by signing any such counterpart.

(g)  Notices. Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, all notices to be sent
pursuant to this Agreement shall be made in writing, and sent to the Parties at their respective
addresses specified below or to such other address as a Party may designate by written notice
delivered to the other Parties in accordance with this Section. All such notices shall be sent by:

(i) personal delivery, in which case notice is effective upon delivery;

(i1) certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, in which case notice
shall be deemed delivered on receipt if delivery is confirmed by a return receipt;

(i11) nationally recognized overnight courier, with charges prepaid or charged
to the sender’s account, in which case notice is effective on delivery if delivery is confirmed by
the delivery service;

(iv) facsimile transmission, in which case notice shall be deemed delivered
upon transmittal, provided that (a) a duplicate copy of the notice is promptly delivered by first-
class or certified mail or by ovemnight delivery, or (b) a transmission report is gencrated
reflecting the accurate transmission thereof. Any notice given by facsimile shall be considered
to have been received on the next business day if it is received after 5:00 p.m. recipient’s time or
on a nonbusiness day.

County: Storey County

Page 5 of 7




Attn: Pat Whitten, County Manger
P.O.Box 176
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Phone: (775) 847-0968
Fax: (775) 847-0949

EDAWN: EDAWN
Attn: Michael J. Kazmierski
5190 Neil Road, Suite 110
Reno, NV 89502
Phone: 775 829-3711
Fax: 775 829-3711
Company: ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC.
Attn:
1170 Trademark Drive, Suite 101
Reno, Nevada 89521
Phone:
Fax:

(h) Captions; interpretation. The captions and section headings appearing in this
Agreement are included solely for convenience of reference and are not intended to affect the
interpretation of any provision of this Agreement.

(1) Time of the essence. Time is strictly of the essence of this Agreement and full and
complete performance of each provision hereof.

() Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is invalid and unenforceable in
any jurisdiction, then, to the fullest extent permitted by law, provided that the essential terms of
this Agreement remain valid, binding and enforceable, (i) the other provisions hereof shall
remain in full force and effect in such jurisdiction and (ii) the invalidity or unenforceability of
any provision hereof in any jurisdiction shail not affect the validity or enforceability of such
provision in any other jurisdiction.

(k)  Advice from independent counsel. Each party hereto understands that this is a
legally binding agreement that may affect such party’s rights. Each party hereto represents to
each other party hereto that it has obtained independent counsel and received legal advice about
the meaning and legal significance of this Agreement.

D Judicial interpretation. Should any provision of this Agreement require judicial
interpretation, it is agreed that a court interpreting or construing the same shall not apply a
presumption that the terms hereof shall be more strictly construed against any party by reason of
the rule of construction that a document is to be construed more strictly against the party who
itself or through its agent prepared the same, it being agreed that all Parties hereto have
participated in the preparation hereof.

(m)  Recitals. The recitals set forth herein comprise a material part of this Agreement.

Page 6 0of 7




(n)  Integration. This Agreement, along with any exhibits, appendices, addendums,
schedules, and amendments hereto, encompasses the entire agreement of the Partics, and
supersedes all previous understandings and agreements between the Parties, whether oral or
written.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]}]

Page 7 of 7




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have each duly executed and delivered this
Agreement, and agree to the terms hereof.

STOREY COUNTY
a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

By Date
Marshall McBride, Chairman
Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

By

Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:

By

William A. Maddox
District Attorney’s Office

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF WESTERN NEVADA

By Date
Michael J. Kazmierski, CEO, EDAWN

ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC.

By Date

Page 8 of 7




EXHIBIT A:
Application




-

E‘&E\\B\T /\

Catalyst Fund
Application

Governot's Office of Economic Development

Las Vegas 702-486-2700
Reno 775-687-9500
Toll Free 800-336-1600




Governor's Office of Economic Development

Fund Application

INTRODUCTION oo

LOCAL GOVERNMENT SUBMITTING:
PROJECT NAME (RECIPIENT COMPANY):

Acuthorized Representative

Name:

Title:

Organization:
Address:

Phone Number:
Mobile Number:

Emall Address:;

Pat Whitten

County Manager

Storey County

PO Box 176 — Virginia City, NV - 89440
(775) 847-0968

(775) 721-7001
pwhitten@storeycounty.org

Storey County
Ardagh Metal Packaging USA, Inc.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, the information contained in this Catalyst Fund Application is true and
correct, as evidenced by my signature befow.

Signature

Page 1

TPwW

Date July 8, 2013

| {Represeniative)




Governor's Office of Economic Development
Catalyst Fund Application

{1 Constract New Facility [ New Business / Start-up
%  Expand/Renovate Existing Facility [ Relocation from Qut-of-State
x  Purchase Machinery & Equipment (] Relocation within Nevada

If applicable, identify the industry cluster within which this project falls,

[T Aerospace and Defense {71 Health 8 Medical Services [0 Mining & Materials

] Agriculture [ Logistics & Operations [ renewable Energy

[] Business IT Ecosystems X  Manufacturing [3 Tourism, Gaming & Entertsinment
O other

Amount requested: - 630,000, 5 vears

Period — 1: $4,500 per primary job up t $360,000 disbursed following the sooner of either (1) the
quarter in which the initial 80 primary jobs are created, or (2) 15 months following the effective date
of the Catalyst Fund agreement. Total average wage for jobs created must meet or exceed the
lesser average wage of either the state or the county/municipality whereln operations are
established, No funding will be disbursed if less than 40 primary jobs are created during the initial
12-month peried of the Catalyst Fund agreement.

Period ~ 2: $900 per primary job up to $99,000 disbursed after the end of 30 months following the
effective date of the Catalyst Fund agreement. Total average wage for jobs created must meet or
exceed the lesser average wage of either the state or the county/municipality wherein operations are
established. No funding will be disbursed ¥ less than 50 cumulative primary jobs are created by the
end of the 30-month period.

Period — 3: $750 per primary job up to $90,000 disbursed after the end of 45 months following the
effective date of the Catalyst Fund agreement, Total average wage for jobs created must meet or
exceed the lesser average wage of either the state or the county/munidpality wherein operations are
established. No funding will be disbursed if less than 60 cumulative primary jobs are created by the
end of the 45-month period.

Page 2




Governor's Office of Economic Development
Catalyst Fund Application

effective date of the Catalyst Fund agreement. Total average wage for jobs created must meet or
exceed the lesser average wage of either the state or the county/municipality wherein operations are
established. No funding will be disbursed if less than 70 cumulative primary jobs are created by the
end of the 60-month period.

The proposed plans, projects, and programs to which the grant or loan will apptly: -
Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Inc. manufacturers metal cans and ends for the food, pet food, and
heat can industries from plants in New York, Pennsylvania, West Virginia, and California, with a
significant majority of revenue diversified across such national/intermational brand names including
Bumblebee Foods, Del Monte, Chicken of the Sea, and Seneca. The grant would be use towards the
purchase of additional water rights and water purification system for a 327,000sf manufacturing
facility in the Tahoe Renoe Industrial Center, Storey County.

The expected benefits of the grant or loan expressed as jobs, investments, and wages: -
Capital expenditures - $79,981,377, Year 1 jobs — 72, Average hourly wage - $24.18, Average
healthcare premiums per employee paid by company - $14,820, Percentage paid by employer —~
B0%. Attached s fist of jobs list with wages.

A statement of the short-term impact and long term impacts: - The shot term and long term
impacts of the proposal will be the creation of high quality manufacturing jobs with good pay rates
and gemous benefits packages, as well as the related impact that this project has on the focal
economy, including the construction, transportation, hospitality, communications and other
industries.

Address fiscal responsibility of the company: — See attached finandials.

A statement of significant project relevance to supply chains, sectors and clusters
targeted by the State Plan for Economic Development: -

Please attach a copy of the local government appiication,

Page 3

Period ~ 4: $643 per primary job up to $90,000 disbursed after the end of following the




Reonoc
bbb

P

. Tahoea

or Warrtey ¥itvida
SI90 Nedd Bond, Suts 2130

50
o s

Catal Fund Application

COMPANY INFORMATION

NAME OF BUSINESS: Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Inc.

Industry Type: Manufacturing

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Name: John G. Boyas Title: Secretary and Treasurer

Street Address: Carnegie Office Park, Bidg 1, 600 N Bell Avenue, Suite 200, Carmnaegle, PA 15106

Mailing Address: Same

Phone Number: 412.429.5200 Mobile:
Emall Address: john.boyas@ardaghgroup.com

Other location(s) in Nevada: NG . [0 YeS - Piease list address{es} of sther Nevads faclifties:

To the best of my knowledge and beflef, the information contained in this Catalyst Fund Application s true and correct, as
evidenced by my signature below.

Signature , Date 5, /‘.' / '3
g5 & B

{Print Represortaiive Nama)
Signature /&L %ﬂv«/ ﬂate_ﬁ“A?’//j’
(Loca-Ecinaméc Development Represeniative)
St 7lomas
{Print Econotic Develooment Reoreeeiative fune}

Paga |1of 4 RS Rviest




'amﬁ st Fund Application S e i

5156 Kell Road, Sulte 110
Reno, Mv Basa
(775} a9-3700
wvow.edavwn.org

PROJECT SUM

Describe the project in a brief summary including the applicant’s business structure:
Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Inc. manufactores metai cans and ends for the food, pet

food, and heat can industries from plants in New York, Pennsylvania, West Virginia, and
California, with a significant majority of revenue diversified across such
national/international brand names including Bumblebes Foods, Det Monte, Chicken of
the Sea, and Seneca. From its North America headquarters in Camegie, Pennsylvania, the
management group is also responsible for can manufacturing operations in New
Brunswick, Canada and American Samoa. The company is seeking to build/open a
manufacturing facility in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center of Storey County.

Qur manufacturing process requires a significant amount of water to produce our
product. Unfortunately, the location we are considering doss not currently have the
reguired acre feet of water. We are asking the State of Nevada 5o censider our request
for additional water rights that will allow the operation to achieve the required 75 acre
feet of water in addition to the amount requested below,

Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Inc is a member of the woridwide Ardagh Group. Ardagh
Group is a growing and leading glass and metal packaging manufacturer, operating 100
facilities across 25 vountries, and employing 18,000 people worldwide. The company’s
hallmark is its commitment to quality, service, and technological advancement, and a
continual effort to improve and strengthen its business, as well as the businesses of the
customers that i serves,

List project dates and milestones:

Request is for: Grant  [Loan Amount requested: $630,000 + water rights

Total capital investment: _$79,981,377 Federal matching programs? 1 Yes No

Projected start date: Auoust 3, 9013 Completion date: Sepiember 1, 2014

Number of NEW primary jobs for Nevada: {year 1): 72 Average hourly wage of new jobs: $24.18

Number of EXASTING primary jobs i Nevada: pN/A ' Average hourly wage of existing jobs: _N/A

Annuai healthcare premiums paid per employee by employer: _$14,820 Percentage paid by employer: 806%
Attach a schedule of employee benefits,

Page | 2 of 4 SRS Ravised




Tt peWisteRE e, 0 .
5190 Nafl Road, Rulk= 110

Overtime, PTO, sick, vacation, bonus, retirement plan/401K, merit increases,
tuition assistance. Copies of sample plans were supplied by the company with the State of Nevada
Commission for Economic Development Incentives application dated May 31, 2013.

Identify any other employee benefits:
Please refer to our response to the previous question,

I Attach current company financials, including a current/recent balance shest and income statement, and if possible, a
S-year historical and projected P&L including footnotes on sources of financialffunds and operating asstumptions.

Attach, or disclose, as Schedule A (use additional shest if more space needed) a schedule of jobs created by category with
average wage per job category. OPTIONAL: Please include a schedule by phase of jobs to be added for the term of the
project/award.

Completa Job Description(s} Rumber Hourly

of fobs Wage Annual Compensation

Year-1 staffing pian attached os Schedule A

Attach, or disclose, as Schedule B a summary of anticipated capital Investment and/or relocation costs¥

PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS (Check sl that appfy)

[0 Construct New Facility {3 New Business / Start-up
Expand/Renovate Existing Facility L1 Relocation from Out-of-State
Purchase Machinery & Equipment [ Relocation within Nevada

INDUSTRY CLUSTER (i applicable, idertify the industry duster(s) within which his project falls.)

[0 Aerospace and befense [] Health & Medical Services [ Mining & Materials

[J Agricukture [ Logistics & Operations [ Renewable Energy

I Business IT Ecosystems Mantfacturing [J Tourism, Gaming & Entertainment
[0 other

Page [3af4 B/ Reviszt




ata!yst Fund Application

plicable State incentives, applied or intended:
Sales & Use Tax Abatement

[ ] sales & Use Tax Deferral

Personal Property Tax Abatement

£ Modified Business Tax Abatement

Silver State Works

Traln Employees Now (TEN) Grant

{7 other:

Please list all other sources of funding received or applied for by the business or project:
N/iA

Please describe the fong-term sustalnability and viability of the businéss or project:

The The short-ferm ang Ignq-term impacts of the gmmj Wikl hg the creation of hich gua ;Q

fachuring jo good pay rates and generous benefits packages, as wall a:

Please provide a description of the national significance of the project and whether federal funds may be attained
currently or in the future: (atiach additional sheet If more space needed)

The company does not plan to seek federal funds for this project.

Please provide a descripuon of any environmental impact: (attach addlﬁonaisheet ¥ move space needed)
.&ra will; as evidenced in previous new faciity build-ups, inte -;1 the late

- Compounds "VOC caren uchananduhhze
510)) !icable in order | O & 2

Pega [4af4 BI6/2013 Revisad




This application has been reviewed and approved by (name and Inftial):

4.y,

ATEC  Tow M Hhawss

Page | Sof 4 G0 davieet




Ardagh Meta] Packaging USA Ine.

(formerly Impress USA, inc.)

BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, Net
OTHER ASSETS

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
OTHER LIABILITIES
Total Liabilities
SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY

Total Shareholder's Equity
Total Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

12/31/2010
us
In Thousands

3 74,754
61,599
4,178

3 140,531

3 54814
39530

94,344

46,187

_5 140531




Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Inc

(formerly Impress USA, Inc)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

NET SALES
COST OF GOODS SOLD
Gross Profit

OPERATING EXPENSES

Income From Operations

OTHER (INCOMEYEXPENSE
Income Before Income Tax Provision
INCOME TAX PROVISION

Net Income

{In Thousands)
5 198,709
i 53,902;
44,806

19,679
25,127

9,470
15,657
6,226

S sar




Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Tne.

BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)

, ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, Net
OTHER ASSETS

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
OTHER LIABILITIES
Total Liabilities
SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY

Total Shareholder's Equity
Total Liabilities and Sharsholder's Equity

1243172011
Us
{In Thousands)
3 65,671
60,931
3,531

§ 130,133

39,288
37,875

77,163

52,970

$_1053




Ardagh Metal Packaging USA [ne,

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS {UNAUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

NET SALES
COC8T OF GOODS 50LD
Gross Profit

OPERATING EXPENSES

" Income From Operations
OTHER (INCOME)YEXPENSE
income Before Income Tax Provision
INCOME TAX PROVISION

Net Income

(in Thousands)
3 181,704
150,810
30,894

15,9204
14,990

3,218
11,772
4,048

3 7,724




Ardagh Metal Packaping USA Inc
BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
PROFERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, Net
OTHER ASSETS

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
OTHER LIABILITIES

Total Liabilities

SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY

Total Shareholder's Equity
Total Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

12031/12
Us
(In Thousands)
77,754
56,051
2,218

§ 136,623

42,838 |
35387 ;
78,225

57,798
3 136,023




Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Ine

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

NET SALES
COST OF GOODS SOLD
Gross Profit

OPERATING EXPENSES

Income From Operations

OTHER (INCOMEYEXPENSE
Income Before Income Tax Provision
INCOME TAX PROVISION

Net Income

Us
(In Thousands)

$ 184276
148,061
36,215

21,633

14,582
4,163
10,419

4,180

3 6,235




SEHEDULE H

Employee / Salary Schedule

for:

Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Inc

1=t alf employees and associated wages for aff parsons that will be hired and emplayed by the company by the end of
it's first four (4) quarters of operation at their faciily located in Storey County, NV. The Stafe of Nevada will conduct
it's wage and employee count audit based on the information provided below.

Directions: Complete columns (a), (b) and { c}). Formulas will calculate columns (d} and {e).

{a) . o dec) {d} © e
Job Title # of positions | Annual Salary | Hourly Wage | Total Annual Satary/Title |
Plant Mahager __(Salary) 1 §140,000.00 $67.31 $140,000.00
HR Generalist (Salary) 1 $90,000.00 $43.27 $50,000.00
Plant Enginear {Salary} h $20,000.00 43,27 $80,066.00
Process Enginesr  (Salary) : $80,000.00 4327 $90,000.00
Qually Manager __(Salary) 1 $75,000.00 $36.06 $75,000.00
Financial Controfior (Salary} 1 $87,500.00 $46.88 $97.500.00
Schedu Jistics (Salary) 1 $78.000.00 $37.50 __$78,000.00
Seamer Service  (Safary) 1 $110,500.00 $53.13 “$140,500.00
TeamLeads _ (Hourly) 3 $47,000.00 522.60 $141,000.00
Electicians {Houtly) 3 $50,000.00 $24.04 $150,000.00
DWI Techs ouy) 3 $53,000.00 $25.48 $158,000.00
DWI Mechanies  (Hourly) ] §50,000.00 $24.04 $450,000.00
SPC Mechanies  (H 18 150,000.00 £24.04 $750,000.00
SAN Mechanics  (Hourly) 3 $50,000.00 $24.04 5150,000.00
Mi his {(Hourly) 3 §45,000.00 $21.63 $135,000.00
Tool & Die Specs  (Hourly) 3 $60,000.00 $24.04 150,000.00
MRO /S8R {Hemrly) 3 $35,000.00 $16.83 $105,000,00
Pallatizer outy} 6 $35,000.00 $16.83 $210.000.00
Forkiift Opersdor  (Howrly) ] %, 000,00 §16.03 $315.000.00
Packer {Hourly} 3 $35,000.00 516.87 $105,000.00
Janmor {Hourly} 1 30,000.00 51442 $30,000.00
£06.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 :0.00
$0.00 30,00
$0.00 $0.00
30.00 30.00
[Total Number of Employees 72
Total Arnual Payroft $3,621.000.00
Total Average Hourly Wage $24.18




(sesepoce R

- {Schedulo to be attached to State of Nevada Commizslon Esonomic Davalopment Incentives Application)

Equipment List for
for: Project Kobalt

List aff capltal equinment thet wif be purch 'thmwbymemwﬂﬁmw(ﬂwmdmmmmrm
provided ,

Joceled in Storey County, NV, The Stale of Nevads wi] conduct #'s auet basad on the nformation balow.) .
nt Name & descdotion Purchase | Recoivad | #ofunite Prico per pnit Total Cost '
ezt A W QUIPMENT: 6 e T T e et :
Cuppers {w/ Coll Randling)] 198 1% 390500018 3805000 !
Bodymakers] 100 |S 35500005 3,850,000
Trimmars] 100 |8 1188070]% 118800 i
Wash Coater 0BG 100 |$S 325000015 250,000 !
Flanger Beaders} 100 |8 trdnzls vimean
Testors 1.90 3 QU034 944034 ;
LSM's 100 1% i902288]s topaoms
o 100 1S 1400000 | § 1,400,000
Conveying & fne controls 1.00 [ 4550000 { $ 4,650,000 1 ;
Videojst 100 T 45,000 | 3 45000 i |
Vislon Inspaction systems| 20 3 79,633 19,633 ! *
Spares componants ) 775,000 775000 ?
Mactanical fit up {Piping) 1.00 2 500,000 2,800,000 ;
Fabrication of platforms; 1.00 000 355000 i
Elecirical fit up for tha aguipmant; 50 1,100,000 1,100,000 :
Engineering for the DWi line 00 560,000 585, ;
instaltation of equipment 1.00 825000 225000
Sy ulpment for DWI procass| 1.00 3600613 385000
e R T e T R e S B At A |
s - i
Con Forming (Slitter through Seamingl] 100 15 116400003 #.840,000
Air Testers & Videofet| 100 s §00,000 $00,000 ;
100 " 18 7100600 1,100,000 |
00 3 210000 210,000 P
100 116000 116,006 ;
. 150 £50.000 520,000 |
1.0 1,430,000 1 :
e e ;
s - ;
FPalletizing 300 15 285880413 2856504 | i
Strapping 100 |% SE041S 205504
Wrapplop 1.00 H o2752ls 10272 i
Convayingl tog | % 385320 |$ 385320 i
instatiation| 5 $  BIE0N H
Preszes) 1.00 1900000 | § 1,600,000 i
Liners| 1400 3 J29000] 3 526,008 ¢
106 1% BR800 [ § 85,500
Vision Inspection 100 [$ 81,000 | 5 81,000
*Mnterial Handl 10 |s 200,000 § 200,000
VEitp” 108 18 51000008 5100000
Protess Ft 2o 1.00 4,800.000 000
| \nstiElon oF sanitary fines and squpment 1.00 357,000 157,000
Regulred eleckrizal uppredes 100 71,000 71,000
Enginosting Support during installetion 140 95 600 65,000
‘Taxes & dubiss 150 2,550,000 #00,000
TOTAL 7591377
|FRODIETION ERUTPRENT ONLY $80,381,377.00




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Selection of David A. Pringle, CPA,LTD as Storey County as auditor for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2014.

2. Recommended motion
Per NRS 354.624 the Storey County Commissioners due hereby select David Pringle,
CPA, LTD as the auditor for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014,

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4, Staff summary:
The Current Auditor David Pringle CPA, LTD has done an excellent job of providing audit
compliance, accounting and auditing advice and financial statement presentation to Storey
County. Their work is professionally done and their rate is more than reasonable. In
addition, any questions or meetings that may be needed are accomplished at no additional
charge. To select a different auditor just for change is not in the best interest of Storey
County. Auditor changes are due to either significant adjustments to the auditor’s business
model or in the case of Author Anderson a felony conviction of obstruction a Federal
investigation into Enron. In addition, any time a new auditor is selected there will be at
least 100 hours of chargeable time to review previous files and develop an audit plan.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: __x__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Departinent Name: Commissioner’s Office

@UJ/COunty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ S E—

Agenda Item No. | 3




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: L_@b _ [%' 10 \4 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda x | Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: USDA Special Revenue Fund

2. Recommended motion

SEE ATTACHED
3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroler Telephone:
4, Staff summary:
To properly record receipts from Bond Revenue and record expenditures for construction

of the new Waste Water Treatment Plant,

S. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: _ x__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

Q_._i’f’%nw Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [1] Continued

Agenda Item No. \A(




RESOLUTION 14-390

A RESOLUTION CREATING A SPECIAL REVENUE FUND FOR THE PURPOSE OF RECORDING BOND AND
LOAN FUNDS AND RECORBING EXPENDITURES FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE NEW WASTE WATER
TREATMENT PLANT.

WHEREAS, Storey County has entered into an agreement by Resolution14-390 for the building of a new
Wastewater Treatment Plant, and

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Agriculture {USDA) and Wells Fargo have committed a
Grant and interim Financing for the purpose of new construction and,

WHEREAS, it is recommended that all receipts and dishursements related to the construction of the new
Wastewater Treatment Plant by segregated into a Special Revenue Fund,

TJEREFPRE BE [T RESOLVED, that the Storey County Commissioners have given the Comptroller of Storey
County authority to create a Special Revenue Fund for the purpose of accounting for all receipts and
disbursements related to the construction of the new Wastewater Treatment Plant.

This resolution shall be effective on the 18" day of February 2014.

THOSE VOTING AYE:

THOSE VOTING NAY:

ABSENT:

BY:

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Feb % | 20 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda {x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: UUSDA selection to purchase fire emergency vehicles.

2. Recommended motion
The Storey County Board of County Commissioners select the United State Department of
Agriculture Rural Development Community Facilities program to purchase three (3) Type
I Structure Engines and three (3)Transport Ambulances in an amount not to exceed two
Million dollars (82,000,000).

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller
Telephone: 847-1006
4. Staff summary:
The Storey County Fire Department has Type 1 Structure Fire Engines at least 20 years old

and Transport Ambulances with over 160,000 miles. Maintenance on these vehicles
continues to increase at an increasing rate which makes it necessary for replacement.

5. Supporting materials: None at this time

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: _x____ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
I R

Agenda [tem No. { &




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 18, 2014 Estimate of time required: 15-20 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Action: Storey County Special Purpose Grant Program

2. Recommended motion: ) Move to approve Storey County Special Purpose Grant Program for
the 2014-15 Fiscal Year.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4, Staff summary:

The goal of the Storey County Special Purpose Grant Program is to assist organizations whose
purpose is to help the residents of Storey County. The focus is to fund small projects that would
aid these entities in better serving their target populations. This program should support agencics
that are making an effort to develop and implement innovative projects that would address a
common goal. Grant funds can only be provided to a private organization, not for profit, or to a
governmental entity, for charitable or educational purposes, and must provide a substantial benefit
to the inhabitants of the County.

5. Supporting materials:
e Proposed Grant Application Form
e Summary from Commissioner Sjovangen on Grant Program

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
istrict Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

Q,M_ﬁfounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

Agenda Item No.




Request No.

Storey County Reviewed by:

Fiscal Year 2014-15 Date received:
DEADLINE- Tentative March 3, 2014 (For County Use Ounly)

SPECIAL PURPOSE AWARD REQUEST

PLEASE SUBMIT COMPLETED APPLICATION ALONG WITH LETTERS OF SUPPORT AND
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION TO THE STOREY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OFFICE

AGENCY INFORMATION

Name of Agency:

Mailing Address:

y

Contact Person: Phone Number:

Email Address:

Amount of Grant Request $

Date
Typed Name and Jitle of Auth,o,r;;zed Official Phone Number
Name of Program:
1. Identify the program goal and provide a narrative description of what specific services are to be

provided and how services will be delivered.




2. Describe the target population to be served or target issue to be address, and your service area.

3. Identify your measurable outcomes for the project year. Do not provide more than two objectives.

4. Describe how your program provides a significant benefit to

5. Program Expenses (SHOW WHOL

OLLARS ONLY,
budget for the specific program for wh in

' NOT SHOW CE
ding.

S): Provide below the

014-15 Total Program
PROGRAM EX TOTAL Expenses
= her funding

Professional Fees
Office Supplies =
Telephone/FFax Line
Occupancy - Rent
- Insurance
-Utilities
Equipment Purchase
Equipment Rental
Computer Software *
Maintenance & Repair
Postage & Shipping
Printing & Publications
Advertising & Promotion
Travel & Mileage
Liability/Other Insurance
Other (Please Specify)

TOTAL EXPENSES

Additional information or materials may be attached as necessary.




Storey County Special Purpose Grant Program

Prepared by: Bill Sjovangen

The Storey County Board of Commissioners’ Principles are to focus on health, safety, welfare
and a vibrant economy for all communities, and to foster a culture of trust, communication,
diversity, and innovation. In an effort to ratify this commitment, the Board of Commissioners has
decided to implement a Small Grants Program for each of the four residential communities. The
proposed budget allocation is $40,000 for the program. This amount will be divided equally

among the four residential areas.

The goal of the Small Grants Program is to assist organizations whose purpose is to help the
residents of Storey County. The focus is to fund small projects that would aid these entities in
better serving their target populations. This program should support agencies that are making an
effort to develop and implement innovative projects that would address a common goal. The
Storey County Small Grants program provides funds to individuals, neighborhood groups,
homeowner associations, school groups, GID’s, non-profits, and other appropriate local
organizations for projects on public and private lands that benefit the Community as a whole.

Agencies interested in applying should fill out an application form providing the narrative
information requested below and include a proposed project budget.

» Project Description: Describe the work you propose to conduct with this funding.

o Explain what the project will accomplish. What is the overall goal of the
project?

o How does it relate to the goals of the Small Grants program? What are the
specific aims or objectives of the project? How will this project positively
impact Storey County residents?

o If applicable, describe your outreach plan.

» Timeline: QOutline a timeline for the project, indicating key steps and deliverables.

» Evaluation: What outcomes will be measured? How will they be measured - what
specific data sources will be used? At what point will they be measured and how
will outcome measures be incorporated into program planning? ( This item may
not be applicable to all projects.)

« Sustainability: Describe the plan for sustaining the project beyond this funding.
(If applicable)

« Budget: Complete Budget Summary. (In some cases this may require a best guess

estimate.) No wages/salary will be allowed for any project.




« Wil liability insurance be required for the project?

Within the towns of Virginia City/Gold Hill this program can only be used on projects that
impact the local residents, not retail or tourism related items.

Grant money may be carried forward for a maximum of 3 years. Funds not obligated will revert
to the General Fund.

Applications may be submitted at any time during the year, Projects may be phased over a multi-
year period. Applications will be reviewed by appropriate County Staff for initial approval and
finalized by the County Commission. It would be recommended that a review committee be
established to review applications and make recommendations for funding approval.

Discussion

The thrust of this program is o give a certain amount of tax money back to the communities. The
small grants program would also replace the existing community Park program. The two primary
requirements for this program would be to ensure that it meets the requirements of law and that it
is of benefit to the community in general.

General Powers Under NRS

NRS 244.150 Levy of taxes. The boards of county commissioners shall have power and
jurisdiction in their respective counties to levy, for the purposes prescribed by law, such amount
of taxes on the assessed value of real and personal property in the county as may be authorized
by law,

NRS 244.1505 Expenditure of public money; grant of public money and donation of
certain property to certain nonprofit organizations or governmental entities.

1. A board of county commissioners may expend money for any purpose which will
provide a substantial benefit to the inhabitants of the county. Except as otherwise provided in
subsection 4, the board may grant all or part of the money to a nonprofit organization created for
religious, charitable or educational purposes to be expended for the selected purpose.

2. A board of county commissioners or its authorized representative may donate:

(a) Commodities, supplies, materials and equipment that the board determines to have
reached the end of their useful lives; and

(b) Stolen or embezzled property for which the county treasurer has obtained an order
authorizing the county treasurer to donate the property pursuant to subsection 6 of NRS 179.165,
E to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes or to
another governmental entity, to be used for any purpose which will provide a substantial benefit
to the inhabitants of the county,

3. A grant or donation to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or
educational purposes and a donation to a governmental entity pursuant to this section must be
made by resolution. The resolution must specify:

(a) The purpose of the grant or donation;

(b) If applicable, the maximum amount to be expended from the grant; and




{(c) Any conditions or other limitations upon the expenditure of the grant or the use of the
donated property.

4. The provisions of this section do not limit the ability of a board of county commissioners
or its authorized representative to disburse money pursuant to NRS 321.5956 or any other
specific statutory authority.

5. Asused in this section:

(a) “Authorized representative” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 332.025.

(b) “Nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes” means
an organization that meets the requirements set forth in NRS 372.3261.

(Added to NRS by 1981, 478; A 1987. 2306; 1989, 242; 1999, 1644, 3535; 2001, 368)




WASHOE COUNTY COMMUNITY SUPPORT POLICY

Background:

NRS 244.1505 provides that the Washoe County Board of County Commissioners may
expend money for any purpose which will provide a substantial benefit to the inhabitants
of the County and that the board may make a grant of money to a nonprofit organization
created for religious, charitable or educational purposes, or other governmental entity, to
be expended for a selected purpose.

Grants
Community Support grants may be competitive awards or in special cases non-
competitive awards termed Special Purpose Awards.

Grants for Human Service Needs-Washoe County Human Services Consortium:
Washoe County grants funds to address community human service needs through the
Washoe County Human Services Consortium (WCHSC). This is a competitive grant
process. The Consortium solicits proposals from eligible tax-exempt 501(c)(3) public
and private non-profit organizations and governmental entities that are formulating or
carrying out programs that address human service needs within the region. Competitive
selections are made in accordance with an evaluation of the proposal submitted.

Special Purpose Awards:

Washoe County provides grants to address special community needs. As with all grants
provided by Washoe County these funds can only be provided to a private organization,
not for profit, or to a governmental entity, charitable or educational purposes, and must
provide a substantial benefit to the inhabitants of the County.

Service Agreements

Service agreements to not for profit organizations may be competitive awards or in
special cases non-competitive awards generally depending on the amount of funds to be
expended, per County purchasing policy.

Service agreements are generally used when it is a more economical and cost effective
use of public funds to contract with an outside organization to provide a specific service.
The contractor provides services for the benefit of Washoe County’s work in a specific
area. In a service agreement the scope of work is defined by Washoe County.




Sponsorship of Community Events

Washoe County is on occasion solicited to sponsor a worthwhile community event.
Financial support of events for which Washoe County is an active sponsor, or at which
Washoe County is to receive recognition, qualify for support through the Community
Relations budget. All other County stonsorship of events shall fall under the Washoe
County Community Support Policy.

Chapter 1: Grants of Financial Support to Not For Profit Organizations or
Other Governmental Entities

1.1 All grants of financial support provided to a Not for Profit must be to an organization
created for religious, charitable or educational purpose per NRS 372,3261.

1.2 A grant or donation to a Not for Profit organization or other governmental entity must
be made by resolution. The resolution must specify:
(a) The purpose of the grant or donation;
(b) If applicable, the maximum amount to be expended from the grant; and
(c) Any conditions or other limitations upon the expenditure of the grant or
the use of the donated property.

1.3 All grants of financial support of $10,000 or greater must be provided through a
performance-based grant agreement between Washoe County and the Grantee.

1.4 All grants of financial support to a not for profit organization shall be clearly
identified as such during the budget process.

1.5 Special Purpose Awards

* Special Purpose awards must meet the public benefit criteria as follows:

a. Provide substantial benefit to inhabitants of the County;

b. Addresses a documented unnet community need that is an appropriate
responsibility of the County;

c. Results in a cost savings or avoids future costs to the County;

d. The Grantee must have demonstrated capacity to carryout a performance-
based agreement and maintain appropriate financial management
practices.

o All special purpose awards shall be re-evaluated annually, during the budget
process, using the public benefit criteria to determine if continued funding is
appropriate.

'Approved by the Board of County Commission on January 18, 2005




Chapter 2: Service Agreement with Not for Profit Organizations

2.1 Service agreements may be used when it is a more economical and cost effective use
of public funds to contract with an outside organization to provide a specific service.

2.2 Service agreements with not for profit organizations must be opened for competitive
proposals, and publicly advertised on at least a three year cycle,

2.2.1 Open competition for a service agreement must be noticed six months prior to the
end of term of the existing agreement.

Chapter 3: Sponsorship of Community Events

Community Event Sponsorship Guidelines:

3.1 Define a Community Event as:

An event held for the purpose of improving public awareness, education
and/or support for a specific community issue, topic, or concern.
Including, but not limited to topics related to community, economic
diversification, culture, the arts, the environment, and health and human
service issues.

3.2 Limit Community Event Sponsorship support to annual or one-time
events, not on-going activities.

3.3 Limit the number of applications to one per organization per year.,

3.4 Requests for events for which the primary purpose is to raise funds to
support the programs or operation of the non-profit are not eligible for
funding. These events may be eligible for support through
Community Relations marketing budget or Commissioner District
Special Funds.

3.5 All requests for Community Event Sponsorship support must be
submitted through the Community Event Sponsorship process
conducted prior to the budget process. Exception to this rule may be
allowed when funded by Commissioner District Special Funds® or
when an organization is conducting a one-time event, or is conducting
an event for the first time.

3.5.1 Letters will be sent to all known not for profit
organizations, and public notice will be published
each year to provide notification of the deadline to
submit application for event sponsorship.

2 When Commissioner District Special Funds are used to support a community event all gnidelines for
community events apply except #5.




3.6 Each organization that receives Event Sponsorship support will
provide appropriate recognition of Washoe County support as is
provided to other sponsors (i.e. WC Logo on public relations
materials, booth space, etc).

3.7 Community Support and Communityl Relations will communicate
regarding all requests to avoid duplication of support.

3.8 All Community Event Sponsorship support provided to not-for-profit
organizations shall meet the Washoe County Community Support
Policy requirements as noted above in Section 1.

3.9 Grantee must have demonstrated capacity to maintain appropriate
financial management practices.

3.10  The suggested Community Event Sponsorship Guidelines,
approved by the County Commission shall be incorporated into the
Washoe County Community Support Policy.

3.11 Event must be open to public participation without limiting
participation to a specific target population.

3.12  Event must be free to the public.

3.13  Applicant must disclose any potential confilict of interest arising
from a relationship with a county administrative staff member or an
elected official.

3.14 Commissioners shall recuse themselves from discussion and voting
on any organization’s application, if a County Commissioner has
direct involvement with management of the organization or is related
to principal staff or a board member of the organization.

3.15  Any organization participating in partisan activity in the judgement
of County Staff or the Commission, is not eligible for funding.

These policies apply to financial support, to not for profit organizations,
Jor which Board of County Commission approval is required for
allocation.




Chapter 4.  Event Sponsorship Eligibility Guidelines’

a. Eligible organizations must be a Not for Profit organization created for
religious, charitable or educational purpose per NRS 372.3261.

b. An eligible event must meet the following definition:
An event held for the purpose of improving public awareness, education
and/or support for a specific community issue, topic, or concern.
Including, but not limited to topics related to community, economic
diversification, culture, the arts, the environment, and health and human
service issues.

c. Eligible event must be an annual or one-time events, not on-going
activities.

d. Each organization is allowed to submit only one application for support.
e. Requests for events for which the primary purpose is to raise funds to

support the programs or operation of the non-profit are not eligible for
funding.

f. Event must be open to public participation without limiting participation
to a specific population. '

g. Event must be free to the public.

h. Any organization participating in partisan activity in the judgement of
County Staff or the Commission, is not eligible for funding.

Any application that fails to meet all of the above eligibility guidelines is ineligable for
funding and will not be distributed to the evaluation committee for review.

Evaluation Process:

Each proposal will be reviewed and scored by each participating member of the Event
Sponsorship Review Committee, The members will use the following criteria to review
and score applications.

Events Sponsorship Review Committee:
The Events Sponsorship Committee membership shall be made up of the following: a

Grants Administation staff member, a Parks and Open Space staff member, the
Community Relations Director, a Community member chosen from general public or
CABs, and a Commissioner.

* Approved by the Board of County Commission on May 10, 2005.




Evaluation Criteria;

1.

2.
3.
4

bl

6.

7.
8.

Number of participants the event will serve.

Benefit to low-income and/or at-risk population.

Amount of County sponsorships support per participant.

Level of support for the event received from other jurisdictions,
foundations, corporations or community organizations.

Is there a substantial benefit to the community?

Does the general public provide substantial contributibution to the support
of the organization or the event?

Is the event held at a Washoe County facility?

Is there a maximized regional benefit.

The Event Sponsorship Review Committee will make funding recommendations
to the Board of County Commissioners. The Washoe Board of County
Commissioners at a public meeting will make the final decision regarding award.

Please find attached related Nevada Revised Statutes for your reference.

Last Revised 5-15-05




CHAPTER 244
COUNTIES: GOVERNMENT
GENERAL PROVISIONS

To review the complete Chapter go to: hitp://fwww.leg state.nv,us/NRS/NRS-
244 html#NRS244Sec42 |

NRS 244.1505 Expenditure of public money; grant of public money and donation of
certain property to certain nonprofit organizations or governmental entities.

1. A board of county commissioners may expend money for any purpose which will
provide a substantial benefit to the inhabitants of the county. Except as otherwise
provided in subsection 4, the board may grant all or part of the money to a nonprofit
organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be expended for
the'selected purpose.

2. A board of county commissioners or its authorized representative may donate:

(a) Commodities, supplies, materials and equipment that the board determines to have
reached the end of their useful lives; and

(b) Stolen or embezzled property for which the county treasurer has obtained an order
authorizing him to donate the property pursuant to subsection 6 of NRS 179.165,

“to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes or
to another governmental entity, to be used for any purpose which will provide a
substantial benefit to the inhabitants of the county.

3. A grant or donation to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or
educational purposes and a donation to a governmental entity pursuant to this section
must be made by resolution. The resolution must specify:

(a) The purpose of the grant or donation;

(b) If applicable, the maximum amount to be expended from the grant; and

(c) Any conditions or other limitations upon the expenditure of the grant or the use of
the donated property.

4. The provisions of this section do not limit the ability of a board of county
commissioners or its authorized representative to disburse money pursuant to NRS
321.5956 or any other specific statutory authority.

5. Asused in this section:

(a) “Authorized representative” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 332.023.

(b) “Nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes”
means an organization that meets the requirements set forth in NRS 372.3261.

(Added to NRS by 1981, 478; A 1987, 2306; 1989, 242; 1999, 1644, 3535; 2001,
368)




CHAPTER 372
SALES AND USE TAXES

To review the complete Chapter go to; http://www.leg state. nv.us/NRS/NRS-372 html

NRS 372.3261 Requirements for organization created for religious, charitable or
educational purposes.

1. For the purposes of NRS 372.326, an organization is created for religious,
charitable or educational purposes if it complies with the provisions of this section.

2. An organization is created for religious purposes if:

(a) It complies with the requirements set forth in subsection 5; and

(b) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is the operation of a church,
synagogue or other place of religious worship at which nonprofit religious services and
activities are regularly conducted. Such an organization includes, without limitation, an
integrated auxiliary or affiliate of the organization, men’s, women’s or youth groups
established by the organization, a school or mission society operated by the organization,
an organization of local units of a church and a convention or association of churches.

3. An organization is created for charitable purposes if:

(a) It complies with the requirements set forth in subsection 3;

(b) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:

(1) Advance a public purpose, donate or render gratuitously or at a reduced rate a
substantial portion of its services to the persons who are the subjects of its charitable
services, and benefit a substantial and indefinite class of persons who are the legitimate
subjects of charity;

(2) Provide services that are otherwise required to be provided by a local
government, this state or the Federal Government; or

(3) Operate a hospital or medical facility licensed pursuant to chapter 449 or 450
of NRS; and ‘

(¢) The organization is operating in this state.

4. An organization is created for educational purposes if:

(a) It complies with the requirements set forth in subsection 5; and
(b) The sole or primary purpose of the organization is to:

(1) Provide athletic, cultural or social activities for children;

(2) Provide displays or performances of the visual or performing arts to members
of the general public; '

(3) Provide instruction and disseminate information on subjects beneficial to the
community;

(4) Operate a school, college or university located in this state that conducts
regular classes and provides courses of study required for accreditation or licensing by
the State Board of Education or the Commission on Postsecondary Education, or for
membership in the Northwest Association of Schools and of Colleges and Universities;

(5) Serve as a local or state apprenticeship committee to advance programs of
apprenticeship in this state; or

{(6) Sponsor programs of apprenticeship in this state through a trust created
pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 186.




5. In addition to the requirements set forth in subsection 2, 3 or 4, an organization is
created for religious, charitable or educational purposes if:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a
private shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted fo the advocacy
of any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;

(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on
behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used
by the organization in this state in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.
(Added to NRS by 1995, 1437; A 1999, 965; 2003, 1283)




CHAPTER 332
PURCHASING: LOCAL GOVERNMENTS
GENERAL PROVISIONS

To review the complete Chapter go to: http://www.leg state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-
332.html#NRS332Sec039

NRS 332.039 Advertisements or requests for bid on contract,

1. Except as otherwise provided by specific statute:

(a) A governing body or its authorized representative shall advertise all contracts for
which the estimated amount required to perform the contract exceeds $25,000.

(b) A governing body or its authorized representative may enter into a contract of any
nature without advertising if the estimated amount required to perform the contract is
$25,000 or less.

(c) If the estimated amount required to perform the contract is more than $10,000 but
not more than $25,000, requests for bids must be submitted by the governing body or its
authorized representative to two or more persons capable of performing the contract, if
available. The governing body or its authorized representative shall maintain a record of
all requests for bids and all bids received for the contract for at least 7 years after the date
of execution of the contract.

2. This section does not prohibit a governing body or its authorized representative
from advertising for or requesting bids regardless of the estimated amount to perform the

contract.
(Added to NRS by 1993, 2553; A 1999, 1682; 2003, 667)

NRS 332.045 Publication of notice to bid.

1. The advertisement required by paragraph (a) of subsection 1 of NRS 332.039 must
be published at least once and not less than 7 days before the opening of bids. The
advertisement must be by notice to bid, and must be published in a newspaper published
and having general circulation within the county wherein the local government, or a
major portion thereof, is situated. If no such newspaper is published in the county, then
publication must be in any newspaper published in the State having general circulation in
the county. '

2. The notice must state:

(a) The nature, character or object of the contract.

(b) If plans and specifications are to constitute part of the contract, where the plans
and specifications may be seen.

(c) The time and place where bids will be received and opened.

(d) Such other matters as may properly pertain to giving notice to bid.

(Added to NRS by 1975, 1536; A 1979, 172; 1983, 1659; 1993, 2554, 1999, 1036;
2003, 667)

10




Storey County, Nevada

Commission Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agenda. The policy states that all requests must be made in writing and must include all
suppotting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (Items received after the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

Date of Meeting: February 18", 2014 Date Request Submitted: February 7, 2014

Agenda [tem Requested: _ Accurate accounting of Rail funds that the county claimed to have prior to
the 2010 vote for extension of the Y cent sales tax to fund the purchase of the new Virginia City depot
and the extension of the line ( tunnel) to that VC depot. This was requested by me at the November 19®
2013 Commission meeting as well as by Lance Gilman I am attaching ( at the end of this
document) the timeline of the Commission meetings where these funds were discussed. The claim that
we already had funds designated for the VC project was part of the argument to pass the resolution for
the ' cent tax extension ballot measure/question. In 2011 there were specific amounts listed as part of
the budget. Bottomline question is ..where are these funds now ( not inclusive of bond

monies)

>
This item is intended for: [_]| Discussion Only [ | Discussion/Possible Action (at the Board’s discretion)
[ Supporting documentation is attached [] No supporting documentation is necessary
Requested by: Nicole
Barde
(please print name clearly)
Address: VC Highlands
Phone:775-299-4226 Email (optional}:nbarde@aol.com
Please submit this completed form to:
' or FAX to:
Storey County Clerk’s Office
4 ty Storey County Clerk’s Office
PO Drawer D (775) 847-0921
Virginia City NV 89440
... Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope - - - - - —

For Office Use Only \io omoui |

Date Request Received: 02 ’061 [ 14 Received; [ | InPerson [ ]ViaFAX By:




{ | Supporting documentation attached - # of pages
3

Meeting date of this item:

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdufresne(@storeycounty.org

Supporting documentation for Rail Fund agenda item request submitted by Nicole Barde

VC Rail Project accounting of funds timeline.

Date Action

November 17%,2009 Commission discusses and approves that a request be made
to the rail commission for $250,000 of Storey County’s
portion of the % cent sales tax. Optimistic that we will get it

First cost estimates for Tunnel 6 are reviewed. Lower than
February 16", 2010 expected. County Manager states that there are funds
already dedicated for this project.

They don’t show up as such in either 2012 or 2013 qudits

April 5™, 2010 Budget hearings held. Mention of funds for Tunnel 6 as
well as possible purchase of VC freight depot in the
“Capital Projects” budget. Mention of funds in
“Infrastructure” for Tunnel 6 and VC Freight Depot among
others.

No comments to these funds in 2011 or 2012 audits

May 4™, 2010 Receipt of a $25,000 grant for Tunnel 6 mentioned

A note of a $25,000 transfer into the Rail fund appears in
the 2013 audit

May 17", 2010 Approval of Construction Management Agreement with
Miles construction for possible construction services for V
& T Tunnel 6 project

First reading of Ordinance to maintain the ' cent sales tax
relating to the V & T railroad. Request to ask the voters to
continue the tax

Interlocal Agreement between Storey County and Nevada
May 20", 2010 Commission for the Reconstruction of the V & T railway
signed by rail commission and Bum Hess. No date over the
Hess signature

Article 3 of the agreement stipulates that if the revenues
from ticket sales are insufficient to maintain the
Commissions train operations or track maintenance, a




portion or all of that month’s % cent sales tax revenue will
be withheld from Storey County by the Rail Commission

June 1st, 2010

Interlocal agreement approved. Language in the agendized
item does say that the proceeds received by the RR
Commission are to be refunded to Storey county if they are
not required for train operations or track maintenance.

Summer 2010

Citizens group formed with County manager Whitten’s
involvement to campaign for the passage of the % cent sales
tax on the basis that the money will stay in Storey County

July, 6™ 2010

Resolution for establishing a question for the general
election ballot for extension of the % cent sales tax for the
restoration, construction and operating costs of the V& T
RR.

County Manager Whitten states “ This tax money will stay
in Storey County”

August 3™, 2010

Resolution approved to issue a maximum of $2.0m in
bonds to fund Virginia City Rail projects ;Tunnel 6 and
possibly the V & T Freight Depot.

August 17™ 2010

Resolution of intent proposing the issuance of the Bond
approved. Statement that property taxes will not be used to
repay the bonds and that the County will pledge revenues of
one or both sales taxes to the repayment of the bonds and if
not sufficient then the general obligation to the county
comes into effect.

If other sources of revenue will repay the bond as stated
why are the principal and interest payments coming out of
the "Rail fund”

October 5™, 2010

Public Hearing on the issuance of the Virginia City Rail
bonds.No public comment.
Project update on Tunnel 6 project was given.

November Election

Question passes. The stipulation about potentially not
receiving the funds not disclosed. The potential of paying
interest on the bonds and not receiving the tax monics not
disclosed.

This is the current situation as of November 2013

December 7%, 2010

Last step in approval of the Rail Bond Ordinance.

March 31, 2011

Budget discussions.

Cash balance in V.C Rail Project fund is $1.749,000, cash
balance in Capital projects $501,000 (includes Tunnel 6
and freight Depot)




Yet the 2012 and 2013 annual audit states the funds were
received in December 2011 (a typo both times?)
Additionally the funds left in the Rail fund as of the June
2013 Audit is ~ 81.3 million and there is no mention of
other funds ( capital and infrastructure) dedicated fo the
rail project or transferred. It also looks like the debt service
is being paid with Bond fund proceeds.

April 2nd , 2013

Budget discussions. Regarding the Virginia City Rail
Project fund Comptroller Gallagher stated  This is the fund
used to pay for the bonds,




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 18, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent | | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve Resolution 14-391to continue the contract with
the Department of Taxation to administer the infrastructure tax.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Resolution 14-391.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: On February 4, 2014, the Board approved Ordinance 13-251 that, among other
items, provided an updated plan of projects for the infrastructure tax. NRS 377B.110 requires that
the county contract with the Department of Taxation to perform all functions incident to the
administration or operation of the tax in the county. The county has an existing contract to
administer the infrastructure tax based on Resolution No. 00-88 and this resolution makes it clear
that after the approval of the amended ordinance that the county agrees to continue having the
Department of Taxation administer the tax.

5. Supporting materials: Resolution 14-391
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government
7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
{1 Approved
[1] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
i Continued

=

Agenda Item No. |8




RESOLUTION NO. 14-391

A Resolution to continue Contract with the Department of Taxation
to administer the infrastructure tax.

Whereas, Storey County (the County), by and through the Board of County
Commissioners, has enacted Ordinance No. 169 imposing an infrastructure tax on sales and uses
in the amount of one quarter of one percent.

Whereas, the County has determined that the tax must be continued after completion of
projects contained in the original ordinance and the Board has adopted a new plan of projects
consistent with NRS 377B.160 and passed Ordinance No. 13-251 with the provision stating the
specific purpose for the proceeds of the infrastructure tax.

Whereas, the County, in Resolution 00-88, contracted with the State of Nevada,
Department of Taxation, to perform all the functions incident to the administration and operation
of the infrastructure tax in the county.

Whereas, the County agrees to continue to pay the State of Nevada, Department of
Taxation, certain administrative expenses in the collection of the taxes provided for in the
infrastructure tax.

Now therefore, the Board of County Commissioners resolves and agrees to continue the
contract with the Department of Taxation to perform all the functions incident to the
administration or operation of the Story County infrastructure tax.

Adopted and effective this day of 2014 by the
following vote:

Vote: Ayes: Commissioners:

Nays: Commissioners:

Absent: Commissioners:

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of Commissioners
Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/10/14 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent{ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended motion; Approval
3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staif summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normalily
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

e
District Attorney

Department Name: Community Development

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
—

Agenda Item No. \q




Storey County Community Development
Buginess Licenging

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 847—06 + Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office February 10, 2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Please add the following item(s) to the February 18, 2014, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS
A. STOLLE MACHINERY ~ Contractor / 6949 S. Potomoc ~ Centennial, CO (Ardagh Supplier)
B. CLEAN HARBORS ENV SVYCS - Contractor / 1200 Marietta Way ~ Sparks (Contractor)
C. VIDEOJET TECHNOLOGIES, INC - Contractor / 1500 Mittel Blvd. ~ Wood Dale, IL (Contractor)
D. WTR ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / 6005 Hockberry Road ~ Reno (Contractor)
E. ARROW CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 100 Ave of the Couleurs (General Contractor) RB
F. MUSTANG RANCH EMPORIUM, LLC — General / 5 N C Street (Restaurant & Retail) vC
G. MUSTANG RANCH MERCANTILE — General / 62 N C Street (Retail) vC
Inspection Required
ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office




